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Milestones

BiE®

73
Established in Hong Kong as United Medical F
Practice, offering medical and dental health
schemes to corporate and individual clients The Jordan branch in Kowloon was officially
NEBATE AR A% R EAZSISMEE opened, providing medical, health check-up and
B FRHR g B ' a dental services
NEBRNEHZAEXRARY - REER - 8
K I RHRS
v

Jordan Specialist Medical Centre was officially
Expanded UMP network to Mainland China and opened

M
acad e ERI B L EEA RS
SER UMP 4848 25 7R ] A 2 R P

Acquired Metro International Clinic Limited to
establish the first medical and dental centre in

Macau
WEBRBRXEBEMAERAR - FOBRFIKZEEH
Successfully developed B T PRl

- / (:Ia,i,” g the "eCI'aims" e—plat.form

: = connecting all providers

\/ )& % within UMP network
panel

FRIFE [ EFF & - EEUMPHERZ A

F

The Central branch on Hong Kong Island was
officially opened, providing Medical, health check-
up and Dental Services

ZEROPRZAEARARE @ et BE - 8ig
K T R BRHS

F

Acquired a clinical laboratory, now known as
ProCare MedTech, to provide medical testing
services

WE—FERAERE CRAREREREME) RHKE
AR AR 75
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&
&
UMP brand revamped
o to deliverhrefreskhed Successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
N oy image to the market .
{4’,% u;lif;[/\lll.:& 3’}5 ;g N i Exchange (stock code: 722)
L/ Ump EHHILUMP B - FRIBABESZ R IR 177 - AR 88 722
. AMSERFFLR

F

Extended MRI services in the Causeway Bay MRI
Centre in addition to the Mongkok MRI Centre

BRE AW AIRPOR - BREUNDHIRREZH
gt N R

Became the first outpatient medical panel
equipped with digital radiology system

RAEMREEBHE RGN EREE M}_ﬂ_;_.,

igg Celebration Dinner

Procare Medical Imaging and Laboratory Centre
was opened in Causeway Bay with a wide range of
diagnostic imaging services including computed

tomography scanner and other laboratory tests

ERBEXERMEBRPONREERE - REZE
FERD W IR B IR E K B R R K bR AR
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Milestones
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Grand opening of the

first flagship medical Renovation of the specialist medical

centre in Shanghai centres in Central and Jordan, polishing
namely UMP Xintiandi
Medical Centre,
providing general and
specialist out-patient

services, diagnostic

the centres’ image and delivering more
pleasurable experience to our customers
and visitors

RVFR RO ER BB OBF - 12
HEBPLER  AFEP R EREEL
imaging services, RS
laboratory tests and

health check-up services

RLEBRREEEED
Pl LiBR BRI 2
Bl EftER - JZH
FI2 IR% - R &R2H -

e &R B AR S

Procare Medical Imaging &
Laboratory Centre e | —

(Kowloon) commenced
operation, offering health

assessment and diagnostic

imaging services

%><%%$§1§&'fb%ﬁ¢/b
(MBI RALE Rt
BRAHE R AR 2 RS

Grand opening of 238 Day Surgery Centre &
Endoscopy Centre located in Jordan, the first day
surgery centre managed
and operated by the
Group offering outpatient
endoscopic examination
and treatment

iz P28 238 B Al F i
RABRZETLRE  /E
BHAREEERELMA
B FMr O - REHPI2A
BEBRE AR
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Chairman Statement

EE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is my
pleasure to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2016.

A YEAR IN REVIEW

UMP has been serving the Hong Kong community since 1990,
delivering quality, affordable and accessible healthcare services
through over 600 service points across Hong Kong and Macau.
UMP is one of the leading corporate healthcare solutions providers
in Hong Kong serving more than 1.4 million medical and dental
patient visits annually. We partner with corporations and insurance
companies in the design and administration of corporate healthcare
benefits plans for, and provides healthcare services to, such
members, employees and policyholders.

Such business model allows us to have a sticky, steady and growing
patient base at the primary care entry level, and thereafter allowing
UMP to deliver additional add-on services to customers including
specialist services, secondary dental services and other auxiliary
services. Corporations and insurance companies also welcome such
partnership with UMP as we have a track record of delivering cost-
effective and a comprehensive suite of healthcare solutions
according to their budget and their needs.

Over the past 12 months, we have achieved significant milestones
in laying a strong foundation for our expansion in both Hong Kong
and China. We completed our IPO on the Stock Exchange in
November 2015, and since then, our dedicated management team
has been relentless in implementing our business plans of
expanding our scope of services in Hong Kong and also replicating
our business model in Beijing and Shanghai.

REeNBENAREL
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Against a backdrop of general economic slowdown, our business
has performed well and has delivered a year-on-year revenue
growth of 13.7%, supported by a record high of 1.4 million patient
visits. Our reported net profit for FY2016, however has decreased
by 83.2% to HK$6.8 million in FY2016, primarily due to one-off
expenses and our investments made in the establishment of our
Developing PRC Business. We have therefore presented our results
by business lines in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section to illustrate our on-going strategy of maintaining and
growing our established businesses, while deploying our capital to
replicating our successful business model in China.

Our business excluding Developing PRC Business have achieved
strong operating profit growth across each business line. EBITDA
excluding Developing PRC Business has achieved a record high of
HK$60.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.7%.
With such strong cashflow from operations, we have proposed a
FY2016 final dividend of HK$14.7 million (HK2.0 cents per ordinary
share), subject to shareholders’ approval at our forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Hong Kong & Macau

For our healthcare services offering in Hong Kong and Macau, the
Group's business has been developing steadily. Our total number
of patient visits has increased from 1.3 million to 1.4 million. We
believe that such an increase is due to our increased brand
awareness following the completion of our Global Offering, as well
as our pursuit to offer additional services to our customers. In 2016,
we have successfully consolidated and launched our new multi-
disciplinary centre in Jordan, a new 12,000 sq.ft centre that offers
one-stop-shop services from specialist consultations, health check-
up, primary and secondary dental services, medical imaging
services (including CT services) and day surgery services. We have
also revamped our various medical centres to give a new fresher
look to our clinics and further developing our brand consistency
across our centres, most notably our flagship clinic in Central.
Despite a general economic slowdown in Hong Kong and Macau,
we have been successful in renewing our existing and securing new
service contracts with corporate customers, further cementing our
position as one of the leading corporate healthcare solutions
provider in Hong Kong.
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In addition to investments in our facilities, we have also been
successful in attracting experienced specialists and family
practitioners to join our Group. We believe that our commitment to
expanding our service offering, our significant corporate customer
base and our new scope of services in China are some of the
reasons why we are seeing increasing number of doctors joining
the Group. This in turn enriches our service offering capabilities,
which also leads to more corporate customers and insurance
companies engaging with us to provide healthcare services to their

employees and members.

B TIRE R MIRRNE - HATRDRSIERE
BEHNEMRREBRLEMAKRER - ZFIHEIE -
BB N EARFHR AR - HFIEAND
EEPEEBMEF BN RFHBEZIMAR
SENEE AR MO REA - WRBKE
BT RMREREHES - TREZEERP
MR ARZRERMMEEES MK BRRHEER
ARAS ©

China

Shanghai

We are pleased to announce that our first new Shanghai clinic, UMP
Xintiandi Medical Centre, has commenced operations in late July
2016, providing a range of services including family physicians,
pediatrics, cardiology, dental and checkup services. We have
received warm market response to our service offering, particularly
from various Hong Kong corporates. We have also started
revamping our existing Shanghai Eaton Medical Centre (a site that
current primarily provides health check- up business) with the aim
to commence providing outpatient services in December 2016. In
addition, we have acquired a clinic in the Pudong area. We
therefore have three service points covering both Puxi and Pudong,
laying down our foundation network for the provision of corporate
healthcare services.

We are continuing our expansion of clinic network in Shanghai and
are constantly reviewing strategic sites for the opening up of further
family physician clinics. To this end, we continue to maintain close
dialogues with our strategic shareholders in reviewing and selecting
sites for the expansion of our clinic network in Shanghai.
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Beijing

UMP will introduce a new strategic shareholder, NWS, to take up a
20% ownership in our Beijing joint venture company, UMP Phoenix
JV, subject to shareholders’ approval. Following the subscription of
shares for RMB55 million by NWS, the joint venture shall be owned
as to 50% by UMP, 30% by Phoenix and 20% by NWS. UMP Phoenix
JV will be renamed as UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group Limited
("UMP Beijing”).

We are very pleased to welcome NWS as a new strategic
shareholder in our Beijing operations. NWS, with a market
capitalization of over HK$50 billion as at the date of this annual
report, is a veteran in conducting various businesses in China,
ranging from infrastructure projects to strategic investments in
different sectors. More recently, NWS is exploring further
opportunities in the healthcare sector, including its investment in
Gleneagle Hong Kong Hospital, which is expected to commence
operations in 2017. We believe that as UMP Beijing expands its
operations in Beijing and in nearby regions, NWS's know-how,
business network and financial strength will be invaluable in
assisting UMP Beijing in such expansion.
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On the operations side, we are also pleased to announce that our
first new Beijing clinic, UMP Beijing Cai Fu Medical Centre, will be
commencing operations in October 2016. Our two other clinics are
also in the final stages of licence application and we hope to obtain
such licences by first quarter of 2017. Similar to Shanghai, we are
also revamping our existing Beijing Eaton clinic such that by first
quarter of 2017, we will have four service points covering key
business and residential regions in Beijing.

OUTLOOK

Hong Kong & Macau

With the expansion of our specialist and medical imaging services
in Hong Kong, we look forward to establishing a Hong Kong-China-
Macau outpatient and inpatient service network to provide
individuals with bespoke healthcare management services and
access to private and tertiary hospital referrals.

We shall work closely with corporations and medical insurance
organizations on healthcare solutions and global budgets, and,
with a mixture of caution, innovation and flexibility, we strive to
capture the largest healthcare services market share in this region.

China

The ongoing healthcare reform has encouraged greater private
sector participation to provide a more diverse scope of medical
services to the growing middle class population, and to reduce
overcrowding in public facilities.

China is poised to transition its healthcare delivery towards patient-
centred and integrated care built on the foundation of a strong
primary healthcare system. UMP has embraced a clear and shared
vision on goals that are aligned with these public interests by
providing convenient, safe, coordinated and affordable outpatient
healthcare services.

We intend to build a strong primary healthcare workforce by
offering career pathways for local medical and health workers with
enhanced compensation, structured training and accreditation. The
process is challenging, but we hope this strategic planning will help
alleviate the shortage of qualified family medicine doctors and
importantly improve population’s trust in the quality of care at the
primary care level. We are working with Hong Kong and
international medical institutions to design and organize training
programs in family medicine for local doctors from both the private
and public sectors.
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We believe that there is significant market demand for corporate
healthcare solution and private clinical healthcare services in the
PRC, in particular in major first tier cities. The PRC's growing middle
class population has become increasingly health conscious and
often felt under served by the existing public hospital system due
to long waiting time. Given the middle class’s rising income, there
is a growing demand and willingness to pay for more convenient
medical access and quality healthcare services.

Private healthcare services providers like us are well-positioned to
fill this demand gap. The middle class population, with strong
purchasing power, generally view good health as a priority in
achieving a better quality of life for their families. Therefore, the
growth of the middle class population provides huge growth
potential for healthcare services providers in the PRC. In addition,
we believe that corporations in the PRC are increasingly looking for
alternative ways to retain their staff. The ability to offer integrated
healthcare solutions to employees and their family members will
likely become one of the key considerations for employees in
choosing which corporation to join.

The moderating growth of China’s economy sets the stage for
gradual rebalance towards services. In the next decade or so,
healthcare services will provide significant contributions towards
the country’s economic growth.

We see significant market potential for UMP to extend our
corporate healthcare solution services to the PRC market. Over the
past 20 years, we have accumulated significant experience in the
design and administration of health plans with insurance
companies, ultimately delivering a win-win situation where both
insurance companies and a medical group like us are able to
generate financial returns. Through our accumulated knowhow, we
will develop customized solutions that cater to both corporates and
insurance companies.

OUR APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all the staff and
members of the Board for their contribution to deliver this
significant business growth of the Group both in Hong Kong and
the PRC in the past year. Further, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our shareholders and business partners for
their support. The Group will continue to expand its healthcare
business in Hong Kong and the PRC, and with the strong support
from all parties, to provide the best healthcare services to our
customers. My colleagues and | are excited and confident about
the future, and we are working hard to fulfill such goals.

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEWS

Revenue

During FY2016, we generated revenue from (i) the provision of
corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers in Hong
Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare services in
Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the PRC Health Check-up Business,
which we acquired on 30 October 2015 and primarily represents
revenue generated from the provision of medical examinations for
local residents in the PRC and immigration visa applicants.

We are actively expanding our corporate healthcare solutions and
clinical healthcare business in both Beijing and Shanghai through
the establishment of our own medical centre network in these two
cities. Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions and Clinical
Healthcare Business were in the establishment phase and did not
generate any revenue in FY2016.

Summary of revenue and operational data as at 30 June 2016 with
comparative figures for FY2015 are set out below:

Revenue by operating segment

Bt 7 B B8

LON
R2016HBEE » RFIHBRAEEBONRE
BRRMMAHNTPIRESEBERER RS
= (i) RBEBRBRPIRERRBERERSE &
(i) P E BEAR TS - B PIF 201548 10 A 30 H UK
BHEEREL  HWAXTEEELAERTEH
BEEREBEREFABAREESRE -

BARIER R EBEBREYE HBEHP LM
% TEERIE RN M ER AR B ERE
R R R RARBRERERS - RAIFED
EBERBERT R LERRERRERGIRE
BE AKX ST FS ER + 702016 B B 4F 2 30 AR E AE
A ©

R2016F6 A0 HMM A REEHEBRE N
2015 F U E ML SREURE AN T

BEESME D WA

Year ended 30 June

HZ6H30HLEE Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
2016 % 20156 #h0,/0f)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHBT

Provision of corporate healthcare RHECEBERRERR

solution services HER% 292,241 271,823 7.5%
Medical B 276,138 255,505 8.1%
Dental R 16,103 16,318 (1.3%)
Provision of clinical healthcare services I2tEg FREE &R 2R 163,779 129,214 26.8%
Medical BE 117,258 86,095 36.2%
Dental FE 46,521 43,119 7.9%
TOTAL &3t 456,020 401,037 13.7%
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Number of visits by operating segment

BEED MBI D DR

Year ended 30 June
BE6A30HILEE Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
2016 % 20155 M/ (RD)

Provision of corporate healthcare RHECEBERRRERR

solution services FRER% 1,249,387 1,140,934 9.5%
Medical 23 1,227,375 1,121,918 9.4%
Dental URE: 22,012 19,016 15.8%
Provision of clinical healthcare services I2Eg FREE &R 2R 164,258 149,555 9.8%
Medical B 128,129 113,606 12.8%
Dental FE 36,129 35,949 0.5%
TOTAL &3t 1,413,645 1,290,489 9.5%

Total consolidated revenue increased by 13.7% from HK$401.0
million in FY2015 to HK$456.0 million in FY2016, primarily due to (i)
an increase in revenue from HK$399.3 million to HK$433.1 million
from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services to
Contract Customers and provision of clinical healthcare services to
Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau, and (ii) additional
revenue contribution of HK$22.9 million from the PRC Health
Check-up Business, which we acquired on 30 October 2015.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution
services to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased
7.5% from HK$271.8 million in FY2015 to HK$292.2 million in
FY2016.

J Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Contract Customers increased by 8.1% from
HK$255.5 million for FY2015 to HK$276.1 million for FY2016,
primarily due to an increase in patient visits in FY2016. The
number of visits from patients seeking Medical Services
increased by 9.4% from 1,121,918 in FY2015 to 1,227,375 in
FY2016.
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o Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Contract Customers remained relatively stable at
approximately HK$16 million for both FY2015 and FY2016.
The number of visits increased from 19,016 in FY2015 to
22,012 in FY2016.

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and

Macau

o Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 11.7% from
HK$84.4 million for FY2015 to HK$94.3 million for FY2016,
primarily due to an increase in the average price per patient
visit in FY2016 driven by higher spending by patients who
needed to utilise our Auxiliary Services. The number of visits
from patients seeking Medical Services decreased slightly
from 113,606 in FY2015 to 104,848 in FY2016.

o Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 7.9% from HK$43.1
million for FY2015 to HK$46.5 million for FY2016. The average
price per patient visit increased in FY2016. The number of
visits from patients seeking Dental Services increased from
35,949 in FY2015 to 36,129 in FY2016.

PRC Health Check-up Business

Additional revenue contribution from the PRC Health Check-up
Business, which we acquired on 30 October 2015, was HK$22.9
million for FY2016. The number of patient visits was 23,281.

. R 2015 BNFE R 2016 F R -
REHEFPREHIIBHRE AU AL 4
BETAN16BEBIT B2 AEH
2015 A E 19,016 AR N ZE 2016 BF
BFFE 22,012 AR »

RERRRMRHEERKERRERE

o EBEFE -mEEBEEREEBEBERSHEKA
201581 X F [£84.48 & 78 Jr # i
MNI%ZE2016H B FEMIBEE T
FEHAEREHEEFERARMEEHRBH
BENRSHETY S REEREHN
235 ANE 201581 B 4F JE 113,606 A R
R D = 2016 I L R 104,848 AR ©

e FRl-MEEBBEREIBRBEHKA
20158 FE43.1 B BB T IN7.9%
E2016H B FEL465BEBITL - KHP
BR2016 B E I o SR RRT
#9223 A B 2015 87 BUEF JZ 35,949 AR
ANZE 2016 B BUF[E 36,129 AR ©

hEERER

REFE B ERE(RMNR2015F10H30H
W) MEEINRA B BIR 2016 TBUEE 2298
BT - BEAZA23,281 Ak e
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For illustration purposes, if we had completed the acquisition on 1
July 2014, the revenue for the PRC Health Check-up Business would
have increased by 7.0% from HK$30.8 million in FY2015 to HK$33.0
million in FY2016 (or an increase of 15.9% under constant RMB
currency basis). The following table provides further breakdown of
the revenue, visits regarding the PRC Health Check-up Business:

ERIBA A% - T IR 201457 A1 B
BE - BB RS A S B 2015 BT ERAF 308
BEBTIEMI0%E2016 B EREIB0ES
BT (HIRETE ARBEEEERLIN15.9%)
TREHIFREERESHRA - B2 ABA#
—SRA4E

Year ended 30 June
HZE6A30ALEE Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
2016 % 20155 M/ RD)
HK$'000  HK$000
THERT TET
Revenue contribution post-acquisition 720154 10 A 30 B YtB& 12
on 30 October 2015 (HK$'000) WA BB (TETT) 22,916 1,692 NM
Revenue per local currency (RMB'000) WEMEETERA
(AERETIT) 19,630 1,337 NM
Number of visits B2 AR 23,281 - NM
Revenue contribution assuming R EERR 20147 A1 H
acquisition was completed on TEREIBA TR (FHT)
1 July 2014 (HK$'000) 32,989 30,837 7.0%
Revenue per local currency (RMB'000) e EEITEILA
(ANEETIT) 28,259 24,380 15.9%
Number of visits assuming acquisition R YER 20147 A1 8
was completed on 1 July 2014 TERHIBEZ ABK 33,844 29,527 14.6%

2015 RMB: HKD exchange rate at 1.26477
2016 RMB: HKD exchange rate at 1.16740

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative support
fees (including fees derived from providing administrative support
to Affiliated Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated Auxiliary
Service Providers and clinics), dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and gain on bargain purchase.

Other income and gains increased 7.6% from HK$7.9 million in
FY2015 to HK$8.5 million in FY2016. The year on year increase was
primarily due to the one-off gain on bargain purchase from the
acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up Business. Further, other
income and gains in FY2015 included a gain from disposal of
investment in an associate of HK$3.0 million, which did not recur in
FY2016.
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Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical,
Dental and Auxiliary Services rendered within the UMP Network, as
well as fees paid to third party laboratories and testing centres for
services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 10.2% from HK$234.4
million for FY2015 to HK$258.4 million for FY2016, primarily due to
the acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up Business on 30 October
2015 which led to the consolidation of the expenses for FY2016.

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share option expense, as well as pension
scheme contributions for nurses and administrative personnel, and
also include those of the Directors and key management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 19.6% from HK$65.8
million for FY2015 to HK$78.7 million for FY2016. Employee benefit
expense increased primarily due to recognition of non-cash share
option expense of HK$6.6 million relating to share options granted
to selected employees, additional staffing expenses from the PRC
Health Check-up Business following the completion of the
acquisition on 30 October 2015, Directors’ fee, general increase in
staff costs at existing UMP Medical Centres and management
office, and new staff recruited in connection with the Group's
expansion plans in the PRC.

Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 52.6% from
HK$23.2 million for FY2015 to HK$35.4 million for FY2016, primarily
due to pre-opening rental expenses of HK$6.8 million incurred for
our new clinic in Shanghai, which started operations in late July
2016, expansion of the network of UMP Medical Centre in Hong
Kong, as well as an increase in rent for those existing premises for
which leases were renewed.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 10.7% from HK$15.9
million for FY2015 to HK$17.6 million for FY2016. Such increase is in
line with the increase in revenue from the provision of clinical
healthcare to Self-paid Patients.

HERBER
BEERBHAXTECERBLE  TEREHHR
BIRHERUMPEA NRE M EERS -
RHRTS LB RFRAE MBS - LARSLE
=HERERBRFORASERE RS M
SNAEER -

FERBK B 2015 BUFE 23448 8B 0
102%Z 2016 FE25848 88T £ 8
MR R2015F 10 A30 B WIE R B2 %7 -
B 2016 T HFENRL A

EEEFX
BEEBINHAXTIEBRELRITRAENH
R ARRBARC AR « DA ot 45 5 HO 8 AR B S A B
REFAEER TERESFRIZEEARN
#r RARRARAR

EERAMAH2015HHFESSHESB T
HHN19.6% E 2016 FE787TBEBTT o B
BREMFAZIEMEERN BRI HERET
ETrEBNEcBRERNIOBEST
ZREWIEF 2015F 10 B30 Bk B
X¥BWBEINEIHY  EFMe  HRBEHEE
BHROLMEERT =8 TRANURESERERR
PR RET AT EBERT B T RS 0 -

WMEBEESREBRAX

VEME RIEERYMA2015MEBFEE232H
BB N52.6% E 2016 I FZ 354 F &5
T EETER EEMZ R (R2016F7 AR
FmEE) EXA¥RTEeMY68BEEST
BABBHABBERLRESE  URBRELES
FRiEEE &R M -

EREERE
B R4 S A e 2015 B IR 15,9 8 7T
EIN107% E2016 M BFE 176 BEET - &
SNSRI 5 2 B FR O ER B AR ARG AR MM
XTI
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Depreciation

Depreciation increased by 59.4% from HK$6.0 million for FY2015 to
HK$9.6 million for 2016, primarily due to the full-year recognition of
depreciation of the specialised equipment for the Causeway Bay
medical imaging centre, purchase of medical equipment and
decoration for new UMP Medical Centre in Hong Kong and new
clinic in Shanghai.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net primarily comprise general overhead expenses
such as utilities, operation and other administrative expenses as
well as expenses in connection with the Global Offering, fees to
professional parties, change in fair value of financial assets and
impairment losses on amounts due from associates.

Other expenses, net, increased by 136.9% from HK$17.9 million in
FY2015 to HK$42.4 million in FY2016, primarily due to one-off
expense of HK$16.4 million incurred in connection with the Global
Offering and other additional recurring expenses in connection
with the Group’s corporate development. Excluding one-off
expenses, other expenses, net increased by 58.2% from HK$16.5
million in FY2015 to HK$26.0 million in FY2016.

Share of Profits and Losses of a Joint Venture
On 13 July 2015, UMP Healthcare China, entered into the Joint
Venture Agreement with Pinyu, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Phoenix to form the UMP Phoenix JV, on a 50-50 basis.

The Group, together with Phoenix Healthcare Group, have plans to
develop a UMP Phoenix network of medical centres in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region in the PRC, with an initial focus on Beijing.
UMP Phoenix JV has set up its head office in Beijing, with plans to
set up three new integrated medical centres at prime locations in
Beijing, including a flagship medical centre located in the
Chaoyang district and two other integrated medical centres at
strategic locations in Wangjing and Shunyi, which are expected to

commence operations in late 2016/early 2017.

Share of losses of a joint venture represents the establishment cost
of the UMP Phoenix JV with Phoenix Healthcare Group. Share of
losses of the joint ventures amounted to HK$10.0 million for
FY2016. Such losses represent 50% of the losses of the joint
ventures and primarily consist of staff costs, rental and utilities
expenses for UMP Phoenix JV’'s management office and new clinics
to be opened in late 2016.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 7.2% from HK$6.9 million for
FY2015 to HK$7.4 million for FY2016. The increase in income tax
expense is in line with the year on year increase in the adjusted
profit before tax, which adjusted for income and expenses that are
not taxable nor tax deductible.

BUSINESS LINES ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 7.5% from HK$272.6
million to HK$293.1 million (before intersegment elimination) due
to a general increase in patient visits, while our operating profit
(operating profit before tax and before non-recurring items) has
increased 18.0% from HK$25.7 million to HK$30.3 million. Our
results show that we are able to generate increase in revenue
through market share and the delivering of a comprehensive suite
of services to our corporate customers, insurance companies and

patients.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 9.0% from HK$187.8
million to HK$204.8 million (before intersegment elimination) due
to a general increase in patient visits, while our operating profit
(operating profit before tax and before non-recurring items) has
increased 33.8% from HK$15.4 million to HK$20.6 million. The
increase in revenue is in part due to the offering of additional
specialist services and Auxiliary Services to our patients. The
increase in operating profit was also due to the fully ramped up
operations of the Causeway Bay medical imaging centre which was
operating at a loss in FY2015, but with such loss being significantly
reduced in FY2016 due to increased patient volume.

PRC Health Check-up Business

We completed the acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up
Business on 30 October 2015, which generated revenue of HK$22.9
million between 31 October 2015 and 30 June 2016. Our PRC
Health Check-up Business has experienced higher patient visits due
to the increasing demand from local residents for medical
examinations and more PRC residents traveling abroad for study
and for work.

iR xX

FrB R SZ 2015 I F E 6.9 8 B8 T N
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I NERAL RIS —B AR
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PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions and Clinical
Healthcare Business

Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions and Clinical Healthcare
Business was in development phase and therefore did not generate
any revenue in FY2016.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit for
our business lines for FY2016 and the corresponding period for

comparison:

Revenue by business lines (before elimination of intersegment

TETEBRERERRDERERERR
RER

BAPIR Bl b R B ARG AR IR T 5 M e PR B8 /R
RBEBRENFAERER - BN 20168 B F
JE I A AR -

TR FAPI R 2016 B B AF 2 LA K 48 FE A
TELLE M R ARRA RSN

BERRE D WA (2 BEHESEHAT)

sales)
Year ended 30 June
BZE6H30HLEE Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
20165 20156 #I/(Rd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Hong Kong and Macau Corporate BB LB EBERE
Healthcare Solution Services fRIR T R RFE 293,112 272,597 7.5%
Hong Kong and Macau Clinical BB NORPIER IR BERE
Healthcare Services AR 7% 204,760 187,818 9.0%
PRC Health Check-up Business RS 22,916 1,692 NMEHETK
PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions PR R BERERRT R
and Clinical Healthcare Business NEeREBIREER - - NMEETK
TOTAL Ll 520,788 462,107 12.7%
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Operating profit by business lines REBREDRENH
Year ended 30 June
HZ6A30HLEE Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
2016 % 2015%  #ih/(RD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Hong Kong and Macau Corporate AR EERRRE
Healthcare Solutions Services R T RS 30,332 25,706 18.0%
Operating profit margin £ R 2R 10.3% 9.4%
Hong Kong and Macau Clinical BB NORPIER K BERE
Healthcare Services AR7% 20,600 15,394 33.8%
Operating profit margin SRS 10.1% 8.2%
PRC Health Check-up Business R S iR 2 RS 6,835 1,052 NM EFETAK
Operating profit margin £ R 2R 29.8% NMEZETK
PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions and FEI{d 3 BB REEFRIR T R
Clinical Healthcare Business K ba R B R IR IR 2 7S (17,484) - NMEETK

(1) Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales (1) BRI A BT 30 8 & K S5 AT
elimination

) Operating Profit by business lines represent operating profit before tax for ~ (2) REBFEADLEFEREEBEOBRB AL ST
each business line and excluding non-recurring items B TeEESEILES

3) Operating loss for the PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions and Clinical ~ (3) PR EBBRBERSRREREERERETE

Healthcare Business for the year ended 30 June 2016 includes share of losses of Z2016F6 A0 A IEFENELEHIERERE HEE
joint ventures of HK$10.0 million from the joint venture operation with Phoenix EEEEENEEQARNI0C0AEETEERRE
Healthcare Group and the loss of new clinic in Shanghai. The losses primarily BEO R EEFZ2MEE -  BRFZAFMENAE
represent start-up costs including rental expenses, office renovation, FHERX PAEEE BEEEEREEAR
recruitment of management and medical staff and training costs. VA BIB N
AY \ \\
KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS FEHBMRER
Property, Plant and Equipment, net Y% BERRERE

Property, plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements, — ¥13 - B /E K& B 1EEAR & B B I5FT RS
furniture, fixtures and office equipment, medical equipment, A*Efﬁﬂ'ﬁﬂﬁ:#@%%f'k CRE - BERE R
computer equipment and software, and motor vehicle in relation to A% R ERMREREG A RS
the Group's premises and operations. Property, plant and & o #JZ - Jﬁﬁ)%& ﬁﬁzﬁ$ﬂ§%ﬁﬁ%&&
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and  {AB{EEETIEK °

any impairment losses.
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As at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016, the Group's property, plant
and equipment, net amounted to HK$27.0 million and HK$38.4
million, respectively. The increase was primarily due to the
acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up Business on 30 October
2015 which led to the consolidation of their statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2016, a new clinic established in Shanghai,
relocation and expansion of our specialist medical centre in Jordan,
Hong Kong and the expansion of the network of UMP Medical
Centre in Hong Kong.

Investments in Joint Ventures

We set up a 50:50 joint venture company, UMP Phoenix JV, with
Phoenix Healthcare Group in July 2015. Under the terms of the
Joint Venture Agreement, both UMP and Phoenix have undertaken
to commit up to RMB50 million each into UMP Phoenix JV. Such
funds will be used to establish the Healthcare Management Model
and a medical centre network in Beijing, as well as to recruit local
management team and healthcare professionals.

As at 30 June 2016, the net carrying value of the investments in
UMP Phoenix JV amounted to HK$23.8 million, representing capital
injection of HK$29.1 million (or RMB24.25 million equivalent) from
UMP to UMP Phoenix JV (RMB24.25 million, being approximately
48.5% of the RMB50 million fund commitment under the terms of
the Joint Venture Agreement) and the amount of certain set-up
costs for the three medical centres that have been paid by UMP on
behalf of UMP Phoenix JV, offsetted by the HK$10.0 million share
of loss from UMP Phoenix JV.

Held-to-maturity Investments

The Group has made held-to-maturity investments for corporate
treasury purpose. The held-to-maturity investments are revenue in
nature in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.
Held-to-maturity investments primarily represent the marketable
corporate bonds issued by listed corporations with fixed interest
rates from 0.98% to 4.875% per annum. The marketable debt
securities which will mature within one year and more than one year
are classified as current assets and non-current assets respectively.
The Group receives related interest payments semi-annually and
annually.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's held-to-maturity investments
amounted to HK$56.7 million (FY2015: Nil), of which HK$30.0 million
is classified as current assets and HK$26.7 million is classified as
non-current assets, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the details of the held-to-maturity
investments acquired by the Group during the year ended 30 June

2016:

Name of investment

REEH

Name of the issuing
financial institution or
corporation

BRITERMBEREXERE

Acquisition date

W B B
Investment grade

REER

Principal amount

REH

Investment cost
BRERA
Annual interest rate

FR=H

Maturity date
Z|H8H

Bank of China
Sydney 0.98%
2Aug2016 CD
Bank of China
Sydney 0.98%
2Aug2016 CD

Bank of China
Limited, acting
through its Sydney
branch
PERITARD AR
nal - BERHEERE
DITTE

28 January 2016
20161 A28 H

Issuer's rating: A1
Moody's

BT ARAR - 2@
AT

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7 7T

HK$30,030,000
30,030,007 7T

0.98%
0.98%

2 August 2016
201658 H2H

BL Capital
Holdings Ltd 4.5%
17Aug2018

BL Capital
Holdings Ltd 4.5%
17Aug2018

BL Capital

Holdings Limited

BL Capital
Holdings Limited

24 February 2016
201642 A 24 H
Baa3 by Moody's
23 Baa3
USD1,400,000
1,400,000 7T

USD1,402,100
1,402,100 7T
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Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill
is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016, the Group’'s goodwill
amounted to HK$28.1 million and HK$32.8 million, respectively. The
increase in goodwill was due to the acquisition of an
ophthalmology clinic in Hong Kong which was completed on 31
May 2016.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most
Self-paid Patients of medical and dental practices settle in cash,
although payments made by credit card will be classified as trade
receivables until they are settled (typically within two to three days).
Contract Customers typically settle payments within one to two
months of the provision of services to their members. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its Contract
Customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement arrangements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$45.1 million and HK$47.5 million, respectively. The
average trade receivables turnover days for FY2016 and FY2015 was
37 days and 40 days respectively. The decrease was primarily due
to the increase in the number of Self-paid Patients who typically
settle by cash or credit card at the end of each visit.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued and
owing to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers of
medical equipment and consumables. Trade payables are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three
months.

The Group's trade payables amounted to HK$41.1 million and
HK$47.3 million, respectively, as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016.
The increase in trade payables was primarily due to an increase in
the amount of professional fees accrued and payable to Doctors as
a result of the provision of more services to Contract Customers
and increased revenue.
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Net Change in Financial Position

The Group's net assets amounted to HK$410.6 million and HK$66.2
million as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, respectively. The
increase in net assets was primarily due to the cash proceeds of
HK$330 million, net of direct costs associated with the listing, from
the completion of our initial public offering on the Stock Exchange
in November 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Going forward, the Group
expects to satisfy its liquidity requirements using a combination of
cash generated from operating activities and net proceeds from
the Global Offering, although it may also seek to borrow to satisfy
liquidity requirements. As of 30 June 2016, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents of HK$261.3 million.

As of the date of this annual report, the Group did not have any
bank borrowings nor outstanding bank loans.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the reporting period, the Group has made held-to-maturity
investments for corporate treasury purpose. The held-to-maturity
investments are revenue in nature in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group. The Group receives related interest
payments semi-annually and annually.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's held-to-maturity investments
amounted to HK$56.7 million (FY2015: Nil), of which HK$30.0 million
is classified as current assets and HK$26.7 million is classified as
non-current assets, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold any other
significant investments during FY2016.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
27 November 2015. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since then. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Except for the acquisition of the entire interest in Shanghai Eaton
Consulting Limited for a total consideration of RMB5.1 million
(approximately HK$6.2 million) on 30 October 2015 and the
acquisition of an ophthalmology clinic in Hong Kong for a total
consideration of HK$5.1 million, there was no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2016.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related to
deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property, plant
and equipment and renovation for the Group's medical centres.
For FY2016, the Group incurred capital expenditure in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$26.8 million (2015: HK$22.8 million).

INDEBTEDNESS

Borrowings

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or enter into any bank loan facilities and as at 30 June
2016, the Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings
or indebtedness.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any material off-
balance sheet arrangements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong Dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2016, the Group has pledged certain deposits with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$0.8 million (30 June 2015: HK$1.0
million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a bank in favour
of an independent third party for potential damages of dental
equipment and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a
landlord for leasing of a medical centre of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had a total of 392 full-time
employees (FY2015: 296 employees). For FY2016, the staff cost
(including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and other
benefits) was approximately HK$78.7 million (FY2015: HK$65.8
million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis, together with reference to the profitability of the Group,
prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and market
conditions within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration system.

In addition, the Company also adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible
participants are entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the
Company for their past and potential contribution to the growth of
the Group. As at 30 June 2016, 46,400,000 options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme remained outstanding and no share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been
exercised during FY2016. As at 30 June 2016, 2,426,000 options
were granted and remained outstanding under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and no share options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme have been exercised during FY2016.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award
Scheme on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to
selected participants for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. No award have been granted under the Share Award
Scheme since its adoption.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results
and comparable market statistics.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 27 November 2015. Net proceeds from the
Global Offering were approximately HK$330 million after deducting
the underwriting commission and relevant expenses. The Company
intends to use such proceeds in the manner consistent with that
disclosed in the section headed "Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus. For FY2016, the Group has used the
net proceeds in the following key items:

() HK$34.3 million which primarily consists of shareholders’ loan
of HK$29.1 million (or RMB24.25 million equivalent) used to
fulfill the Group’s minimum capital commitment under the
agreement with UMP Phoenix JV to set up and operate the
initial three medical centres in Beijing;

(i) Approximately HK$22 million used to set up our management
office and a medical centre in Shanghai, which included but
not limited to (a) costs in relation to the purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment, (b) rental and building
management fees deposits for the premises, and (c) payments
of pre-opening rental expense of the medical centre;

(i)  Approximately HK$2.4 million used to set up a dedicated day
surgery and endoscopy centre in Hong Kong;

(iv)  Approximately HK$2.3 million used to relocate and expand
our specialist medical centre in Hong Kong; and

(v)  Approximately HK$2.0 million used to renovate our flagship
medical centre in Central, Hong Kong.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share for FY2016. The proposed final dividend will be
payable to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 18
November 2016. Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the 2016 AGM to be held on Thursday, 10 November
2016 at 2 p.m., it is expected that the final dividend will be paid on
or before Tuesday, 6 December 2016.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (#J85I), aged 72, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and re-
designated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is
primarily responsible for the overall formulation, supervision and
guidance of business strategies, planning and development of the
Group. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of various members of the
Group.

With over 40 years of experience in family medicine practice, Dr.
Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family
Medicine at the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Honorary
Clinical Assistant Professor in Family Medicine at the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer Hong Kong doctors to
participate in the healthcare development and training of medical
professionals in the PRC. With his wealth of experience in the PRC,
in particular his involvement and exposure in the training
programmes of various institutions, he plays a leading role in the
strategic planning and development of the Group's healthcare
business in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun and the father-in-law of Mr.
Patrick Tsang, both of whom are executive Directors. He is the sole
shareholder and a director of East Majestic Group Limited, which
holds more than one-third of the shares in EM Team Limited and
he is the sole director of EM Team Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow
of the Hong Kong College of General Practitioners in September
1987 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the
specialty of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also
registered as a specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (2R£E), aged 48, is the Managing
Director of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 5
November 2014 and re-designated as an executive Director on 29
August 2015. She is responsible for the overall management and
business development of the Group and initiating and leading
business projects in collaboration with medical insurance
companies and corporate customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible
for developing the management team with a view to enhancing
operational efficiency and expanding the Group’s business
activities. Ms. Kwok is one of the key members in establishing the
administration arm of the Group. She has over 20 years of
experience in health schemes management and providers network
administration to support the healthcare plan’s implementation in
the Group's network. She is actively involved in developing the
infrastructure of the Group such as information technology
platforms and medical network facilities. She has been the general
manager and director of certain subsidiaries since 1998 and 2004,
respectively. Ms. Kwok is also a director of various Group
companies. She holds not more than one-third of the shares in EM
Team Limited.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (& &%), aged 45, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is primarily responsible for
providing strategic directions on co-operations with different
business stakeholders in China and globally. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of CTFE. He is also a director of
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of international capital
markets experience, and was previously managing director, head of
Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at Deutsche Bank AG, Hong
Kong Branch, where he worked from 2003 to 2012.

Mr. Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(stock code: 158), a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) and a non-
executive director of Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94), all
being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an executive Director.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Columbia
College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May 1994.

Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (38 ), aged 38, was appointed as a
Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in Radiology and is
responsible for expanding the global imaging business of the
Company as well as building the physician networks. Dr. Michael
Sun has over 10 years of experience in medicine and has been the
Chief Radiologist of the Group since July 2012. He is currently a
radiologist, a director and a shareholder of ProCare Medical
Imaging and Laboratory Centre Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. He is also a consultant radiologist at
Causeway Bay MRI Centre.

Dr. Michael Sun is the son of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director and the brother-in-
law of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive Director. He holds
not more than one-third of the shares in EM Team Limited. He is
also a director of East Majestic Group Limited.

Dr. Michael Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He
became a Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October
2007 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in
October 2010. He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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Mr. LEE Kar Chung, Felix (ZZ%E8), aged 34, was appointed as a
Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is responsible for corporate
development, international operations and merger and acquisitions
for the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group as director, corporate
development and strategy of the Group in September 2014. He is
currently a Senior Vice President of CTFE with responsibilities in
making investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally
and a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director of
Phoenix Healthcare Group Co., Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He holds not more than one-third of the shares in EM
Team Limited. He has over 10 years of experience in law and
finance. He was an associate with the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus
Deringer before he left in February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong
Kong branch as an analyst in the investment banking department
until January 2009. He then joined the investment banking
department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and last held
the position of director in the Corporate Advisory Group, where he
worked from January 2009 to August 2014.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London School of
Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004,
respectively. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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Mr. JIANG Tianfan (ZIX 1), aged 35, was appointed as a Director
on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive Director on
29 August 2015. He is responsible for providing directions on the
Group's development in the PRC.

He is an executive director and chief financial officer of Phoenix
Healthcare Group Co., Ltd,,
Company. Mr. Jiang joined the Phoenix Group in 2008 and has

a substantial shareholder of the

been an executive director since August 2009, and was appointed
as the chief financial officer of Phoenix, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, in November 2011. Mr. Jiang is primarily responsible
for overall financial management, capital investment and ancillary
services business of the Phoenix Group. He also served as the
general manager of Jian Gong Hospital from December 2010 to
October 2011 and the general manager of Yan Hua Hospital from
July 2010 to October 2010. Prior to joining Phoenix, Mr. Jiang
served in several positions at the New Oriental Education &
Technology (Group) Co., Ltd. JQt ZFT R A HB B (EE) AR A7),
an education group mainly focusing on foreign language training
for Chinese students to study abroad, from June 2002 to July 2007,
including as a director of the Domestic and International Exams
Department of the Nanjing New Oriental School (F8 R 5 /7 2%
A S E & #B) from June 2002 to May 2005 and the general
manager of the Beijing New Oriental School Elite English Centre (1t
FHTE 7 Elite S5 BB ZEH 00) from June 2005 to July 2007. Mr. Jiang
is also a director of Hyde International Investment Limited, a
substantial shareholder of Phoenix.

Mr. Jiang obtained a Master of Business Administration from Olin
Business School at Washington University in St. Louis in the United
States in May 2009 and a Bachelor’s degree of Law from Shanghai
International Studies University (_£ /& #h B 5& K ) in Shanghai in
July 2003.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John B8s Jp (Z=H{&), aged 67, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is an
independent non-executive director of New World Development
Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also the
managing director and chief executive officer of Lippo Limited
(stock code: 226), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited (stock code: 156) and
Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655), all being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He resigned as an
independent non-executive director of New World China Land
Limited (former stock code: 917), an associate of CTFE, with effect
from 1 September 2016, the listing of its shares on the Stock
Exchange had been withdrawn on 4 August 2016 following its
privatisation.

Mr. Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Association of Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts.
He was a partner of Pricewaterhouse (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong and has extensive
experience in corporate finance and capital markets. Mr. Lee is an
Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong Kong and a Justice
of Peace in Hong Kong. He is active in public service and currently
serves as a Trustee of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme and a member of the Appeal Boards Panel (Education) as
well as a member of the Public Service Commission. Mr. Lee was
the chairman of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital Governing
Committee until his retirement on 31 March 2016 after serving in
such position for 10 years.
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Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp (ZEIfR), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Li is a specialist in Family Medicine in private practice
in Hong Kong. He is the President of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine, the Honorary Treasurer and member at large of the
World Organisation of Family Doctors World Executive Council and
Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians.

Dr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, USA, and
a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August 2004, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners in
September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty of Public
Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United Kingdom
in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Family
Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland China
Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the American
College of Physicians in November 2012, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013, Fellow of the
Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013, Honorary Fellow
of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in October 2014 and
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General Practitioners in
November 2014.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Honorary Professor of the Li Ka
Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong, Advisory
Professor of Shanghai Medical College, Fudan University, China,
Consultant of Family Physicians Training of Shanghai Health and
Family Planning Commission, a member of the Accreditation Panel
Specialist of National Health and Family Planning Commission of
the People’s Republic of China Industry Research for Public Welfare
projects.
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Dr. Li is the Honorary Secretary of the Hong Kong St. John's
Ambulance council. He is the chairman of Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre and also the chairman of the Hong Kong Sheng
Kung Hui Welfare Council and serves as a member on the
committee of the Community Care Fund Task Force. He is a
Honorary Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Adjunct
Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health Science of Macau
University of Science and Technology. He is the Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. He is also a member
of the steering committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare
Manpower Planning and Professional Development as well as the
Health and Medical Development Advisory Committee of Food
and Health Bureau of the Government of Hong Kong.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (8 #28), aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015. He is
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 1001), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’ working experience in
banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his career with the HSBC Group
in 1972 and advanced himself in the organisation by taking up
different positions under various business streams including
personal banking, sales and marketing, branch operation and trade
service. In 2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated to Shanghai and took up
the role of branch manager of HSBC Shanghai. In June 2006, he
was seconded to Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and appointed
as the head of personal financial services and wealth management.
He assumed the role of deputy chief executive and head of Retail
Banking and Wealth Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired
from HSBC Group in January 2014. Mr. Yeung is a member of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee in
Shanghai and the Honorary President of Hong Kong Chamber of
Commerce in Shanghai. He was awarded the “Magnolia Gold
Award" presented by the Shanghai Municipal government.
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Company Secretary

Ms. MA Hoi Wan (5 8l &), aged 41, is the Finance Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible for a full
spectrum of internal functions within the Group, including
accounting and finance, business and operation analysis,
information technology, human resources and administration. She
has over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance.
Ms. Ma first joined the Group as a consultant in November 2000 to
June 20071 and subsequently became a full-time Accounting
Manager from July 2001 to June 2005. She was promoted to
Assistant Financial Controller in July 2005 until she left the Group in
May 2007. Ms. Ma re-joined the Group as Financial Controller in
April 2010. She is also a member of the Management Committee
and a director of the Hong Kong Museum of Medical Sciences
since 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Ms. Ma obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1997 and obtained a Master of Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2003. She has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2001.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes
that high standards of corporate governance provide a solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance
transparency and maintain high standards of accountability. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise sound
internal control and aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in
general.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the CG Code since the Listing
Date up to 30 June 2016, except for the deviation as disclosed in
this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently has nine Directors, six of whom are executive
Directors and three of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. During the Review Period, and up to the date of this
annual report, there has been no change to the composition of the
Board. Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships,
where applicable, are contained in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. The Company has maintained on its website and on
the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions, and whether they are
independent non-executive Directors. Independent non-executive
Directors are identified as such in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
the gender, age, cultural, educational background and professional
experience of the Board members. The appointment of Directors
will be based on the Group's own business model and specific
needs, having due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board will review and monitor the implementation
of board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman, is also the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in an experienced and qualified person such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership while
allowing effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Group. The Board
will review the corporate governance structure and practices from
time to time and shall make necessary arrangement when the
Board considers appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Review Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-
third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for the
management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the
Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management
have clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various
internal control and check and balance mechanisms. The Board
does not delegate matters to the Board committee(s), executive
Directors or management to an extent that would significantly
hinder or reduce the ability of the Board as a whole to perform its
functions.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders'
value by way of, among others:

(@) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior

management;

() to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules (CG Code and Corporate Governance Report).
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Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information EE2SZREREMHRKRER

The Board intends to hold at least four regular meetings peryearin  EFeMEGFRTHINAEHREE  WEE
the future, which are normally scheduled in advance, and will meet  FBE@ZHL/THH - WIEH T B F 5525 5
more frequently as and when required. During the Review Period, {T&%#% - RO SEEHEZREEES
the attendance records of the Directors to the Board meetings are @ iHAVACEEEHAAT ¢

set out below:

Meeting(s)

Directors Attended/Held

RS
E=x SRETRY
Executive Directors
HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 171
FRIBE (L EHRITHAEE,)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director) 1/1
MEEw+ (EFLALIE)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick 171
EE Sy
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 171
B REE
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix 171
FHRELE
Mr. Jiang Tianfan 171
TR A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP 171
FEHMB ST (s EE - X FML)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS Jp 171
FRIREE (A2 E - A FMT)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 1/1

Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meetingis FTEEZESHBEMEAEEELMEHETD
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board R TIXRAIXEZREFEEKE  ENEHHE
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will MEFEEZREFLZESEH @ A TUAERL
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the ~HRIEEK - TREFHKEFETHE LB EKE
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. HAKEREFIFRIIAGEHE - 233
Meeting agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all EREMEBEXHEATERTEZTSERSH
relevant Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board HEEFSE NZE2@H AP R=ZRATX
meeting or committee meeting. EDRERES -
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and the
chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas and
ensures that the CG Code as well as all applicable laws and
regulations are duly complied with. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings are recorded in sufficient details of the
matters considered and decisions reached at the relevant meetings.
Draft and final versions of the minutes in respect of Board meetings
and Board committee meetings are sent to all Directors or Board
committee members respectively for comment and records within a
reasonable time after the relevant meetings. All minutes are
properly kept by the Company Secretary and are available for the
Directors’ and Board committee members’ inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company's business and make further enquiries or
retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information to
the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During the Review Period, the
management has provided all members of the Board with adequate
information giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company'’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on the
Listing Date subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles and the provision under the service
contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment subject to the
provision of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles
and the provision under the letter of appointment.
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The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement from
office by rotation and re-election once every three years and that
one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third) of
the Directors shall retire from office every year at the AGM. Any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting while any Director appointed
by the Board as additional Director shall be subject to re-election
at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of
Directors, organizational structure, policies, procedures and codes
of the Company, terms of reference of board committees and
charter of responsibilities of internal audit. The Directors are
encouraged to attend seminars and conferences to enrich their
knowledge in discharging their duties as a director. The Company
Secretary from time to time updates and provides written training
materials to the Directors, and organizes seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings attended by QAT WERFE S 2 12|42 48% - RIFEERE - IR
the Directors. The trainings attended by the current Directors {FZ2ZELEEHEBERLT ¢
during the Review Period are as follows:

Training(s) Attended
R 3
Regulatory
updates,
Corporate Directors’ Business of

Directors governance duties the Group
= EER EE=RE REEXEH
Executive Directors
HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong v 4 4

(Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer)
RIS

(FEFHITEARE)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen v v v

(Managing Director)
BEBL L (BEFEIHE)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick v v v
Wi
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael v v v
BXBEE
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix v v 4
FRELE
Mr. Jiang Tianfan v v 4
TRMSEE
Independent Non-executive

Directors
BYHBITESE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP v v v
FHHE L (xHEE AT
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp v v v
FEREE (RgHE2E  ATHL)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike v v v

L ET Y

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016




Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for
dealings in the Company’s securities by Directors.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the Model Code since the Listing Date up to 30
June 2016. However, the Company received a letter on 4 August
2016 from Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald s8s yp (“Dr. Li"), an
independent non-executive Director that, on 4 August 2016, Dr. Li
purchase 92,000 Shares at the price HK$1.12 despite Dr. Li, as a
Director of the Company, is prohibited from dealing with securities
of the Company, during the black-out period (being the period
from 28 July 2016 up to the publication date of the results
announcement, which is 26 September 2016). Dr. Li explained to
the Company that such mistake was made out of an inadvertent
oversight as to the commencement date of the black-out period.
Upon realising his mistake, Dr. Li immediately sold 92,000 Shares at
the price of HK$1.14 within an hour. Dr. Li has donated the gain of
approximately HK$2,000 made as a result of the transactions to
Hong Kong Red Cross on the same date. It is confirmed that there
was no inside information provided to any Directors and Dr. Li did
not possess any inside information at the time of purchase and
selling down. Dr. Li acknowledged to the Company for his breach
of Rules A.3 and B.8 of the Model Code in relation to this incident.
In view of this incident and in order to ensure strict compliance of
the Listing Rules and enhance corporate governance measures, the
Company will remind all Directors as to their respective obligations
under the Listing Rules in all aspects, including but not limited to
the restrictions in dealing with the Company’s securities. In
addition, refresher course as to the Listing Rules and corporate
governance will be provided to Dr. Li as appropriate.

Senior managers, executives and staff who, because of their roles in
the Company, are likely to possess inside information, have also
been requested to comply with the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees, the terms of which are no less exacting
than those set out in the Model Code. To the best knowledge of
the Company, no incident of non-compliance of the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company's
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee will
consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald sBs up and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, and an
executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick. Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald sBS JP serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The composition of the Remuneration Committee
meets the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the
Listing Rules.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration Committee had
performed the following works:

o determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the
executive Directors;

o assessed the performance of executive Directors;
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

Remuneration Committee Members

FHMZEESERE

ZEgKEHEZEgSZNALEIINT ¢
Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HERE

BRETRE

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s Jp (Chairman)
TEIRE L (rxigE & FaL)(EE)

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
BRI

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company's
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange's website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
reviewing the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete effectively. The
Committee is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual
confirmations on independence. The Nomination Committee
meets at least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

1/1

1/1

1/1
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lee Luen Wai, John 88s P and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8sup, and
an executive Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong. Dr. Sun Yiu
Kwong serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
composition of the Nomination Committee meets the requirements
of chairmanship and independence of the Listing Rules.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee had
performed the following works:

o reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;
o assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and
. reviewed the time commitment of the Directors.

The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

Nomination Committee Members

REZEERE

REZESHA-RKEMEK  BIEMBEL
ERTEETHBE S E gmes  AF81) &
TERE & (rumES A THL) RATTE SRR
BTEE FRTELETIREZZESEE -
RABZEBGWARTES ERAF EFEMNEL
HHFRE °

O REZB QBTN T EH

s EHARTNEZSZHRTRE BRER
ENDa

o  ERBUINTERNBUM: K

o  ENESHRTEBAMNEMNER -

ZEERBHFERESSRNLCHEHIIWOT

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HERE,
BRETRY

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman)
BRI TEA ()

Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP
THHB S (L HEE K TFHL)

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp
TEIRE A (R ES A TFHTE)
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Audit Committee

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website
at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange's website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities for
effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and risk
management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company's financial statements, annual report and accounts and
half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues. The Audit Committee
also oversees the Company's relationship with the external auditor,
reviews auditor’'s letter of engagement and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor's management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a
year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS Jp, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $85 Jp and Mr.
Yeung Wing Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS P serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit
Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and
independence of the Listing Rules.
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During the Review Period, the Audit Committee had performed the  [EIEAHAR » BREEEBITA NH ¢
following works:

e reviewed the Company’s interim report 2015/16 and F RN R F)2015/2016 F FF B R & & R

unaudited financial statements; REZT R

. reviewed the internal controls and risk management systems, MAANMEENRBRERSIE - 2EN
including the effectiveness of the internal control systems of RAREMBARHNAMEERGES
the Company and its subsidiaries, the adequacy of resources, B RNRABIEGE R E R a2
qualifications and experiences of staff of the Company’s HHNER BIERERKERESEH
accounting and financial reporting function, and its training URETHMESNEIRENEBEE
programmes and budget; and XEEBRE &

. reviewed the usage of annual caps on continuing connected e HHARNBRFEWRERINFE LRA
transactions of the Company. EREMR ©

a

The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZE@KEHFEZE@@EMLEEEIWMOT -
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)
Audit Committee Members Attended/Held
HERE
EREEERE BEETRE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP (Chairman) 1/1
TR L (snEs KTt (EE)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs Jp 11
TEIREE A (LA EE A FHT)
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 11
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows for such
reporting period. In preparing the financial statements, the Board
has adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong
Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the
Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Company and the independent
auditor’s report for FY2016 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
interest of the Company and its Shareholders. During the Review
Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by the external auditor of the
Company for FY2016 are set out below:

B AT &

R20168H B - D B A 2 R K
D RR MBI BIR F1S 2 Bl 2 8151
T

HK$'000

TET

Audit service ZE RS 1,900

Non-audit services IR BIRTS

Services provided in connection with initial RARAERARABERENRE

public offering of the Company 2,620

Others Htt 310

4,830

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose any
person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company or
at the registration office where the branch register of members of
the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days
and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for
election as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1404-1408, 14th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@ump.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
AGM and other extraordinary general meetings. At the AGM,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The Directors, Company
Secretary or appropriate members of senior management, where
appropriate, also respond to inquiries from Shareholders and
investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of a
general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the Listing
Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’
meetings. The poll voting results will be released and posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company at www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of
"About us — Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.

Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make a request for such
information. Designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry
lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the
Shareholders and the investment community to make any enquiry
in respect of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes
to its memorandum and Articles of Association.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out
in “Chairman Statement” on pages 7 to 12 of this annual report
and in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 13 to 28
of this annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
Besides, the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
key relationship between the Group and its employees, customers
and suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups' results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk

As part of business strategy, the Group has recently begun to
expand its operations to certain major cities in the PRC. As the
Group has very limited experience in the PRC market, such
expansion strategies are subject to uncertainties and risks such as
strain on managerial, operational and financial resources,
competition with existing healthcare services providers in the PRC,
differences in the business, regulatory and political environment,
difficulties in obtaining the requisite permits, licences, certificates
or other government approvals in connection with the Group’s
operation in the PRC, difficulties in establishing a brand, reputation
and new customer base, difficulties in recruiting skilled and
qualified healthcare professionals and management personnel, and
difficulties in securing suitable premises for the medical centres. In
addition, the private healthcare market in the PRC is still
developing. Medical expenses of corporate employees are
currently covered by mandatory government insurance
programmes. There is no assurance that corporations in the PRC
will be willing to top up healthcare benefits payment for their
employees and offer additional healthcare services by private
providers, such as the Group.
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Reputation Risk

The Group's success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time to
time be subject to complains, allegations or legal actions regarding
the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and medical
services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group's business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC are subject to extensive laws, regulations and
licensing requirements, any failure to comply with such laws,
regulations or licensing requirement could harm the Group's
business, results of operations, financial condition, brand and
reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the
Group's sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to
ensure environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation
to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. During the Review Period, no
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions
were reported to our management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC while the Company
is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its
Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. During the Review Period, our businesses were
in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in all material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for FY2016 and the Group's financial
position as at 30 June 2016 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 86 to 203 of this annual report.

During the year, the Company did not declare any interim dividend.
The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per Share. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2016
AGM, the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
before 6 December 2016 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 18 November 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on page
204. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company for FY2016 are set out in note 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the use of proceeds from the Global Offering are set out
in the section headed “Use of Proceeds” in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2016
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$368,620,000, of which HK$14,720,000
has been proposed as final dividend for FY2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS

During FY2016, the Group did not have any bank borrowings or
entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2016, the
Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed “Pledge of Assets”
Analysis” of this annual report.

in the “Management Discussion and

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
Charitable contributions made by the Group during FY2016
amounted to approximately HK$1 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2016, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 30.6% of the Group’s
revenue for the year and the largest customer included therein
accounted for 13.2%. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the
year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
Shareholders that owned more than 5% of the issued Shares had
any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers or the
five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Review Period and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director) @
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick ©
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael®®
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix @
Mr. Jiang Tianfan ©®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP®

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBs up @

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike ¥

Notes:

(1) Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and
redesignated as executive Director on 29 August 2015.

2 Ms. Kwong Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen was appointed as a Director on 5 November
2014 and redesignated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015.

3) Each of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung, Felix and Mr. Jiang Tianfan was appointed as a Director on 18 August
2015 and redesignated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015.

4) Each of Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP and
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 6 November 2015.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an AGM at least once every three years. The details of Directors
(as required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be provided in the
accompanying circular. The re-election of each Director will be
subject to vote of Shareholders by separate resolutions.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong,
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen and Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix shall
retire by rotation at the 2016 AGM. All the said Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2016 AGM.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the
titles and nature of office held in the public companies or
organisations prior to the acceptance of the appointment and
promised to inform the Company timely of any relevant change.
The Company will also require Directors to submit written
confirmation twice a year, and update their biographical details, if
any.

THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out in page 29 to 37 of this
annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a three-year
service contract with the Company effective from the Listing Date,
subject to termination before expiry by either party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years which commenced from the date of his appointment
and shall be terminable by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2016 AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management in
the Group as follow:

EERESREEENFHMH

EXRAEEREREHEE ZHFMFHBHN
RERIRE P FMERMET )28

BREREABZHMEEEIIMT -

Number of Employee
(FY2016)

BEAZ

(2016 B )

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
1,500,000 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 65 to 70 of
this annual report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2016.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic
Group Limited and EM Team Limited, our controlling Shareholders,
have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-compete
undertaking that, subject to and except as mentioned in the
Prospectus, they would not carry on, engage, invest, participate or
otherwise be interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with any of the existing and/or future businesses
carried on by any member of the Group in relation to the provision
of corporate healthcare solutions and consultancy services in non-
UMP medical centres in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking for
disclosure in this annual report during the Review Period. No new
business opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2016. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are
of the view that the non-competition undertakings have been
complied with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited
and EM Team Limited for the Review Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group'’s
business at any time during FY2016 and up to and including the
date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were set out
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below:
(i) The Company (i) A&AQF
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Note shareholding (%)
e HR/ KR 0 B/ REROBE K BEARE AR EL 1 (%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 14,300,000 1
RRI8 HE ERHEEA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,426,000 2
8 BN
Long position Interest held by his controlled 243,756,343 3
e corporations
EamEEERSE
260,482,343 35.39
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen  Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 1
FEELT HE ERBEBA
Long position Beneficial owner 19,600,657
HE EalEBA
30,980,657 4.21
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Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Note shareholding (%)
E=pg #E/ KR ) BB/ REROBE M BAER LA (%)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 1
FRESE e BEaEBA
Long position Beneficial owner 900,000
HE BaEBA
12,280,000 1.67
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 1
BXEEE e BEHEBA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,990,000
e BEnEBA
12,590,000 1.71
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 1 0.08
ZERE e ERfEBA
Mr. Jiang Tianfan Long position Beneficial owner 4,998,000 0.68
TRWEE He ERBEBA
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.03
ERE g A F0r)  FR ExBAA
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBSJP Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.03
FERBLEmpnzE AFHt) PR EZREA
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Long position Beneficial owner 294,000 0.04
BRESTE HE ERBEBA
Notes: B EE -
1. These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options 1. RS RN BIR 20158 B 18 BIRIE
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO RARBERBIREST 2R R EET
Share Option Scheme. HABRERR 15 o
2. These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options 2. ZERMBIERAATNR2016E6 A30HRES
granted by the Company on 30 June 2016 pursuant to the Post-IPO AR E AR AT RIS B R IE
Share Option Scheme. KM S o
3. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in 243,756,343 Shares 3. AR B A [ E ()100% 32 #l East Majestic

by virtue of his (i) 100% control over East Majestic Group Limited, and (ii)
56.95% control over EM Team Limited, which respectively held
199,601,343 Shares and 44,155,000 Shares.
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(i) Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the
SFO)

Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited "

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity

(i) MWBOEE(ERRESFRBEMREH)
EEBEXERILBPOLERATO
Approximate

Number of  percentage of
shares shareholding (%)

EEnA HR/ KR =27) BREOBE BMAOEREEH (%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25
Michael

B ERE e EmlEEA

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited @

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity

SR EM O RIRFOLERAT@

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
shares shareholding (%)

EEns BR/ KR 514 ROBE BORRLH (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Long position Beneficial owner 95 7.6
Michael
BRXBBE Sy} BEHSEBEA
Notes: MisE

1 UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited.

2 UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway Bay
MRI Centre Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO share option scheme are as
follows:

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis
of eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would
take into account such factors as the Board may at its
discretion consider appropriate.

(b) Summary of Key Terms
° The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all outstanding share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 46,400,000, being
approximately 6.30% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2016.

o The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$1.2228 per Share.

o All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant
date up to and including the end of the Option Period;
and (ii) 90% of the option shares shall only be
exercisable from the second anniversary of the grant
date up to and including the end of the Option Period.

The "Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the
seventh anniversary of the Listing Date.

o the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted
thereunder but in all other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the exercise of any options granted.

B IR RS2
BHRAMBEABRESTS
RABR2015F8 B 18 HFEME XN AR E
ATEERIRERTE - BX AR EREAERT 28I
FT

(@ B
BRAFEENERETE S ERES
ER2EEHAEE A REREH
B BN REBEF M m RS /EL 42
Bz REAREEFELRBRERS
BHEES HTETSAERZHEENE
B E5geERANBERASEN
ZER= -

(b) EEHRIRBE
e RERAHBEIERESIET
B2 A R TRERRERETT
F1%  EIE T AT 2 RMHEE £
PR /% 46,400,0000% - B A 2 & K
2016F 6 A30H B 3 17 Ix A& 4

6.30% ©

o REBRAFMEEMBARESER
HEERAEIR TR RBE SR
1.2228 87T ©

o REARAFMBEERBRESE
g ERBRENMEREAER
BN AATER S 2 BIRKE ()
BERRRE AR 1) B 10% (2 AT AR B AR
—BAFREEERESR(EEE
B 7T+ R (i) 8 B 4 B 10 &
R EFATNEHAHMEAFRES
BRESR(BEER) LT -

[BREMR]ELTRAMEEER
& b B 8- AF AT B 8L -

s BRARMBEMNBREIER
201548 H18H ZE2015411 H9
BEEAR - HEH T HRILE—
FROBIRE  EERRFRAEER
BRAERT MR EM AR T E
BEITEE A SR EBREDAR
BTRUNEAERM -
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(c)

Outstanding Options Granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

(c)

Details of movements of the share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June
2016 are as follows:

REBAAHRENBRECRENE

RITERB IR

HE2016F6A30BIEFESE

NYNEE:S

ERBREE AT RONEREE

BT

Number of shares issuable under the share options

BREATITRONRAHA
Exercise Cancelled/
price As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed As at
per Share 18 August  duringthe  duringthe  during the 30 June
Grantee Position Date of grant (HKS$)  Exercise period 20150 year year year 2016
BRITER R2015% FREE  B2016F
ERA B BiHBH (Brm) frEH 8A1BAY EFRBRYE EFREMHE  H/&M  6A30A
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/A/%) (B/B/%)
Directors
i3
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Chairman, Chief 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 1,430,000 - - 1,430,000
Executive Officer and 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 12,870,000 - - 12,870,000
Executive Director
FRI®E IF - TREHRNTES
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Managing Director and 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 1,138,000 - - 1,138,000
Jacquen Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 10,242,000 - - 10,242,000
BERLL BEREERUNES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 60,000 - - 60,000
BRERE HIEE 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 540,000 - - 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 60,000 - - 60,000
yes i3 wiEE 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 540000 - - 540000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 1,138,000 - - 1,138,000
X HOER 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 10,242,000 - - 10,242,000
Sub-total: 38,260,000 38,260,000
N
Employees
&
in aggregate - 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 514,000 - 160,000 354,000
axk 18/08/2015 1.2228  18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 4626000 - 1440000 3,186,000
Sub-total: 5,140,000 1,600,000 3,540,000
et
Other eligible grantees
AR ERARA
inaggregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 - 460,000 - - 460,000
CES 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 - 4,140,000 - - 4,140,000
Sub-total: 4,600,000 4,600,000
Nt
Total: 48,000,000 - 1,600,000 46,400,000
5t
Note: Bt EE -
(1) The adoption date of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BRARBEERBEREN RSB S
Since the adoption of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme up br LTI AN BERABERARE

to 30 June 2016, no share option was exercised, expired,

cancelled or lapsed under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

save as disclosed above.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in sub-
paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group and
to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the Board
appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or
a director of a member of the Group or associated companies
of the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
(including but not limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number
of Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all
options granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the
Shares in issue at such date.

B

ZAN/N

ROHBERBIREE
AIFR2015F 11 A2HRMNE X AFHES

BBIHEE - AR RHEERBIRESEF
ICEAENE

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

B
BARRBERBREZINENE R
SR RBEERALT(IMTX ()0
PRRE) BASKEELER - SHEME
HEARBNm B BARBEFNIR
FARREE -

SHE
EX2(BHREFERBEERAMAEER
BRESNRASETEREMEE
MEMNZEE@XREFENR) T2ERB
FAEEKE R B RAR A E QR
BE(THERIFRB)AEZ(SER
AT DELBERE  ABBEAIEEN
BRABRMHEE -

ABITRO AR

RIRE B RAFEE R B8 RA
RAENEAEBERE B (BERETRR
BRAHABEERBRESE) S TEREW
FTB BRI ETER K THITHRD &
g AATBBEN LW HEYERTR
NHEEREN 10% °

BESRETERESN LR

HRBEE R AR EERBRETE RN
N EEfE AL B R 8RR A B
ALTREHBRARETER  @2EF
MaBERALTERRBHORMOEE - M0
HEREBEZERBREZNOR S (BREZ
B)IEBE 12 A HREMERN 2B
Pt (BIEEDITEE - EEERREARITER
B MEAEBTREREETHR
MAAHBEEZBERTRMNMN1% - BIF
BREBRE R AR R EMmE
Rz ERALRLBERE -
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted.
Any option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the
expiry of the option period, which period shall be determined
by the Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer
date of the option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum
period for which an option must be held and performance
targets that must be achieved before an option can be
exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing or
by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree) by
electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from, the
date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to the
Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of offer of the option; (i) the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares.
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(i)

Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme () BRLHARERBRESEZEH
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically BEE XA AFREEZERETZIAIER]
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of BIEER  BRAFRBEEREBIRETE
the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the BEEE EMHBTEFTH—XE®E
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. W e
On 30 June 2016, an aggregate of 2,426,000 share options MR2016F6 A308 - RARIREBERA
were granted by the Company under the Post-IPO Share HEERBRETERERE  THAE
Option Scheme to Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, Chief RPTETERIEBEER T H
Executive Officer and executive Director. The closing price of 2,426,000 f BE & #E - 2R 2016F 6 A
the Shares immediately before the grant of options was 0B EHERERMMORMDEHERTR
HK$1.27 per Share. Further details of the grant are set out 127870« REME—TFBHIIRT
below and in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. N RAT B PSRRI EE32 ©
The summary below sets out the details of the movement of TXHHIEEE20165F6 A30B LFE
all the options granted during the year ended 30 June 2016 REBX A AREEREBRESERTH
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme: PG BIRER E B 15
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Balance Cancelled/ Balance
price as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
Date of per Share 2 November during during during 30 June
Name grant (HKS) 2015 ™ the year the year the year 2016
i
R2015% 2016%
BRTKE 11828 R/  6A30A
i3 R AH (B7) ZEEER FRRH FERTRE k¥ e
(dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/R/%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong 30/06/2016 1.27 0 2,426,000? - - 2,426,000?
(Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and
executive Director)
RIRTH
(25 TTHEHFE
HiTEE)
Total 0 2,426,000? 2,426,0002
ait
Notes: Bt EE -
M The adoption date of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. ()] BHRAFABERERETEIMFEMNAE -
(@) The vesting period of the share options are as follows: (i) 50% of the 2 BERRAE 2 BB HALN T © 50% B 1% H & B B e

options granted may be exercised on or after 30 June 2017, and (i) 50%
of the share options may be exercised on or after 30 June 2018. The
validity period of the share options is five years from the date of grant
and the options will lapse on 30 June 2021.

A RER 2017 F6 A30R 8 2 %176 ¢ i)
50% B ASHE AT AEHL 2018 4F 6 A 30 A sk 2 17T
- BRENEUBAEREBERRST
BB ASIE S 7 2021 £ 6 A 30 H ALK »
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The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 73,600,000, being 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing Date and 30 June 2016.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 23,174,000 Shares,
representing approximately 3.15% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June
2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives for
the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the
adoption date. The maximum number of Shares which may be
awarded to a selected participant under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the
Company in each year. The Board shall not make any further award
of awarded shares which will result in the nominal value of the
Shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding two per cent (2%) of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not granted
and vested any Shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2016 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2016.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs and damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by
or omitted in or about the execution of their duties in their
respective office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2016, so far as was known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

§$E’\\‘Ek3"¢% - REREN 2

BRAFERAEEESI  R2016HBFEAHL
FR BESEEREEEZFMENER - ™MD
AFBENERR S - ZHAEHNPERIMEE
BEEA MR -

ESNEERERKRX

RIBZRRAA - ARARRETAEHEMITER
RRAFEZRSRABAERNRFEENKNE
ERMENRER  EEHEEA-ATERAR
IMEITESEREBEPRENBANEMD
REMS| BEEX S ARAERFR  BAK
BELRAXMERZEE -

ARRERAREEZLSRABRBEEN
EENEMABEERR

FERRRADR 2B - HEK
DRESNERENXE

R2016F6A308 - BARRBIESA - N
TAL/ BR(ZEEXARAEEZTRAER
SN RAAERB 2 D SABBER DR ER - Sk
BEBEAATEEARMAREESELHE
DI 55 XV EB 55 2 K2 390 BRI SCZB TR AN 2 &) K Bk
R E - N AR B EREES NS
DI 336 T E 2 BB MMA

Number of Approximate

Shares/ percentage of

Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares  Note (%)
R,/ HEE B IR LB

TERRER BR/ KR 4] ROBE M (%)
East Majestic Group Limited  Long position Beneficial owner 199,601,343 1 27.12

iR EnlEAA

EM Team Limited Long position Beneficial owner 44,155,000 1 6.00

R ExmAA
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Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares Note (%)
R4,/ 186 B IR LB
TERRHE BR/ KR =27 ROEE  HE (%)
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
(Holdings Il) Limited controlled corporations
wE EEHEEEERA
Cheng Yu Tung Family Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
(Holdings) Limited controlled corporations
1A RRmARGEERE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
Limited controlled corporations
iR RRMmAEESEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
Limited controlled corporations
AR (ER) R AR iR EEHEEEERA
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
Limited controlled corporation
BERBEERRAR 1A BRmARGEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 2 15.00
Holdings Limited A E=lAA
Phoenix Healthcare Group Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 3 15.00
Co. Ltd. controlled corporations
BERREEARAR iR EEHEEEERA
Unison Champ Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 3 15.00
controlled corporation
1B BRmARGEERE
Pinyu Limited Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 3 15.00
mARAR iR EREAA
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Notes:

East Majestic Group Limited was wholly-owned by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, an
executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr. Sun was
deemed to be interested in its holding of 199,601,343 Shares pursuant to the
SFO. EM Team Limited was held as to 56.95% by Dr. Sun and its interests in
44,155,000 Shares was deemed to be the interest of Dr. Sun pursuant to the
SFO. Dr. Sun’s interests in Shares are disclosed in this annual report in the
section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated
Corporations”.

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was
wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH"). CTFH was held as
to 78.58% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ("CTFC"), which was in turn held
as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited (“CYTF") and as to
46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited ("CYTFII"). By virtue of
the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIl were deemed to be interested
in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited
was interested.

Pinyu Limited was wholly-owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly-
owned by Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd.. By virtue of the SFO, Unison
Champ Limited and Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd. were deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Pinyu Limited was interested.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, the Directors

have

not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or

chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short

positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

—
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as and where applicable and relevant.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of which for FY2016 are set out as follows:

BEXS

B N Xtz S b -

BEREA TR ZHBAAR

BLETRAFI14AENARBERRAER

FRFBEHER S - ARFERE

B IRRIZ

ERIEREST EMRAE 4AZMHEIRT -

FRRBFHEEERS

ARBCRILETIHMRIERER

X5+ HRY

0160 HFENFELEREEERSSEH

FIEE

Actual Transaction

Annual cap for Amount for
the year ended the year ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2016
Connected Transaction Connected Person (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
HZ2016%F HZ2016%F
6H30ALEE 6HA30HLEE
K E LR NEBRRZEHE
BERS BEAL (F#&x) (F#Ex)
A Property Leasing Framework Agreement Rich Point Group 4,000 3,842
MEHEER D Rich Point &£ &
B. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael 4,000 3,196
Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael BBE
R PR BR B A YRR
C. Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 4,500 3,964
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick TREBLE
HEFPEBENERRZ
D. Medical Services and UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited 1,800 Nil
Administration Agreement
BERG R EEHE z
E. Advisory Services Framework Agreement  UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited 4,000 2,957
A R AER 1he2
F. Medical Services Framework Agreement Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited 14,000 11,038
BERBERDZE BARBEEERAA]
In respect of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions Gt FillIFRA R EFET S M E @ ZEXHAE

above, these are transactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and, where applicable, independent shareholders’
approval requirements.
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In respect of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions (E)
to (F) above, upon the listing of the Company’s Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange approved the
annual caps of these continuing connected transactions and
granted a waiver to the Company from compliance with
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

A. Property Leasing Framework Agreement
On 13 November 2015, the Company and Rich Point Group
entered into a property leasing framework agreement (the
"Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group leased properties from Rich Point Group for
the purposes of operating medical centres and warehouses.
The major terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

o with respect to the relevant leased properties, the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and the relevant Rich
Point Group member shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions of the leasing arrangements, including rental
amount, payment method and other relevant terms;

o the terms of the individual agreements shall be on
normal commercial terms or, from the Group's
perspective, more favourable to the Group;

o the rental amounts payable under the lease agreements
shall reflect the then prevailing market rates and no less
favourable than the terms and conditions offered by
independent landlords or lessors of comparable
premises; and

o the Property Lease Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date until 30 June 2018 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to the historical rentals
paid for such properties to ensure that the rents payable
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are fair
and reasonable to the Group.

Bt (O ES P EEREBENERBME
AR TR RS  E 1R 7% - STt
EREHEWETHOFEE LR - LAAAT
BN R BT B RSP -

A. YMEREERGZ
RN FF 2015411 B 13 H ERich Point
E@MT (O EREER Y ([WE
MEEZEBZE] Bt AEBBM
Rich Point 52 B T & ¥ % F 10 & & B 75 R
DREE - HEAEBERAT

] IR EME  ARRRHE
B /8~ &) 22 43 B Rich Point 5= B A%
BRRIEEIS AR H% - S]AHEE
ZHER R B IGR R - BiEHES
R AR R E AR IR

o AR A IRREIE — R
RIN  RAKEMS @ ZFKS
HRAKEEEF

s

e HMEBBRETEMNNEZESRER
RERNRITTEANENAEL
EUGMTE THET REMNRR K
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e WEMEEXEGEE TTHBRS
2018F 6 A30HIF » AIEEFREE
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Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
executive Director of the Company, holds more than 30%
interests in Rich Point. Accordingly, Rich Point is an associate
of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong and a connected person under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the total rent paid by the Company to Rich
Point Group for FY2016 was HK$4,000,000 and the actual
amount paid or payable to Rich Point Group was
HK$3,841,812.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael as a consultant to provide medical services, in
particular radiologist services, to the Group. The major terms
of the agreement are set out as follows:

° Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael shall provide consultancy
services to the Group, including the provision of medical
services, in particular radiologist services;

o the annual fees charged by Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael to
the Group will be negotiated on an arm'’s length basis,
and shall be on normal commercial terms which, from
the Group's perspective, are no less favourable than
those which the relevant members of the Group could
obtain from independent consultants of similar
expertise, experience and reputation for a similar role,
scope of services and responsibilities under similar
circumstances; and

o the agreement shall commence from the Listing Date
until 30 June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual
consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to historical aggregate
fees paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr.
Sun Man Kin Michael of similar scope of services to ensure
that the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to
the Company.
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Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael is an executive Director, and
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun
Man Kin Michael constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael for FY2016 was HK$4,000,000 and
the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael was HK$3,196,380.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick
On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick, as a consultant to provide Medical Services, in
particular Dental Services, to the Group. The major terms of
the agreement are set out as follows:

. Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental
Services to the Group;

° the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group's perspective, are expected to be no
less favourable than those which the relevant members
of the Group could obtain from independent
consultants of similar expertise, experience and
reputation for similar role, scope of services and
responsibilities; and

o the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual consent of
the parties.

The Company has made reference to historical aggregate
fees paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr.
Lee Pak Cheung Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure
that the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to
the Company.
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Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company, and accordingly, a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2016 was HK$4,500,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick was HK$3,963,901.

Medical Services and Administration Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and UMP Phoenix JV
entered into a medical services and administration agreement
(the “Medical Services and Administration Agreement”) to
govern certain transactions between the Group and UMP
Phoenix Healthcare Group. The details of the transactions
and the major terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

° the Group shall make available its medical centre
network in Hong Kong and the PRC and provide
Medical, Dental and other Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the UMP Phoenix JV Group;

° the UMP Phoenix JV Group shall make available its
medical centre network in the PRC and provide Medical,
Dental and other Auxiliary Services to members or
customers of the Group;

o the service fees payable under the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement shall be determined by the
parties through arm'’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms and with reference to the prevailing
fees charged by the Group or the UMP Phoenix JV
Group offered to independent customers with similar
scope of services. The administration fees incurred shall
be charged on a cost basis; and

o the Medical Services and Administration Agreement
shall commence from the Listing Date for a term of
three years and may be renewed by mutual consent of
the parties.
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The service fees payable under the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement have been determined by parties
through arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms and with reference to the prevailing fees charged by
the Group or the UMP Phoenix JV Group offered to
independent customers with similar scope of services.

UMP Phoenix JV is a joint venture company formed by the
Group and Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company, on a 50:50 basis. Accordingly,
UMP Phoenix JV is an associate of Phoenix Healthcare Group
Co. Ltd. and a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services and Administration
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees paid by the Company
to UMP Phoenix JV Group for FY2016 was HK$1,800,000 and
the actual amount paid or payable to UMP Phoenix JV Group
was nil.

Advisory Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and UMP Phoenix JV
entered into an advisory services framework agreement (the
"Advisory Services Framework Agreement”) to govern the
certain transactions between the Group and UMP Phoenix JV
Group. The details of the transactions and the major terms of
the agreement are set out as follows:

° the Group shall provide to the UMP Phoenix JV Group,
on a non-exclusive basis, advisory services (primarily by
secondment of relevant senior or managerial personnel
of the Group) in respect of certain managerial, technical
or operational functions relating to the establishment of
a medical network in the PRC and other advisory
services and Auxiliary Services as may be agreed
between the Company and UMP Phoenix JV from time
to time;

o with respect to the relevant advisory services, the
relevant members of the Group and the UMP Phoenix
JV Group shall enter into individual agreements which
prescribe specific terms and conditions, including scope
of advisory services, service amount, payment method
and other relevant terms;
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° the terms of, and the service amounts payable under
the individual agreements will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than the prevailing
market rates of comparable scope of services;

° The fees for the services to be provided under the
Advisory Services Framework Agreement by the Group
will be determined on the basis of the comparable
remuneration or fees paid to (i) independent senior or
managerial personnel and (i) doctors and dentists with
similar calibre and experience; and

o the Advisory Services Framework Agreement shall be
effective from the Listing Date until 30 June 2018 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

UMP Phoenix JV is a joint venture company formed by the
Group and Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company, on a 50:50 basis. Accordingly,
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited is an associate of Phoenix
Healthcare Group Co. Ltd. and a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Advisory Services
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees paid by the Company
to UMP Phoenix JV Group for FY2016 was HK$4,000,000 and
the actual amount paid or payable to UMP Phoenix JV Group
was HK$2,957,378.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE has entered
into a medical services framework agreement (the “Medical
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
the employees of CTFE and/or its associates. The major terms
of the agreement are set out as follows:

o the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;
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the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms
and conditions, including scope of medical services,
service amount, payment method and other terms;

the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm'’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which the
relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of
services; and

the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date for a term of three
years and may be renewed by mutual consent of the
parties.

The management has made reference to the prevailing
price of medical services offered by the Group to other
customers and the historical service fees the Company
received for medical services with a similar scope to
ensure that the service amounts payable during the
service period are fair and reasonable to the Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received
by the Company from CTFE for FY2016 was
HK$14,000,000 and the actual amount received or
receivable by the Company was HK$11,037,612.
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The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 30 June 2016 and confirmed that:

(@)  the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms) on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that (i)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board; (ii) nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were
not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and (iv) with respect to the aggregate
amount of each of the above continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

The Company and all Directors had reviewed all connected
transactions and confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during the Review
Period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme as
disclosed on pages 65 to 70 of this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during
FY2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules since the Listing
Date up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2016
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBEHRE

EY::

To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 86 to 203, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZBEHRE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016, and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 September 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEESER

Year ended 30 June 2016

HE2016F6A30HIEFE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET T
REVENUE WA 5 456,020 401,037
Other income and gains H A W A B W as 5 8,489 7,928
Professional services expenses EERBKER (258,398) (234,351)
Employee benefit expense EEEMAX (78,667) (65,780)
Property rental and related expenses MEMS RABERY (35,391) (23,169)
Cost of inventories consumed BEREFEKA (17,585) (15,898)
Depreciation e (9.611) (6,028)
Other expenses, net H S B FEE (42,441) (17,893)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(LFIE R EE
Joint ventures - WG] (9,967) -
Associates Gl/NE] 1,805 1,934
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A R 8 6 14,254 47,780
Income tax expense FiS B2 9 (7,372) (6,920)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRE 6,882 40,860
Attributable to: LA &7 G
Owners of the Company ZINNEIEZ =N 6,676 41,392
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R 2 206 (532)
6,882 40,860
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 7 BIZBREZRER A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EaERER
OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic A 1.01 cents#&{ll  7.50 cents (Il
Diluted BE 1.01 cents &l 7.50 cents &l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEBRAXR

Year ended 30 June 2016

HE2016F6A30HIEFE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 6,882 40,860
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HttZEWBA(BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBREFRSES
to be reclassified to profit or loss BEOEMEERA
in subsequent periods: (E518) -
Exchange differences on translation of 37 E G N EFEEVEE 3, =58
foreign operations (1,274) 5
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ S RHEMZEKA,
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX  (f&18) » fIRR%iE (1,274) 5
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRE2EBALEE
FOR THE YEAR 5,608 40,865
Attributable to: AT &7 G
Owners of the Company RARHEEA 5,476 41,397
Non-controlling interests eI AR R A 132 (532)
5,608 40,865
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BARR R
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - R MRS 12 38,416 27,027
Goodwill kS 13 32,755 28,086
Other intangible asset HihmpaE 14 333 -
Investments in joint ventures REBRAINKE 15 23,814 -
Investments in associates REEE N RIHIRE 16 2,209 1,862
Held-to-maturity investments BERIERRE 17 26,721 -
Available-for-sale investments —H,\Hj’%}xéf 18 9,007 3,510
Deferred tax assets EETIBE & 29 1,157 1,242
Deposits RER 21 16,281 5,011
Total non-current assets MBI EELTE 150,693 66,738
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 19 6,907 5216
Trade receivables 2 Z WA 20 47,450 45,057
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRRIE - RFE & KEAD
other receivables FEU ZhE 21 9,434 9,784
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEGTAERN
profit or loss TRIEE 22 2,026 2,722
Held-to-maturity investments BEE Jﬁﬁ&é{ 17 30,007 -
Due from associates FE IS Bt & N B AR 23 593 3,562
Due from related companies FEUS BEEE  B) A 24 - 31,925
Tax recoverable CIRdEE A 446 145
Pledged deposits EIRTFX 25 783 1,019
Cash and cash equivalents Be MEEEEY 25 261,299 83,477
Total current assets MEEERTE 358,945 182,907
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Trade payables B o ENIE 26 47,291 41,058
Other payables, accruals and Hib EARIE - TRRRER &
deferred income PRIEWTA 27 41,530 46,245
Due to associates FEfHHS 2 A A ,T)\IE 23 266 149
Due to related companies JE RN A 24 - 79,173
Due to a director FE— %é%, 28 = 6,769
Tax payable FERT R IR 7,838 8,238
Total current liabilities mBBERRE 96,925 181,632
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 262,020 1,275
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 412,713 68,013
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

mEMBRRRT @
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEEF
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE 29 397 450
Provision B 30 1,718 1,372
Total non-current liabilities ERE B ELRRE 2,115 1,822
Net assets BEFR 410,598 66,191
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the  ERAFHEE AE(HER
Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 31 736 -
Reserves B 34 411,367 67,711
412,103 67,711
Non-controlling interests JEPEASRE RS (1,505) (1,520)
Total equity b e 410,598 66,191
Sun Yiu Kwong Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
b3 pan NEE
Director Director
4 EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e Em

# 8 2

Year ended 30 June 2016

BZE2016F6 A30RHIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
EARREAEE
Share-
Share  Capital based Exchange Non-
Issued  premium contribution ~ Other ~ payment Legal fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capital account reserve  reserve rejewé reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
WK
AE#
2R R i) At XM EE ERED g% 2R Bi
Ba  EEE it it i i i HE Gl B& 4%
Notes  HK$000  HK$000  HK000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000
W& TEr  Thn Thr Thr Thr ThAr TEr  Thr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(note 31) (note 34 (note 34)  (note 34)  (note 34)
(H&31) (WEE34 (W3 (M3 (W3
AtTJuly 2014 RO14ETA1H - - 28,726 51329 900 5 - 61576 14853 1017 149,553
Profitfor the year il - - - - - - - am a3 (532 40860
Other comprehensive EREfpZERA:
income for the year:
Exchange differences on ERNEBMESZE
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZANALH
for the year - - - - - - 5 41,392 41397 (53 40865
Deemed distributiontothe %8 AN REERHEER
then shareholders - - - (5139 - - - - 5139 - (5139
Capital injection by FrRiER A
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 4 4
Dividends payable to EfERRERS
the then shareholders 10 - - - - - - - (0893 (70893 - (70893
Dividends paid/payableto 2t /B3R
non-controlling interests ERRE - - - - - - - - - 2009 (2009
Transfer toretained profits ~ BAZREHE - - - - (900) - - 900 - - -
At30 June 2015 and RBECANER
at 1July 2015 1557518 - - 2,72 - - 5 5 38,975 61,711 (15200 66191
Proftfor the year ERE E E E - - - S 6616 6816 M6 6882
Other comprehensive loss ~ EREMZANA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BANERNELZE
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - (1,200) - (1,200) (74)  (1,274)
Total comprehensive income ~ FR2ENAER
for the year - - - - - - (1,200 6,676 5476 132 5,608
Acquisitions of subsidiaries ~ WEEHEL A % - = = = = = = = - 389 3,895
Acquisitions of non-controlling  MEEFE kiR
interests 37 - - - - - - - - - (3,794)  (3,794)
Capital contribution by NG RaTATE
non-controlling interests FEREETA
upon incorporation of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends paid/payableto  Eff /B EEREERE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (220) (220)
Final 2015 Dividend N157ER S 10 - - - = = = - (30,0000 (30,000) - (30,000
Issue of shares e 31 8 = - - - - - - 8 - 8
Capitalisation issues of shares ~ FTRRHERIEST
upon listing 3 544 (544) - - - - - - - - -
Issues of shares upon listing ~~ EI&RA%AT 31 184 378,856 - - - - - - 379,040 - 379,040
Share Issue expenses Ri%aHEY - (25,083 - - - - - - (25,083 - (25,083
Equity-settled share option MBS EEERERH
arrangements 32 - - - - 7,546 - - - 7,546 - 7,546
Waiver of amounts due tothe  $E R ERZLERAA
then ultimate holding company  RALRE-4%Z
and amajor beneficial ERRRAE
shareholder of the Company - - 7,405 - - - - - 7,405 - 7,405
Transfer to legal reserve EBRTETRE - - - - - 583 = (583) - - -
A3 June 2016 R2016%6 A8 T 20 A3 & 7546 S8 (1495F 15068 412103 (1505) 410598
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$411,367,000  * S EEIR P B35 411,367,00078 7T (2015 4F 67,711,000

(2015: HK$67,711,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 30 June 2016

BZE2016F6A30HIFE
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PiEE FE T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25 A1 A P 14,254 47,780
Adjustments for: FNFIRIEAE
Share of profits and losses of associates /R B A ) FE M & 18 (1,805) (1,934)
Share of profits and losses of joint EiEa&ERrMEKERE
ventures 9,967 -
Gain on disposal of investment in an HERBERNFNIEE Y
associate & 5 = (2,990)
Interest income FBUA 5 (430) (46)
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEERIHRE
investments Z A BIA 5 (413) -
Interest income on available-for- Al ERE 2 F BULA
sales investments 5 (29) -
Gain on bargain purchase of HEEWEME AR 2 Wa
subsidiaries 5 (3,499) -
Dividend income from financial assets BAREEG ABEN
at fair value through profit or loss SREECKREBA 5 (98) (1,022)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial BARBETAERZD
assets at fair value through CREEZAAEBE
profit or loss BB (as) 6 696 (561)
Depreciation e 6 9,611 6,028
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 R R IE M 6 107 52
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEKIEE
plant and equipment BH 2 EE 6 336 4
Equity-settled share option s E R ER
expense 6 7,546 -
36,243 47,348
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERd, (1) (1,522) 393
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e FIEE N (1,670) (3,351)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TETRRIE - (REE® A IE
deposits and other receivables WkER D (38 h0) 6,868 (2,731)
Increase in trade payables B N FRIEE 5,327 2,809
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, HibfEMFUE BIREA K
accruals and deferred income EIEWA G,/ (15,501) 6,522
Changes in balances with associates, net Bt & /A 545 54 & 8) )% 58 3,086 (1,058)
Cash generated from operations REEBELENIRS 32,831 49,932
Interest received BEFE 430 46
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNED (7,657) (5,686)
Overseas profit tax paid ERHEINTIE (799) -
Net cash flows from operating RETHEENRASRE
activities T 24,805 44,292
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERESRER®

Year ended 30 June 2016

BZE2016F6 A30RHIEFE
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBNRESKE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from financial assets ZA R BET AEBZEL
at fair value through profit or loss TRLEEREWMA 98 1,022
Interest income on held-to-maturity B EIERE 2 FBWA
investments 413 -
Interest income on available-for-sale AHEEERE 2 FEWA
investments 29 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate ~ H&ERZ A T B P15 I8 = 11,470
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W gg WJ?E? 36 (4,557) 3,609
Changes in balances with joint 7Ziﬁﬁ* """"" B
ventures, net (34,010) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H &% A M BET ABRH
at fair value through profit or loss EHMEENSHIE = 618
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - FERXEER
plant and equipment FriS3kIE 75 -
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE  BENMREER
and equipment (16,414) (21,590)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investments (5,506) -
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BEE#HAZEIH 2K E (56,782) -
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BB ¥ - HiE MRIEER
property, plant and equipment X RZB S (6,280) (538)
Increase in pledged time deposits AR E BATF FE N 236 10
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged RESERREIEIE AHBA
deposits with original maturity of more  ={ A 2 #EH1FK
than three months when acquired (38 hn) (50,000) 1,625
Dividends received from associates ’9‘%%@ Al RBUA 1,458 2,156
Net cash flows used in investing REEEEANRERE
activities HEE (171,240) (1,618)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZDNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares B H B ET1SFRIE 379,048 -
Share issue expenses %%HXT’\%FH (25,083) -
Advances from related companies )N E 163,140 143,456
Repayment to related companies B A T,T)\ (208,108) (160,979)
Increase/(decrease) in an amount e — %ﬁ%w)\
due to a director i Cd (1,644) 6,769
Capital injection by non-controlling ES e §$&§
interests 2 4
Dividends paid to the then shareholders EH#‘H%J&%% 8 (30,000) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling [=ARE i
interests (2,009) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEEBHEE(FAH
financing activities REeREFHE 275,346 (10,750)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBRERER®

Year ended 30 June 2016

BZE2016F6A30HIFE
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FE T FAT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEWENFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 128,911 31,924
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN DE R E) 2 B (FRE)
changes, net (1,089) 5
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRELIREEEY
beginning of year 83,477 51,548
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASMREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 211,299 83,477
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BR&RBREZEMEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re NIBTER 161,199 82,684
Non-pledged deposits with original REEEREEA LR
maturity of less than three months =18 Rz S\ E TR
when acquired 50,100 793
Non-pledged deposits with original RESRREIEIH AHBA
maturity of more than three months =@ Az EIK T HF
when acquired 50,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in 4R & B AR R AFIEH 2
the consolidated statement of HehIREEEY
financial position 25 261,299 83,477
Non-pledged deposits with original RESEREE R ABiB
maturity of more than three months =18 Rz S\ E TR
when acquired (50,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the &I &R EXRANFIHZ
consolidated statement of cash flows WERBESEEY 211,299 83,477
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 755 3 % B =
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 1404—
1408, 14/F., Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) was principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

° medical imaging and laboratory services; and
o other auxiliary medical services.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

NEIREBER @)

YD RER

RRBZEEZMBARIEEATER :

follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interest attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
EEMRAR 3 ek A 4t B BRITEE/
NEEB REXBE AfRE  AQREGESLS  EEXR
2016 2015
UMP Healthcare China Limited* Cayman Islands/Hong Kong US$0.01 100 100  Investment holding
UMP Healthcare China Limited* HEHS B4 0.013%7T REER
UMP Healthcare Limited* Cayman Islands/Hong Kong US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
UMP Healthcare Limited* Hers 5% 0.01%7T REER
AP Care Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Provision of medical and
laboratory services
AP Care Limited Ak 10,0008 7T REERE R BRRS
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 100  Provision of dental
services
FERETHNOBRAT &5 1T R RRTS
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of electronic
medical claims
submission platform
and information
technology services
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited e 10078 7T REUETRRBERE
FakiEesmRS
Hong Tai Polyclinic Limited* Macau MOP25,000 100 100 Provision of medical
services
FRERARLNR* R 25,0002 # REERERG
ProCare Medical Imaging & Hong Kong HKS$1 100 - Provision of medical
Laboratory Centre (Kowloon) imaging and
Limited* laboratory services
LEBEZER BRI L(LE) B BT REBBEZEK
BRRAR" ERERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R MY aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PEIREBER &)
B A TG R ()

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interest attributable to

Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
TEA AR ST, A 3t B BRITEE/
NRER REXMH AfRA  AAREEERLS 0 EEXRK
2016 2015
UMP Corporate Administration Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
Services Limited and provision of
company secretarial
services
HABBEERBERAR ) 1008 7T REZRERHAR
WE R
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Provision of dental
services
BEBBIRPLERAR B 10,0007 7T R RHRTS
UMP Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BaBBIMREERAR EB 28T REZR
UMP Health Centre Management ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Investment holding
Limited
HEBBRETOERBRAR  BAE 28T REZR
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and
provision of medical
services
BEBBROBARAHF B 10078 7T REZRIRHBE
PR
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical
Limited services
BaBBHL(BE)BRLAF ) 1008 7T REBBERE
UMP Medical Centre Management Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100 100  Provision of medical
() Limited services
BEBBPLER(EZ)BRAR &E 20,000,000 7T REBBERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued
ordinary/
registered

NEIREBER @)

B~ RE R ()

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
TEM AR ST, A 3t B BRITEE/
NRER REFMH EfRE  AQFREGESLS  EEXR
2016 2015
UMP Medical Centre Management  Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100 100 Investment holding and
(1) Limited provision of medical
services
BaBBPLER(FZ)BRAR BE 20,000,0007% 7 REZREIRHBE
MR
UMP Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of medical
(New Territories) Limited services
BEBBRLGR)ERLE e 28T REERRS
UMP Professional Management Hong Kong HK$50,000,012 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited provision of corporate
healthcare solution
BaBBEXERERAF &5 50,000,012/ ¢ REZR L RHUOESE
BREEAT R
UMP Professional Management Macau MOP10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
(Macau) Limited* provision of corporate
healthcare solution
UMPEXER (CRPI) AR AR B 10,0002 P9 REFBRRIRHEER
BRREBATR
UMP Specialist Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of medical
Limited services
BAaBBENBRPLOERLAR BE 28T REBERRS
UMP TCM Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Provision of medical
services
BeBEBEhEEERAH e 10,000 7T REEERS
United Medical Services (China) British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 100  Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
United Medical Services (China) REBRELES/BE 100%TT BEER
Limited*
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PEIREBER &)
B A TG R ()

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interest attributable to

Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
SRR A it B BRILE/
NGRS REEME HEfBRA  AAREGERLEN  EEER
2016 2015
I RRBRREIEEMARAT People’s Republic of China US$1,000,000 100 100  Provision of healthcare
("PRC")/Mainland China management
ItRRRERERAERDR hE AR ([HE]) 1,000,000% 7T REtERREER
S REE
FERRREFRREERAE PRC/Mainland China RMB3,500,000 100 Investment holding
("Shanghai Eaton Consulting”)*@ and provision of
healthcare services
EERRREFARBERLF T RRE AR REER KR
([ EERRREZER]) 3,500,000 7T BRRERS
R EMZHEREAT PRC/Mainland China RMB3,500,000 100 Provision of healthcare
(“Shanghai Eaton Clinic”)*"® services
EEREMZHARAR B KEE AR REUERRERY
([ EB1aRPIZER ) *e 3,500,000 7T
R RBRMZ AR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB3,500,000 100 Provision of healthcare
("Beijing Eaton Clinic")*"® and medical services
IERBRFIZHERAR LN ARH REERRE R
([IERBERPIZE]) =0 3,500,000 7T BRRS
EBEBAEEMZ AR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 100 Provision of medical
services
PEBNEEMZHERAR " BB KE AR R ERRE
10,000,000 7T
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Hong Kong HK$8,900 76.4 Provision of day surgery
Centre Limited* and endoscopy
services
238 B FM R AREZEF L BE 8,900 7T REBEFIR
BRAR" NEERE RS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QARR&EEER @)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEATER (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interest attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
TEM AR ST, A 3t B BRITEE/
NRER REFMH EfRE  AQFREGESLS  EEXR
2016 2015
238 Specialist Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$10,000 60 60 Provision of medical
Limited services
BERBEHEPOARAF &5 10,0007 7T REBERE
Hirayanagi Shika Company Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 71.76 71.76  Provision of dental
services
FHIERBRAR EE 500,000 7T R RRT
Hong Kong ENT Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 50.5 50.5  Provision of medical

consultation and

surgical services

EREEGRTOBRAF EB 10,0007 7T REBFHABDRTMm
MR

Metro International Clinic Limited* Macau MOP100,000 69 69  Provision of medical
services

B EREMARAR P 100,000 2P REBERE

ProCare Medical Imaging & Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5  Provision of medical

Laboratory Centre Limited imaging and

laboratory services

LEBEZERBTOBRART B 10,0008 7T REBEZERERE
MR

UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90  Provision of dental
services

BaBBIMDL(FR)BRAR &R 1008 7T RETRIRTS

UMP Dental Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 82.35 82.35  Investment holding

BB MREBRAR ) 2,000,000 % 7T REZR

UMP Physiotherapy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 60 60 Provision of medical and
physiotherapy services

BAEBEBYRAETLOERAT B 10078 7T REBRRIDRERE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QARR&EEER @)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MWEATER (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interest attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
TEM AR L, A 3t B BRITEE/
R REXBE AftRE  AQFREGESLS  EEXR
2016 2015
UMP Tsim Sha Tsui Dental Centre  Hong Kong HK$10,000 87.65 87.65  Provision of dental
Limited services
BaBBIRBL (PH) ) 10,0007 7T R RRTS
BRAT

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ermnst &
Young global network.

30% equity interests of these subsidiaries are held on trust by a former
non-controlling shareholder on behalf of the Group. In the opinion of
the directors, through various contractual agreements entered into
between the Group and the former non-controlling shareholder, the
Group obtains 100% control over these subsidiaries. Accordingly, these
subsidiaries are accounted for as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Shanghai Eaton Consulting from Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise
Management Company Limited (“GZ Ruian”) for a cash consideration of
RMB5.1 million (equivalent to HK$6.2 million). On 1 January 2016, the
Group acquired the remaining 30% equity interests in Shanghai Eaton
Clinic and Beijing Eaton Clinic from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB3.2 million (equivalent to HK$3.8 million).
Further details of these acquisitions are included in notes 36 and 37 to
the financial statements.

These subsidiaries were newly incorporated/established during the year.

Except for UMP Healthcare China Limited and UMP
Healthcare Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %55 R 2R B B

30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

2.1

2.2

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Pursuant to the reorganisation in connection with the Listing
(the "Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 30
December 2014. As the Reorganisation involved the transfer
of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group to new
holding companies and has not resulted in any change of
economic substances, accordingly, for the purpose of these
financial statements, these financial statements has been
presented as a continuation of the existing companies using
the pooling of interests method as if the Reorganisation had
been completed from the beginning of the earliest period
presented. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed
“History and Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 17 November 2015.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2015 include the results and cash flows of all companies
now comprising the Group from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the subsidiaries first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

2.2

EAREHEE

RiFE FmABOEA(EA]D AR
BIA2014F12 A0BE K AR EBMET
B ARIRIER AR - ARELS LG
NEB IR FE T W B A B8 E T i
BRAR B EEREMNEELEE
g Al RSB RERNE © %5
B RERECERAESAIEAEARER
RIZEERY  MUBHERTR2Y &
FHRBYITK - EEZFHBEIINA
NEBEA2015F 11 B1I7EHNBRE
BIEsRER] —fikh [E4] K-

AEBHZE2015F6 A30H L FEME
AR 2EARAER  BRZ2HEK
Rerheak BREASERNETHE
REIEMEYMNR T A EZENE
REIERWERZESE B (LEBHRRE
ERE)NEERBERE °

EREE

AP BHRRERRBESAMOS RN
MFTEERRKEBM BREEL) (e
EEAMBRELER) (BEEHAHRE
EADMRE)  BAERAR S RAUMNE
BRARRPINWERERE - BRIRAR
BEFABENEREENETUAAR
EBEENATHRLEREIN - LI BER
RIBBELRAERRE - BEEH
S R RIAB T2 - MABE
BRI AERERZ T -
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.2 EHEE®

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 22 EHEE®

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income s reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.3 CHANGES IN DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock
Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial information
with reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.

2.3

REEE(E)

il 3= B S B BR 7R | SR At ) = TE 22
REZ-HAEZALBELZS  BREE
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative'

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
s Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group

6 The original effective date has been deferred/removed and a new
effective date of the amendments will be determined at a future date,
and early application of the amendments continues to be permitted.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 24 EEMEBERERZEBMB

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 July 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2016.

WEZER (@)
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 24 EEMEBERERZEBHMHE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. An entity must
identify the promised goods and services within the
arrangement and determine which of those goods and
services are separate, or distinct, performance obligations
with the following steps (i) identify the contract(s) with the
customer; (ii) identify the performance obligations in the
contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract; and (v) recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligations. Under HKFRS 15,
appropriately identifying the entity’s performance obligation
in a contract is fundamental to the determination of whether
the entity is acting as a principal or an agent. That is, in order
for the entity to conclude it is acting as the principal in the
arrangement, the entity must determine that it controls the
goods or services promised to the customer before those
goods and services are transferred to the customer. After an
entity identifies its promise and determines whether it is the
principal or the agent, the entity recognises revenue when it
satisfies that performance obligation.

The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
guantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 24 EEMEBERERZEBMB

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. For
lessee accounting, the standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessor accounting, the standard substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 July
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss
and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items that
will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the
statement of financial position and the statement of profit or
loss. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
July 2016. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A 30H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERHEE

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2016F 6 A30H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain equity investments and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 EE=S:THEHME 9
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) DNREEFTEE)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or AARBEAENETERRPIBEN
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within FHEEMBEDNERBAABENE
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the FEBANKREEBER £ XA
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value AEEEHADHE

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—E — ERNERMETHEREESK
active markets for identical assets or BENRE (KFEK)
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the £ — ERYUAnEBEITETES
lowest level input that is significant to the AN HEEZ2HNEER
fair value measurement is observable, either o ZRRKELYEREES
directly or indirectly BRI

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the FZE — EREARBEIEFYES
lowest level input that is significant to the AOREELE  ZHERE
fair value measurement is unobservable 28 72T A BH

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial HRNBEETEERPERNEEMNE

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines % AEBEERES BB E TG

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the SERTER RS EHLE R (EREA
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest NEEREFEBEANZEELRE) -

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%
equipment

Medical equipment 20%

Computer equipment and software 33.3%

Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised using the straight-line basis over the
useful economic life of 3 years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for "Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %55 R 2R B B
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit
or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of profit
or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is recognised in the statement profit

or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the
lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the
expected costs to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period using estimated cash flows and an
equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated over the term
of the operating lease. The estimated future costs of
reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the estimated
future costs are added to or deducted from the cost of the
corresponding asset.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the provision of healthcare solution services, upon
the provision of the relevant services or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the fixed-fee service
contracts (including annual retainer and capitation
plans). Further explained in the accounting policy for
"fixed-fee service contracts” below;

(b)  from the rendering of medical and dental services, upon
provision of the relevant services;

(c)  from the provision of administrative support services,
upon rendering of services;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®w)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed-fee in
which the level of services depends on uncertain future events
(the "Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are in general of one to two years and the Group
receives the related service fees upfront. The contract
customers cannot recover the service fee upon the expiration
of the respective fixed-fee service contracts period
irrespective of whether the plan members utilised any services
under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed to
ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests, current
best estimates of future contractual cash flows under the
Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the statement of profit or loss by
establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
and consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees and
consultants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions are
with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme operates in a similar way to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group's
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing employer
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial

transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 EES5BERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Fixed-fee Service Contracts

The Group enters into certain Fixed-fee Service Contracts in
which the Group uses its own medical and dental centres,
staff and other resources, including affiliated clinics and
affiliated service providers, to provide healthcare services
covered by the contracts. The level of services to be rendered
under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts is uncertain and
depends on uncertain future events. The Group has to
consider whether the cost of meeting its contractual
obligations to provide the services under the Fixed-fee
Service Contracts may exceed the revenue it will receive and
the probability of such risk (the “Risk”), when assessing the
pricing and provisioning for such contracts.

The frequency and severity of the Risk are affected by many
factors, including, inter alia, the health status and awareness
of the persons covered by the Fixed-fee Service Contracts
and that of the general public in Hong Kong, the outbreak/
potential outbreak of any epidemic, climatic changes, the
duration of those contracts (which in general are of short
duration), as well as a diversity of social, industrial and
economic factors. The risk associated with such factors
(including any undue concentration thereof and the
probability of the occurrence of certain events affected by
them) on the actual utilisation ratio for individual contracts is
the key source of uncertainty that needs to be estimated.

The Group manages the Risk through periodic review of the
estimated and actual utilisation ratio of individual contracts
and considers such assessment in revising the relevant fee
schedules and whether or not to renew such Fixed-fee Service
Contracts.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from provision of healthcare services

The Group provides clinical healthcare services and corporate
healthcare solution services to its contract customers. The
healthcare services can broadly be further categorised into
two types, that is, out-patient services; and in-patient services.

In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or
as an agent in the provision of healthcare services and
corporate healthcare solution services requires judgement
and consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances. The
Group is acting as a principal when it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with rendering of
services and report revenue on the gross inflows of economic
benefits. In evaluation of the Group acting as a principal, the
Group considers, individually or in combination, whether the
Group has (i) the primary responsibility for providing goods or
services to the customers or for fulfilling the order; (ii)
inventory risk before, during or after the customer order; (iii)
latitude in establishing prices, either directly or indirectly; and
(iv) bears the customer’s credit risk on the receivable due
from the customer. Conversely, the Group is an agent when it
does not have exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the rendering of services and report revenue
on the net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net of the
amounts collected on behalf of the principal). Having
considered the relevant facts and circumstances, the directors
consider that the Group is exposed to significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of out-patient services
while the Group is not exposed to significant risks and
rewards associated to the in-patient services. Accordingly, the
Group is acting as a principal for the out-patient services and
the related revenue is presented on a gross basis while the
Group is acting as an agent for the in-patient services and the
related revenue is presented on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2016 was
HK$32,755,000 (2015: HK$28,086,000). Further details are
given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a loan/receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment
of receivables arising from the inability of its customers and
debtors to make the required payments. The Group makes its
estimates based on, inter alia, the ageing of its receivable
balances, customers’ and debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers and debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be
higher than expected, the Group would be required to revise
the basis of making the allowance and its future results would
be affected.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them. The Group measures
the cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date determined using a binomial
model. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair
value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 32 to the financial statements.
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate
healthcare solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services”) segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check and other auxiliary

services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax except that
interest income, other income and gains, and share of profits
and losses of associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, other intangible asset,
investments in joint ventures and associates, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale investments and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

4,
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended/as at 30 June 2016

.

4. KED

HER @)

HZE2016FE6 A30HIEEE/
201656 A30H

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
MENTFRE
TEERRR fRREE R
iR T SRR R RR 7S &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FET
Segment revenue: DEBUA
External sales SNEREEE 292,241 163,779 456,020
Intersegment sales DEFEHE 871 63,897 64,768
293,112 227,676 520,788
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of 7 2B e 85 5 1 8
intersegment sales (64,768)
Revenue A 456,020
Segment results DEELE 30,332 19,918 50,250
Reconciliation: AL
Interest income A EHA 872
Other income E g A 4,118
Unallocated gain RO AeU R 3,499
Share of profits and losses of:  FE{L FIJ;E & 518 -
Joint ventures & NT (9,967)
Associates Hl/NE] 1,805
Corporate and other TEREMRS RS
unallocated expenses (36,323)
Profit before tax E I EIRAIbE 14,254
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFITER @)
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2016 (Continued) HE2016F6A30BILEE/

A2016F 6 308 (&)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
mENE PR
SEBEERRE 8% PR B8 R
R T SRR REIRTE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
Segment assets DEEE 146,660 77,674 224,334
Reconciliation: SBEG -
Elimination of intersegment 43 5B i & U 20 4 6
receivables (33,499)
Corporate and other PEREMRSIEE
unallocated assets 318,803
Total assets BB E 509,638
Segment liabilities PHEE 71,140 59,142 130,282
Reconciliation: A -
Elimination of intersegment %3 4B sl &~ F K 84
payables (33,499)
Corporate and other TEREMARDEEE
unallocated liabilities 2,257
Total liabilities FEN=Ei 99,040
Other segment information: Hi 5 EpEH :
Depreciation e 968 8,643 9,611
Capital expenditure* BARRX * 3,690 23,145 26,835
Loss on disposal of items of &Y « HE &RE
property, plant and HE®WEBE
equipment - 336 336
Write-off of trade receivables M5 E 5 E Uz I8 55 52 107
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BABYBIEAEDE WMENLNRE B85
equipment including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries/ REWEHRBLAR EBZARERGAEED
business and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and ¥ WMELAREBEEMEMANZRSE -
equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended/as at 30 June 2015

X 4

4. KED

HER @)

EHZE2015F6 A0 IEEE
201546 A30A

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EIRSFOEY =523
b ERE R FoYAN
B RTT R AR RIEIRTS A&T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT
Segment revenue: DEUA -
External sales SNEREEE 271,823 129,214 401,037
Intersegment sales DEREISHE 775 60,295 61,070
272,598 189,509 462,107
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment % %3 $4 & K $4
sales (61,070)
Revenue WA 401,037
Segment results D EREE 25,706 16,446 42,152
Reconciliation: SEED -
Interest income F B UL A 46
Other income E g A 4,331
Unallocated gains Kol 3,551
Share of profits of associates  FE{L B A &) F 1,934
Corporate and other EREMRS RS
unallocated expenses (4,234)
Profit before tax B FR AT ) 47,780
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RBEFIER (@)
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2015 HE2015F6A30BILFE
R2015F 6 A30H
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
B OEY=E 2523
EBERERRE B R 28
fR T 2R AR TS IRIERTS a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FAT FA
Segment assets DEEE 143,498 72,445 215,943
Reconciliation: SEED -
Elimination of intersegment 3 &[] & I FR K 88
receivables (17,571)
Corporate and other EREMRSEEE
unallocated assets 51,273
Total assets BEE 249,645
Segment liabilities iR =N 68,963 48,122 117,085
Reconciliation: AL
Elimination of intersegment 43 B i JE 1~ UK 85
payables (17,571)
Corporate and other rERAEMRSEEE
unallocated liabilities 83,940
Total liabilities BEaE 183,454
Other segment information: Hfth 5 HEH :
Depreciation e 553 5,475 6,028
Capital expenditure* B * 1,480 21,318 22,798
Loss on disposal of items of ~ HEWZE - HE M&HE
property, plant and HEWER
equipment - 41 41
Write-off of trade receivables  #fi$48 5 fE Yy 7018 52 - 52
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARXBREABEDE BERREKE B7EF
equipment including additions from the acquisition of subsidiaries and REWERBRARZABERBEEYE - K
deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and equipment. EREZEREMENNIRSE -

BABKEEARLDR /2016 FFK




Notes to the Financial Statements

Br IS MR MR

30 June 2016
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDIER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information b 35 &
During the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group REVZE20165F 220156 A30H IEFE
operates within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, AEFENKEEBR =ZE2RMNRE
Macau and Mainland China. Approximately 91% of its revenue B CORPFINABIR D IBETT - KNEBEL)
was generated in Hong Kong and approximately 90% of its NBHIUWAEERE S + #990% 1) IER
non-current assets and capital expenditure were located/ HEEREABAIMR " BERES -
incurred in Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical Eiy - WEZ DR BN EP WA K
information in respect of revenue from external customers IERENE EFTE b BRI E B R o

and locations of non-current assets is presented.

Information about major customers FEEFER

Revenue from two major customers which accounted for 10% MAEEEAENEFPRECEEERE
or more of the Group's revenue from the Corporate BRI B 10% 3k DA _E B
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers segment ZFEZFPHWALNT :

is set out below:

2016 2015

2016 2015 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FBT

Customer A ARPF 60,036 49,587
Customer B BEF N/A & A * 28,057

Less than 10% of the Group's revenue from the Corporate Healthcare * EAREEREHNTFIRH S EBRREAR
Solution Services to Contract Customers segment. 77 RIRIE D EBEIULA L 10% ©
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the aggregate of the gross amounts

WA - E AU A K W o 7 R
WA SR PIBHIR B b X BRI ARIR T

% K i PR B R AR 2 AR 75 T © MR B FE ISR
TR MR ©

received and receivable from third parties for the provision of
corporate healthcare solution services and clinical healthcare =hAm
services during the year.

WA~ B AR M gs DA an T

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff5E FHET FAT
Revenue WA
Provision of corporate healthcare MENEFREEHEE
solution services to contract (REEER R 7 RARTS
customers:
Medical services BEERS 276,138 255,505
Dental services TR 16,103 16,318
Provision of clinical healthcare TR R E B RERS
services:
Medical services B2 R AR 7% 117,258 86,095
Dental services FRRTE 46,521 43,119
456,020 401,037
Other income and gains Higg A R s
Administrative support fees THRZEHER 2,292 2,241
Bank interest income AT SN 430 46
Interest income on held-to- BEEIHRE 27 B WA
maturity investments 413 -
Interest income on available-for-sale 7] it HERE 7 F B WA
investments 29 -
Dividend income from financial assets IZ AR BETAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREENREBA 98 1,022
Fair value gains on financial assets BRASREEFAEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREENAABEMS - 561
Gain on bargain purchase & (B s 36 3,499 -
Gain on disposal of investment in HERBERARIMNIEEZ
an associate e - 2,990
Others HAth 1,728 1,068
8,489 7,928
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRTBEATFE
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBNBRBEAABELING (AT
(crediting): PIFIBIER
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE F#&xT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration IZE BN & 2,061 1,040
Cost of inventories consumed BRETFEKA 17,585 15,898
Cost of services rendered ERHEREK A 258,398 234,351
Depreciation e 9,611 6,028
Employee benefit expense (including 1 B FIF X (BEEEH
directors’ remuneration (note 7))": (fzE7))" -
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R BEN&
other benefits HAER 71,485 62,967
Equity-settled share option R A E B
expense 6,798 -
Pension scheme contributions RIKEBET BRI
(defined contribution schemes)* (FEEEHEHIETE)D 4,015 2,813
82,298 65,780
Equity-settled share option expense  IAKES A B R B A HERT 2
(including employees and (BEEEREXEER)
professional consultants) 32 7,546 -
Foreign exchange differences, net &5 =% (CFE) 124 705
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEW¥ « K= L& E
plant and equipment HA ZBE 336 41
Listing expenses EHEA 16,376 1,425
Minimum leases payments under EHE 2 RIRFAAR K
operating leases 30,536 19,723
Write-off of trade receivables HisHE 5 e k08 107 52
Impairment of amounts due from PR &N B B R E
associates 23 1,687 959
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial L AR EBEFTAETZHN
assets at fair value through TRMEENAAEE
profit or loss &iE () 696 (561)
* Inclusive of employee benefit expense of HK$3,631,000 (2015: Nil) paid/ * RRBBERBEN ENAEBESHE
payable to the Group’s employees for the rendering of professional B8 & I B = £ 453,631,000/ 7T (20154F :
services, which was classified as “Professional services expenses” in the L) EREGBRRPEEER [EXREE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Ale
# As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no material forfeited contributions # R2016F 6 A30H © ALY &S AR
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future AT AR RS B RS 5 Bl 3R (2015
years (2015: Nil). F )
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEME
AEEEEMSRE ETRA - FBA
7 {65 1 55 383(1)(a) ~ (b) - () B () {6k ] &
BAT(RBEFFHER) A28
HEWT

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Fees we 1,101 -
Other emoluments: H A B -

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ 4% ~ 2B R HMEF| 6,746 2,854

Performance related bonuses* TERIRMABEA* - 9,167

Equity-settled share option expense DRGSR cBRERS 6,222 -

Pension scheme contributions IRKEEHEIH R 256 258

13,224 12,279

14,325 12,279

* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined with reference to the Group's

performance for the relevant year.

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option schemes of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

* ARRETHRTEFTZTHLA  EARBA
SEEBFENEAETE

FA - ARBIRBEEBRETEIBLE T
EERAKBEIRHNORBAKRSE R TE
Pt - THFBEN B RERME
32°- ENBEBEMEBRRRPERNZL
EEBRBALEERNKOANEE M
RAFEFAMBREROESEIIFTAL
MEZWE 2 KE -

(a) BYFHITES
FRAENBULIIFATEFES W

during the year were as follows: T
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Mr. Lee Luen-Wai, John 885 JP* FEMB KL (shES  AFML)* 133 -
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sBsup*  FRREEA (w2 - 4 Fah1)* 133 -
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike* e AR ST 133 -
399 -

* Mr. Lee Luen-Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP * THBERENEHES X Fam+) -

and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 6 November 2015.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2015: Nil).

FERE & (RLEHWES A Fu+) R
BB ER2015F 11 B6REERT
BAANRNBLIERITES -

FRAGERNBLIFNTESTNE
fib Bl (20154F « £%) -
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2016 6 A30H
7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 7. EEME %
(b) Executive directors (b) #EMITE=E
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and other related  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
6 2HR  IRRER LBRGEZ KR
£ HfpEA T REXAHEX % EMaEg
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr Thr Th ThI ThI ThIL

2016 20165

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong* RRTEE 17 3,560 - 2,326 220 6,223

Ms. Kok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen” HEE %+’ 17 1,782 - 1,851 18 3,768

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick? CRERE! 17 - - 97 = 214

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael* S L 17 - - 97 = 214

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix' B Y 17 1,404 = 1,851 18 3,390

Mr. Jiang Tianfan® AN A 17 - - - - 17

702 6,746 - 6,222 256 13,926

2015 2158

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong RIS - 2280 6,195 - 20 8715

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen  $EE %+ - 574 2972 - 18 3564

- 2,854 9,167 - 258 12219

* Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was appointed as a director of the Company * FIRTE AR 201544 A 23BEZE AR
on 23 April 2015 and redesignated as an executive director and RIEE  R2015F 8 A9 BERE AEAQA
the chief executive of the Company on 29 August 2015. HITERRITHRAER -

A Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen was appointed as a director of A BEELTHR2014F 11 BSBEZEAEA
the Company on 5 November 2014 and redesignated as an RIEE  R2015F 8 A9 B ERTANITE
executive director on 29 August 2015. Fo

# Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar ¥ WRELE  BEXBRELE FRBEAERT
Chung, Felix and Mr. Jiang Tianfan were appointed as directors RNFEER2015F8 A 15HEZERETAR
of the Company on 18 August 2015 and redesignated as BE 0 R2015F8 AR ERERNITES -
executive directors on 29 August 2015.

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable EX . AEEREENXENEEHS

by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join VE A N AN 2= B 5 0 A 2N 2= B 14 1 HE E)

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss K VE A EEBL S (20154 « ) o

of office (2015: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director ERNEEEENESRSHETAME

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the tZHE (20154 « &) o

year (2015: Nil).
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8.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2015: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining two (2015: three) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

TEEEFMES

FRN - AAEaHMEEBIE=4 (2015
FWB)ES  BEMNHFIFBSN L
MHEE7 o FREBTMA (20155 : =4)
ARARBFESNIITHRAENESH
BiE B 2 FEEB oI T ¢

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #& - JEZBL R E g5 2,737 2,994
Discretionary bonuses BEIELT 190 190
Equity-settled share option expense L S BB X 576 -
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 29 81
3,532 3,265

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

BEHMEEERETREREEET
FIAERIE ABNT -

Number of employees

EEAZ
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T - 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 2 -
3

During the year, share options were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
her services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

TR BEEERIFESRIFTHAR
B B = B 0B Bl H (7 AR 5 B AR 7 X
- BRE - SHF BN M BHRAME
RMEE - AEBEE(REBEHANRLS
RER)NAREBELIREL AHEE
MAFEMERR BB S A Lt
FEZLFTREABRESHFMER ZH
B3 3R
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9. INCOME TAX 8

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

EENEHERFTFAEEBEENG
JERTL A 16.5% (2015 F : 16.5%) HY
PR RE -  Hiih @ ERTFEN
HEERAEBEAEERLENEMRNH
RREEBOIRITHEE -

2016 2015
2016 % 20154F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current — Hong Kong BEH— B8
Charge for the year FRHER 6,825 5,799
Overprovision in prior years BEFERAEREE (360) -
Current — Elsewhere EH — HAtb
Charge for the year FRHER 1,921 359
Withholding tax LR 140 626
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (1,131) _
Deferred (note 29) BIRE (MI5E29) (23) 136
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBHRZEE 7,372 6,920

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax
rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Company'’s
subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at the Group's

effective tax rate is as follows:

ZRER B AE AR BR B AT A B B AR E
MR (AR RBKRZ B E QR AERDE
RRAEAERE) A EONBFHENE
R R BB ERNT

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before tax B 25 A1 ) P8 14,254 47,780
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax LEE16.5% (20154 : 16.5%)
rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) A TE R AT AR 2,352 7,884
Difference in tax rates for specific B E A ARE R B S Hh R TS ML
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax BN EIEAMSH X
authority, net (368) (166)
Adjustment in respect of current LA R E B IE E AR
tax of previous periods (1,491) -
Profits and losses attributable to HBERNAI R E AT EGANE
joint ventures and associates N EE 1,346 (319)
Income not subject to tax BIANTIA 2 A (818) (1,584)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR[F 2 S H 4,687 452
Tax losses not recognised RERZMIBERE 2,378 -
Withholding tax in respect of dividend A& 8 (S8R5 2 T8 30FL
payments 140 626
Others Ef (854) 27
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate XN E BRI R+ &
ZHES 7,372 6,920
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B %55 R 2R B B

30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT THBT
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERRD RS
during the year:
Interim 2015 dividends 2015 HARG B - 70,893
Final 2015 dividend 2015 KR Ef% B 30,000 -
30,000 70,893
Dividend proposed after the end of WMEARERIRARE -
the reporting period:
Proposed final 2016 — HK2.0 cents EHR 2016 KR — BlRE @R
(2015: HK$30,000,000) 2.071l1 (20154 : 30,000,000
per ordinary share BIT) 14,720 30,000

11.

The proposed final 2016 dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary
share for the year is subject to the approval of the Company'’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Prior to the Listing, a final dividend of HK$30,000,000 in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2015 was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 2 November 2015.

The interim 2015 dividends of HK$70,893,000 were declared
by subsidiaries of the Company to the then shareholders
during the year ended 30 June 2015.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$6,676,000 (2015:
HK$41,392,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 661,092,896 (2015: 552,000,000) in issue
during the year, on the assumption that the Reorganisation
and capitalisation issue, as further explained in note 31 below,
had been completed on 1 July 2014.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 30 June 2016 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share amount presented. The Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 30
June 2015.

11.

FATRERRAEZE 2016 REIARE 2.0
BAZELE AR R RN T EREEF KX
e b -

R BE2015F6 308 IFFER
HA A% 530,000,000 7% 7T & 78 2 &) % R A
2015 11 A2 B8k -

HE2015F6 A30B IEFEARRD T M B
N A AE R T KR20155 5 A% B
70,893,000 7T °

AAREBEDBEARGE
R &R

SREXRBFGFEDERARRRE B
EHE A A AL F R FHE 6,676,000 7T
(20154 : 41,392,000/ ) * FAC 3
1TE BN T 15 81661,092,896% (2015
4 1 552,000,000 %) © REREHKLE AL
21T (R T XBIFE 31— S RFE) R 2014
F7H18 -

HRRITEZEBRER 27| MNERER
BFeETERBEIR  Wuwmpts
HEZE2016F6A30B IEFEL2YNET
REARBFSEELTARE - HE20156
A30BIEFE - RERN EETH#EN
BTG -
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B %55 R 2R B B

30 June 2016
2016 6 A30H
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold  and office Medical ~ equipment Motor
improvements equipment  equipment and software vehicle Total
BE-
BE RER ERRE
WELE BAERE 2 BERB R## "E &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAT TET TAT
30 June 2016 2016F6A30H
At 30 June 2015 and 201556 A30B &k
at 1 July 2015: 0156718 :
Cost AR 20,593 3,583 25,882 9,180 596 59,834
Accumulated depreciation e (10,161) (2,818) (12,938) (6,782) (108) (32,807)
Net carrying amount FEFE 10,432 765 12,944 2,398 488 27,027
At 1 July 2015, net of R2015%7R18
accumulated depreciation TNk 2TE 10,432 765 12,944 2,398 488 27,027
Additions NE 7,839 2,021 5,858 1,983 - 17,701
Disposals/write-off HE /HiR (203) (98) (100) (10) - (411)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/  EEMB RG]/
business (note 36) #1% (W3E 36) 1,048 (AN 2,598 150 - 3,907
Depreciation provided during & F;HeE
the year (3,544) (364) (4,130) (1,423) (150) (9,611)
Reclassification k] - = 76 (76) = =
Exchange realignment DR (44) (8) (101) (6) (38) (197)
At 30 June 2016, net of M201656 A30H
accumulated depreciation Sk 2:irE 15,528 2,427 17,145 3,016 300 38,416
At 30 June 2016 R2016F6A308 -
Cost A 26,297 4,879 34,046 10,902 546 76,670
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (10,769) (2,452) (16,901) (7,886) (246) (38,254)
Net carrying amount FHSE 15,528 2,421 17,145 3,016 300 38,416
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B IS MR M

30 June 2016
20166 A30H
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERRE®
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold  and office Medical  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment and software vehicle Total
fR18 -
HE RER BlXE
NERE BOERE  BRR Rt ] aFt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THET THEL THEL THEL

30 June 2015 201556 A30H
At 1 July 2014: R2014F7R1H

Cost A 14,389 3253 14,377 6,569 - 38,588

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (11,246) (2,763) (10,773) (5,823 - (30,605)

Net carrying amount REFE 3,143 490 3,604 746 - 7,983
At 1 July 2014, net of M2014%7 A1R

accumulated depreciation SNk RrE 3143 490 3,604 746 - 7983
Additions RE 9,422 424 11,965 2,641 - 24,452
Disposals/write-off HE /HiR (37) @ Q) s - (50)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  WEBHTE A 7 (B3t 36)

(note 36) - 57 - 17 596 670
Depreciation provided during € F&HENE

the year (2,096) (202) (2,624) (998) (108) (6,028)
At 30 June 2015, net of 201566 A30H

accumulated depreciation TNk 2T E 10,432 765 12,944 2,398 488 21,027
At 30 June 2015: 201566 A 308

Cost AR 20,593 3,583 25,882 9,180 596 59,834

Accumulated depreciation 2:ie (10,161) (2,818) (12,938) 6,782) (108) (32,807)

Net carrying amount REFE 10,432 765 12,944 2,398 488 27,027
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Br IS MR MR

30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H
13. GOODWILL 13. @&
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year REA) 28,086 24,399
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/business W BT R B, %15 (It 36)
(note 36) 4,669 3,687
At end of year RER 32,755 28,086
Gooduwill acquired through business combinations is allocated BTHRABRE BBEKAHELENR
to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing: By SR TR EEEA -
° Medical services cash-generating unit; and . BRSNS ELEEAN &
e Dental services cash-generating unit. o IMRBREELESBN -
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash PEESREEABMNNEERDEN
generating units is as follows: TEA ¢
Medical services Dental services Total
BRI TF R BR A mEy
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

20165 2015% 20164 2015%  2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
FRx FHET FRx FHET FEx FHET

Carrying amount of AEREE
goodwill 9,653 4,984 23,102 23,102 32,755 28,086
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B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

13. GOODWILL (Continued) 13. ﬁ%(%ﬁ)

The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating units
have been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are as follows:

TR eEABNMATKESRERIEGSE
AEEETTEMETS  HERSRE
BEMAERESTFHENMBREES
B ERRRESRBANERERTE
KT

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Medical services BIERK
Growth rate 1R 6.5% 10%
Discount rate IR =K 12% 12%
Dental services TR
Growth rate 18 £ 3 5% 10%
Discount rate Irif & 12% 12%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
taking into account the expected growth rate.

Growth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected
business, market development and economic condition.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group.

20164 6 4308 & 20154 6 A 30 H &t
HRSEASNUFRHERRERT KM
BREZ-EEBEEDNERATEBREZFAA
REMETRAETHEREBENHR

REWA — AREERERAHRBER
M EEETAE FE R AT — F ARG F
BRA - AEREREREX -

BRE —BRRRE2EEMEMNER
RMAETE - WRBEHNES  mi5%E
R MAS B AT DI AT

FrHE — FrERAEITIR R RER AT R

Bk 28 AR B B AN DA SF 19 (8 P
EMBRREMEIRER o
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B 755 3 % B =
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

15.

14. EEREE

Customer relationship

BEFBRE
2016 2015
2016 5 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Acquisition of a business (note 36) and Ui BE —TBE 1 M F R4 5%

balance at end of year (P 3£ 36) 333 -

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REEARWRE
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET THBT
Share of net liabilities EIEBEFE (10,196) -
Due from joint ventures JEWE B R EIFRIA 34,010 -
23,814 -

On 13 July 2015, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement (the "JV Agreement”) with Pinyu Limited (“Pinyu”)
to form a joint venture company on 50-50 basis and set up
medical centres in the Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei regions.
Under the terms of the JV Agreement, each of the Group and
Pinyu will advance interest-free shareholder’s loans in an
aggregate sum of no less than RMB50 million (equivalent to
HK$58 million) to the joint venture in stages. Pinyu is an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Phoenix Healthcare
Group Co. Ltd which is a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and owns as to 15% (2015: Nil) equity interest in the
Company as at 30 June 2016.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, these amounts are considered as part of the
Group's net investments in the joint ventures.
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B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REERARNRE @)

(Continued)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

AEBNAEERRMNFEBNOT

Percentage of effective interest

Place of BREREL
Particulars of incorporation/
issued shares/ registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
BHERM B
L R SRR 2HE RRE  AERE  EEREE
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited ~ Ordinary shares British Virgin 50 50 50  Investment holding
Islands/
Hong Kong
BEHABEERLF il ERERES/ REZR
Bk
UMP Medical Centre Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 50  Investment holding and
Management Limited provision of medical
services
BABBEDLOERBRAA sl BE REERRRREBERS
UMP Phoenix Management Ordinary shares British Virgin 50 50 50 Inactive
Limited Islands/
Hong Kong
UMP Phoenix Management LER RBRZHES/ PER
Limited Bk
T REBMAMZERAR Registered capital of ~ PRC/ 50 50 50  Provision of medical
RMB10,000,000 Mainland China services
ErBEMMZ AR AR AMARARE PE/HEAR RUBERY
10,000,0007T
It RBREMRELHARDLR  Registered capital of  PRC/ 50 50 50  Provision of medical
RMB10,000,000 Mainland China services
EREBHAREDHBRAR AMERARK PE/HEAR RUBERY
10,000,0007T

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited and its subsidiaries (the
"UMP Phoenix JV Group”), which are considered material

joint ventures of the Group, are engaged in the provision of

healthcare services in Mainland China and are accounted for

using the equity method.

AR ERARRBREERE -

REMEEERARARRAWE QA
((REHAAERE ) KRR AEEN
ERBERR  RPBEKELEERHER
BRTS ARG AR
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Br IS MR MR

30 June 2016

2016F 6 A30H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REEQATNERE @)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TEEVBEEKASASEEENTBHER
information in respect of the UMP Phoenix JV Group adjusted ME HEepgertENERE=E2EH
for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to SR H B A B ERA TSR EE Y EE -

the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

2016

20165

HK$'000

FHAT

Cash and cash equivalents ReELBREEED 29,988
Other current assets Hit e & E 11,543
Current assets MENEE 41,531
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,483
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other payables CRIBE  TEEESREMENFE (64,115)
Other current liabilities Hit e Al (2,209)
Current liabilities mEAE (66,324)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (83)
Net liabilities AafEEsE (20,393)

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in HAREEREERNFINERLYE
the joint ventures:

Proportion of the Group's ownership RNEBE AL 50%
Group's share of net liabilities of the joint ventures AEEEREEQARNEEFRE (10,196)
Due from joint ventures JEW & &R RIFRIE 34,010
Carrying amount of the investments REREE 23,814
2016

20164

HK$'000

FAT

Revenue WA 3,704
Interest income FBUA 28
Depreciation wE 129
Income tax expense FriSfim (224)
Loss for the year FNEE (19,934)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEREMEEEIE (459)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEEEEEE (20,393)
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B IS MR M

30 June 2016
20166 A30H
16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. REFE QN TINRE
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Share of net assets BB EFE 2,209 1,862
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BE N RIFABRAT
Percentage of ownership
interest attributable
to the Group
Particulars Place of ARBAERE AR
of issued incorporation L4
Name shares held and business 2016 2015  Principal activities
RHACRT MR K
A% RGFE e 20165 015F FEXH
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical
laboratory scanning
services
BB N REAOBR il Bk REUBRCRBHRY
Tiger Era Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services
BRERAF il BE R RABARY
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi) Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical
services
BEBBERL(BR)ERAA AR BB REHBRRY
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical
("UMP Grandiose") services
BEBETL(BHE)ERAR el B REBERY
(TBaZBHED
UMP Medical Centre (Yuen Long) Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical
services (ceased
operation in April 2016)
BABEDLO (TR BRAR il BE ﬁ@#ﬁﬂ&i%(#zméi
4ARIEEE)
UMP Eyecare and Optometry Centre Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical
("UMP Eyecare”) services and sale of
spectacles
HABBRHMREREXHLERA il BE RUBERBRHERR
(TBAIEM])
The above investments are indirectly held by the Company. LR EBRARARIREERE
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B 755 3 % B =
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The statutory financial statements of the above associates
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

On 9 January 2015, Perfect Life Asia Limited, an associate of
the Group, was disposed of to an independent third party for
a consideration of HK$11,470,000, resulting in a gain on
disposal of HK$2,990,000.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of associates, UMP Grandiose and UMP Eyecare,
because the share of losses of these associates exceeded the
Group's interests in these associates and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the
Group's unrecognised share of losses of these associates for
the current year and cumulatively were HK$703,000 (2015:
HK$599,000) and HK$2,526,000 (2015: HK$1,823,000),
respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not individually
material:

16. REEERTNERE @)
DS AR Y AR RELEES
T2k B 5 A B S BT sk 2k B R AR B
— B ATE

AEBE R 20159 1 A9 HLEA 11,470,000
THREBAEEHEAREBREED
MERABHEEBYE=H HEA
B U 25 A 2,990,000 7T °

AEEDKIEEREELBE QG (BE
EfERBARED MEE - BARMLL
EMENTNEBEEEBEAEBR LS
B NRIMED  MAEBEWEAES
ZIBENER -  AFERRFTAEER
WROEGEZEHERARNBES A
703,000 7T (2015 4F : 599,0007 7T ) &
2,526,000/ 7T (20154 : 1,823,000/ ) °

T&REFEZE 2015F 2 2016F 6 H30H
EFEMENMELIFER 2 AEEEAM
BERRMERMEERBE

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Share of the associates’ profit and total 4 Py fE {7 B 2 /2 &) KB

comprehensive income for the year 2B ALREE 1,805 1,934

Aggregate carrying amount of the AEB R E N RI%E REREE
Group's investments in the associates 2,209 1,862
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30 June 2016
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17. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

17. BEZEHKRE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Listed debt investments, at amortised cost T EKKRE » IRE K AT = 56,728 -
Analysed into: DA

Non-current portion FERNERER 1 26,721 -

Current portion BN EREB 1 30,007 -

56,728 -

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's held-to-maturity investments
represented listed debt investments with fixed maturity dates
between 2016 and 2022 and fixed interest rates ranging from
1.0% to 4.9% per annum (2015: Nil).

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

HE2016F6A30H  NREBEHEEE
BRIS BIE BB 2016 F & 2022 F [& T 2 Hf
HRNEMEBSRE EEFMNENT
1.0% 2 4.9% (20154 : f&) o

18. A HERE

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEFTIRRIERE © KA E 3,510 3,510
Listed debt investments, at fair value TTHEBEE BARBEE 5,497 -
9,007 3,510

As at 30 June 2016, the unlisted equity investments were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

R2016F 6 A30H » E LR ERE R
RARBBEYE  RAEAEAAEE
B2 BEER  ARFRESEREER
ABETERARNE - AEEEER
HigHELE -
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Pharmaceutical supplies BEME 6,907 5216

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EZ EWRE

2016 2015

2016 & 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Trade receivables B 5 W GIA 47,450 45,057

AEEBEGONEFPZEZRRERZN
EEAXET BRTFTEANEFPNEER
H—RR1ER HEB2EPALERES
A - BRANEFARBESEAR
€ o AEBENREREEBEFIAES
BRARIES]  WRAEEEHIEPT - B
A E BRI ERE - SRS

The Group's trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to monitor
and minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed

regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

BREEETRERN  AKEYEHMZ
FE 5 RNGARRRT A TR @K
HAEEIEA M - B HRUGIAETETS

bearing.
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RERERARNE HRKFIBERER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HHIRBRE D TAT -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within 1 month LR1EA 34,705 33,416
1 to 2 months 12 2M@A 6,073 7,652
2 to 3 months 2Z 318 A 2,646 2,694
Over 3 months Z 318 A 4,026 1,295
47,450 45,057
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EZ EWRE®)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

18 51 2% H [ 4% 4R 43 080 (B 7 & 5 FE Wk IR
ZIRERDHTIT

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FETT

Neither past due nor impaired FEHARRE 34,686 33,428
Less than 1 month past due BELR 1A A 6,092 7,653
1 to 3 months past due #HR1 = 3{E A 6,109 3,754
More than 3 months past due BEAZ R 31E A 563 222
47,450 45,057

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the trade receivables as at 30 June 2016 are trade
receivables due from related companies of HK$283,000 (2015:
HK$235,000), which have the same credit period as other
contract customers. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
("CTFE") is a major beneficial shareholder of these related
companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive
director of the Company is the Chief Executive Officer of
CTFE.

REMRBENE 5 RWRRE T I
EITHIRRREN S AT AR -

FHERRENE S BRFALES % H
AEEBERIRZHEENBILEFA
e REAEER  ARAEFRSH
RERERTEERE(L  AXEHER
DA R 2RKE - WEFIZFH
BIERERE -

MR2016F6 A30AME S EKFIERTE
R B B A B0 B 5 FE WRIE 283,000 7
70 (20154F : 235,0007870) * ;25 FIAK
EEREEMEYNEFHNER - AXE
TEBRAR(ARELRE]) EZEH
BARMEEESRE - AAGHITE
ERLEEFEBRANBLENTTIEE -
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. ENRE  RESRAEMER

RECEIVABLES i
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Prepayments Bt FIA 2,603 2,795
Deposits paid for the purchases of BEYE  BELEREEH
items of property, plant and RESD
equipment 6,281 538
Deposits RES 14,321 8,456
Other receivables H At fE IR 2,510 2,531
Deferred expenses BIERY - 475
25,715 14,795
Less: Portion classified as non-current B Bl D AIEREEEMNE D
assets (16,281) (5,011)
Current portion BN 9,434 9,784

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

b EEE KRB HSORE - BREER L
FEERNEY T B A B BT BRI B RRARD 8%
HRRE & KRB R R -

22. %’Aﬁ:ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EHRERE AR EEHE) 2,026 2,722

The above listed equity investments at 30 June 2016 and 2015
were classified as held for trading.
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B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

23. BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

23. EHBE QR ZEER

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Due from associates JFE LS B 2 X B RO 5,619 6,901
Impairment E (5,026) (3,339
593 3,562

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due
from associates are as follows:

HBENR 2 EHRAEREN  RERE
o

FE W & N RIS RER B EFNT

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

At beginning of year REA) 3,339 2,380
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRRREEE (Hixs) 1,687 959
At end of year WER 5,026 3,339

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts

& Wi B & 12 B SRR 2 R (B B i B FE LM

BIE & 5,026,0007% 7T (2015 4F : 3,339,000
B EHMBE BEFINEEES
5,136,00078 7T (20154F : 4,319,000/87T) -
REES AL BRE - Fit - FEHE

due from associates is a provision for individually impaired
amounts of HK$5,026,000 (2015: HK$3,339,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$5,136,000 (2015:
HK$4,319,000), of which the related debtors were in financial

difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered.

BEUR Bl #R D FE ML TR IR o
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B # ¥R R MY aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

Name of related companies

2k NCIR=E

24. S DR 2 EER

Relationship with the Group
BEAREE AR

GZ Ruian

BMIin%

Shanghai Eaton Consulting

LisRR R

Beijing Eaton Clinic

GZ Ruian was the immediate holding company of Shanghai Eaton
Consulting. Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, an executive director of
the Company, is the controlling shareholder of GZ Ruian.

B2 & DB RRREFANEEZERAF - RARNAITE
FRNBBERBEMNHRHERKR -

Shanghai Eaton Consulting was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GZ
Ruian. On 30 October 2015, Shanghai Eaton Consulting
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

FERRREEARENGZHZEMBAEF - R2015F 10 A
30H  DERRRAREEAXNSAEENZENBLRA -

Beijing Eaton Clinic is a 70%-owned subsidiary of Shanghai
Eaton Consulting. On 1 January 2016, Beijing Eaton Clinic
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

L RBRFIZE L RBRFIZE R LSRR REZRA70%ME AT - 1201645
TRA1H  ERRRFZHRREEENEEMB AR -
CTFE Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive director of the Company,
is the Chief Executive Officer of CTFE.
FAREBE RATHITERTELERERBARBRENITHRAAE
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Due from related companies B U B RS N B FR IR - 31,925
Due to related companies FEAT B A B FRIE = 79173
The balances with related companies were unsecured, HEM AT ZESEER  AHNBER

interest-free and fully settled during the year.

FRTHER -
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B 755 3 R B =
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 24. SR N TR 2 EER(E)

(Continued)

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies, in RAFIRITESHERBRIES  RAXEE
which Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Mr. ERNETELEEABETEESRESS
Tsang On Yip, Patrick, executive directors of the Company, HERBEMERIKER AT FIEFE R
are either a major beneficial shareholder or senior BEBATHEF EIBMNAIELREBE A
management, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the AI(WEEEFZERD)BOIFEENT

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong
Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Maximum Maximum
amount At 30 June amount
outstanding 2015 and outstanding
At 30 June during the at1July  duringthe At1 July
Name 273 2016 year 2015 prior year 2014
#2015 4F
6 H30H &

R20165F  FRES 2015%F  FAZS R2014F
68308 REBFE 7H1H REEFE 7H1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

THET THET FET FExT TERT

GZ Ruian Mm% - 1,473 1,473 1,473 -
Shanghai Eaton FERRREEA

Consulting - 1,851 1,851 1,851 -
Beijing Eaton Clinic 1t 5B P92 20 - 779 779 779 .
CTFE BREDTE - 985 985 985 -
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. ReRREEEYREFER

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

2016 2015

2016 % 20154F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Cash and bank balances B MBITER 161,982 83,703
Time deposits FHEAIF 100,100 793
262,082 84,496

Less: Pledged deposits (note) A IR (M) (783) (1,019)
Cash and cash equivalents BWERBESEEY 261,299 83,477

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to HK$17,689,000 (2015: HK$2,486,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Note: Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2016 is a deposit of
HK$500,000 (2015: HK$500,000) in connection with a surety bond issued
by a bank in favour of an independent third party for potential damages
of dental equipment.

Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2016 is another deposit
of HK$283,000 (2015: HK$519,000), in connection with a bank guarantee
issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing of a medical centre
of the Group.
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) EHERIR S MIRTTAE#2/517,689,000
77T (2015 4F : 2,486,0008 7T) « AR
WIEEmEHRAHMBEE KR - RIE
FrEE AR 0B SNE B IR 1 I A5 D -
EERMIEETERTE  AEEHEERB
EREEITINEERNRITELARE
EHMEE -

P17 FURERE BRI SRR )%
BRKHE - EEERFEROHEFR
£oH-BEZEATE REAEHE
MEERSBE RIS B ERA
EHITIE - 7758 R E HF R
R R AT BT R 38 403248 03R1T o

MizE: IR FERBRE—SRE-—RBTE—EBL
BB EFRSBEEELOBHORE
BT ZEFFN2016F6A308H
#4%8 A500,00075 7T (20154 : 500,000/ 7T) °

EETREE—FHE—RRTABEMRE
EAREE-RPIZHELORITEREBEN
TR ZEGFTR2016F 630 HNBRES
283,0007 7T (20154 : 519,00077T) °
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

26. B 5 ENIEA
RS HAR R 518 OB R E R A

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRI DT -
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFET FAET
Within 1 month A% 17,887 15,112
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 28,381 25,331
Over 3 months =EAANULE 1,023 615
47,291 41,058

BHRMNKIAREE B —RNIORA L

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on terms of 90 days. R
27. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 27. HttENR - FREARIEL

DEFERRED INCOME WA
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other payables E A FERT R 10,628 7,753
Accruals TEIRE A 4,981 16,274
Deposits received ERES 4,444 1,747
Deferred income MEFEW A 10,536 11,699
Due to non-controlling interests TER IEIE R RE S T TR 8,919 8,265
Deferred rental R & 2,022 507
41,530 46,245

HtEMNARNIBERER R E—RE
ERIEE - BAE QR IFER R R
BETEER 2 ABETEEEYR -

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand. The amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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30 June 2016

2016F 6 A30H

28. DUE TO A DIRECTOR 28. EIEENE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, was JEN—REE(FRIEE) 258 EE
unsecured, interest-free and was fully repaid during the year. R BB RRFERBHEE -

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EFLEBH
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FREIEHIBEERBEZEEHUOT

the year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax assets ELEBREELRE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available for
of related offsetting
depreciation  future taxable
allowance profits Total
BHBBRTE TARNEHRR
BEZNE FHHABNER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET
At 1 July 2014 R2014F7 A1H 741 345 1,086

Deferred tax credited/(charged) Wz A/ (F0k%)
to the consolidated statement FAEBRRMNELEHRE
of profit or loss during the year  (Fi{5£9)

(note 9) 249 (93) 156
At 30 June 2015 and at R2015F 6 A30A &
1 July 2015 201547 A1H 990 252 1,242

Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FWNzt A/ (%)
to the consolidated statement RABRRNELERIEA
of profit or loss during the year ~ (Fff3%9)
(note 9) (680) 1,254 574

At 30 June 2016 R2016%6A30H 310 1,506 1,816
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

29. IEIEFLIE (1)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ELEBBEEEEE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
of related business
depreciation combination Total
HLMEETE XBAMELN
BEZNE DAREERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2014 M2014F7 18 158 - 158
Deferred tax charged to ERNFANEABREEY
the consolidated statement of EEFTA (H3E9)
profit or loss during the year
(note 9) 292 - 292
At 30 June 2015 and M2015F 6 A308 &
at 1 July 2015 2015F7R18 450 - 450
Deferred tax charged to FRFFALGEBREN
the consolidated statement of ~ JEZEFIIE (FH5E9)
profit or loss during the year
(note 9) 551 - 551
Acquisition of a business (note 36) Ui fE— I 7% (Mi5E36) = 55 55
At 30 June 2016 R 2016F 6308 1,001 55 1,056

REJNEW ETEEHEEELAR
ERNGEMBARRKMBERE - I A
WY S B RO 51 LA AN 5 BE T

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: TERREE DT -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE ISR R AR R TR
in the consolidated statement of B &= FEE
financial position 1,157 1,242
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R A Bk R R IERHVIRIER
in the consolidated statement of THEEFRE
financial position (397) (450)
760 792
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B %55 R 2R B B

30 June 2016
2016F 6 A 30H

29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 29. IRIEHTE ()

At 30 June 2016, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$4,200,000 (2015: HK$9,529,000),
subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$7,509,000 (2015: Nil), subject
to the agreement by the relevant taxation authority, that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
due to unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or
10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 30 June 2016, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$119,000 at 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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30 June 2016
20166 A30H
30. PROVISION 30. &
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of year REA) 1,372 1,083
Addition during the year FREIN 346 289
At end of year and classified as REREDEAIERDEE
non-current liabilities 1,718 1,372
Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements BEAEETVNSHOBR  A&EH
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return FEREBESHEGRERBE RS R PR
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated IEREREOREEREMEENET
in the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or ME - EREABENDENRESL2ER
sooner determination of the corresponding lease term as B &S H M E 1= 8 AT A R % Rl
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was ETTER - BERRMAEE TUARERF I
estimated based on certain assumptions and estimates made HEEEIEIE
by the directors with reference to quoted prices and/or other
available information. The assumptions and estimates are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised as appropriate.
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
Shares gy
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FABT
Authorised: SETE
5,000,000,000 (2015: 5,000,000) ordinary  5,000,000,000 % (2015 £F :
shares of HK$0.001 (2015: US$0.01) 5,000,000 fi% ) & A E & 0.001
each 77T (20154F < 0.013&7T) Y
Rl 5,000 388
Issued and fully paid: EETRERE
736,000,000 (2015: 1) ordinary shares of 736,000,000 % (20154 : 1 %)
HK$0.001 (2015: US$0.01) each FRLEE0.001 BIT(2015%F :
0.0137T) My & @A 736 -
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30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H
31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31. BA& )
Shares (Continued) I (48)
The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued 20145611 A58 (FEMAZ BHI) £2016
share capital during the period from 5 November 2014 (date FO6H30H ILHRARTEE RE BT
of incorporation) to 30 June 2016 are as follows: REASEEEN GO TS -
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
TZERHE EEREE
Notes HK$'000
Liks3 FABT
Authorised: ETE
Upon incorporation on 2014611 A5H
5 November 2014, at 30 June ST Ak S B -
2015 and at 1 July 2015 2015 6 H30H
& 20157 A18 (a) 5,000,000 388
Increase of 50,000 ordinary #2150,000 f%
shares of HK$7.80 each B 7.80F T E AL (c) 50,000 390
Cancellation of authorised but A ERET
unissued shares of US$0.01 each % 0.01 =TT D G) (5,000,000) (388)
Sub-division of 50,000 ordinary 4317 50,000 A%
shares of HK$7.80 each into % 7.808 L E R
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RER0.0EBT
oRER L (9) 38,950,000 -
Sub-division of 39,000,000 4 #F 39,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BAZ0.01 BT E @K
into ordinary shares of HK$0.001 REAR0.001ET
each EORER L (h) 351,000,000 -
Increase of 4,610,000,000 #£714,610,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 FA%0.001 BT E AR
each (h) 4,610,000,000 4,610
At 30 June 2016 R2016% 6 H30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
Upon incorporation on MR20144 11 A5H
5 November 2014, at 30 June R AVAEIN
2015 and at 1 July 2015 2015F 6 A30H
K 20157 /18 (@) 1 -
Issuance of 99,999 ordinary 397 99,999 %
shares of US$0.01 each T 0.01 =TT (b) 99,999 8
Share repurchase 1 (el B (d) (100,000) @)
Issuance of 1,000 ordinary %17 1,000 A%
shares of HK$7.80 each i 7.808 L E AR (e) 1,000 8
Sub-division of 1,000 issued 2% 1,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$7.80 each BhR7 .80 TTE LT
into ordinary shares of HK$0.01 L@k AER0.01E T
each oRER L (9) 779,000 -
Sub-division of 780,000 issued % 780,000 f%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BR0.01 B TTE T
into ordinary shares of HK$0.001 E B &% 0.001
each ABITH E AR (h) 7,020,000 -
Capitalisation issue AR BT 0) 544,200,000 544
Issuance under initial public BRARBEEETET
offering 0) 184,000,000 184
At 30 June 2016 R2016% 6 A30H 736,000,000 736
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(a)

On 5 November 2014, the Company was incorporated
with authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into
5,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each. On the same
date, 1 ordinary share of US$0.01 was allotted and
issued at par to the initial subscriber, and was
subsequently transferred to the then ultimate holding
company of the Company.

On 8 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued 99,999
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at par to the then
ultimate holding company of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased by HK$390,000 by the creation
of 50,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$7.80 each,
ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing shares
of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the Company repurchased 100,000
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at par from the then
shareholders of the Company (which was paid out from
the proceeds of the issue of 1,000 ordinary shares of
HK$7.80 each referred to in (e) below).

On 25 August 2015, the Company allotted and issued
1,000 ordinary shares of HK$7.80 each at par to the then
shareholders of the Company.

On 25 August 2015, the authorised but unissued share
capital of the Company of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.01 each was cancelled.

On 25 August 2015, each issued and unissued ordinary
share of HK$7.80 was sub-divided into 780 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each such that the authorised share
capital of the Company was HK$390,000 divided into
39,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

31. BA& (&)
B3 ()

(a)

BABKEEARLDR /2016 FFK

AR A2014F 11 A5H FF MK
3 v YK F B A50,000% T H A
5,000,000 f% & h%0.01 E T L AL ©
BB 1RO ETEBREZEA
BERERBEITTVRREA  HiZ
EREARNAE R REIER AT

A2015F7 A8H » AARILEE
fid 2% 12 3517 99,999 % B A% 0.01 = 7T
TR TFARAEFREZIERA
T e

20158 4258 ¢ BB N EE
HN50,000 0% E A% 78078 7o & 3B A% (7
FIEEEAARRERNZER
SRR ARFEERSENE
390,000/ 7T °

M20154E8 A258 © AR & [A A
A B) & B % 5 4% T (& ## [2] 100,000
fE &A% 0.01 ETTEBAX - LAT X (e)
FiT 71t 3% 77 1,000 B 5 A% 7.80 7% JT &
BRFTISSRIEX AT -

M2015%F8 A25H » ARQTIRE
B 2 2% & %517 1,000 I% & % 7.80 7%
LB T AR A SRR -

M2015%E8 4250 « KA REE
1B R 377 % 4X 5,000,000 A% % 1% 0.01
ELE R T -

R2015F8A255H EEHTR
RE1T7.808 L E B D IFA780
& &A% 0.01 B T E @A - ARENE
TE %75 390,000 7T 5 4 39,000,000
A% &A% 0.01 oL iR o
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

(h)  Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of
the Company passed on 2 November 2015, (i) every
ordinary share of HK$0.01 in the capital of the Company
was sub-divided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each such that the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$390,000 divided into 390,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each; and (ii) the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased to
HK$5,000,000 by the creation of 4,610,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each, ranking pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

(i) Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of
the Company passed on 13 November 2015,
544,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way
of capitalisation from the share premium account to the
then shareholders on a pro-rata basis. This allotment
and capitalisation issue was conditional on the share
premium account being credited as a result of the issue
of new shares to the public in connection with the
Company's initial public offering as detailed in note (j)
below.

0] In connection with the Company’s initial public offering,
184,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
issued at a price of HK$2.06 per share for a total cash
consideration before expenses, of approximately
HK$379,040,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 November
2015.

Share options

Details of the Company'’s share option schemes and the share
options under the schemes are included in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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31. BA& (&)
B3 ()

(h)

RIE2015F 11 A2H B AR A’
RBBEMEMARE  (\AREE
AAEFR0.01 BT EBIR DA 10
f% & 3%0.001 78 T E @A - AR A
R OE M OAK390,0008 T A
390,000,000 % & % 0.001 7 7t & i@
fg: RGhE B £ M | AN
4,610,000,000 f% & % 0.001 /& T &
BR(RFIBEFEEARGRARKR
NEBRSEZ)  AADEER
AR Z 5,000,000 7T ©

BIE2015F 11 138 A D 7%
BB B M EERSE R
(i)544,200,000 i% & % 0.001 /8 T &
BRERERNEARNARGRER
L) [R) & e O AR PR AR B R B 1T -
EREEARIAMTE - FROEE
BEEARNT BN AREE (BT
SCBEE ) B ) 1A A R BT HTR D
ek SHRE A Al T AR ERER
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. BiR#EGTE

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. The principle terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (i) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, consultants of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the
Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company's subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share
Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August 2015. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 27 November
2015 (the “Listing Date”) and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

RRAFEEERNFEEN R RET S
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BRARBEEABERET X L ERE
RG)BRENTTEERITES  ARE
ER T -

SEAER2EEREARNRES (B
BYIERITES) AEEEMES - M
AEBREERIBRBOEER A%
EMER - AEEEF - AAFHKRE
VA K 2N X R) B BB X B B9 4E {A] FE 422 AR AR
o HXAHBEERIEREREIN 2015
F8H18A MBI ER - EAIETZ
PR2015F 11 A27B([ ETBEEDER
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=8B BEREIT R AR R R ER
B2 TN 10% © IR A2 7] ME
2@ A E AR EIEAER2EE
BONEROESEE - RRAXFRE
R ME TN 1%  EBHILRE
M-S REBRERAERRAS LK
RHLAE -

MARNRES  THAHNEERRNL
ERAIREBEARDNBREATR LR
BB IFFRITESME - IS AAR
AEERRIBIIFNTESHEME
FHMBEAR KT ABREGEBARRIE
AR FE D ETRM0N%RAE(ERA
RAEBHNE BT E) REM
12EABMEABESBEET) AL
PRBCRAR S E R E

BABKEEARLDR /2016 FFK




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %55 R 2R B B

30 June 2016
2016F 6 A 30H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the
following manner:

32. BRESTE )

BRAFMBEERBRE SR T BRE
BVTTIEE /R 1.2228 8 7T - BEIRBE RN —
EMFHEBHRIRATIRITRE

Maximum
percentage of

options

exercisable

Vesting period of AT ERB IR BEHY
the relevant percentage of the options BREMBEEILNFERS EEEDL
From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016 H2015F8 H18HE 20168 A 17 H 10%
From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017 BE2015F8 H18HE 20178 H17 H 90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of the
share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the
Company'’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. iEREE (9
The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option FER BRAAREERBERETZET
Scheme were outstanding during the year: MARITERBEIREM T -
2016
2016 F
Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
InREF 11T RERE BRERE
HK$ per share ‘000
BRET Tt
Granted during the year FAREH 1.2228 48,000
Forfeited during the year FERpR Uk 1.2228 (1,600)
At end of year RER 1.2228 46,400
The following share options under the Share Option Scheme TR BREEETRRITENER
were outstanding during the year: B
2016
2016 F
Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
NPT EE BRERE
HKS$ per share ‘000
BRET T4
Granted during the year and FARFEERFER
at end of year 1.27 2,426
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. EREE ()
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options AR 2IE N R TTEEREN RS
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as BAREITEE MITHEET -
follows:
2016 2016 %
Number
of options  Exercise price*  Exercise period
BRERE TEEE TS
‘000 HK$ per share
T FRAET
4,640 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 201648 A 18 HE 2022411 26 A
41,760 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20178 H18 HE2022F 11 H26H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2017 to 30 June 2021 20176 A30 B = 2021 6 A30H
1,213 127 30June 2018 to 30 June 2021 201846 A30HE 202146 A 30 H
48,826

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's
share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$17,341,000 (HK$0.34 each) (2015: Nil), of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$7,546,000
(2015: Nil) during the year ended 30 June 2016.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

© BRENTEETRERRCREITIAL
AR B THE -

FRREERENQATEBER17,341,000
BT (ER%034%7m) (20156 : &) - H
RAREBREZE2016E6A30BILFEE

TERIE I RERT L 7,546,000 7T, (2015 4F
=)o

FARBABRNZEREN QR EE
REH AN ZAAGEE e RBK
PRI BV R S R 1 o TR DI P A
BB ASZE

2016

2016 F

Dividend yield (%) & B2 K (%) 1.50
Expected volatility (%) 78 HAOR 18 (%) 29.04-41.40
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ 2 FI R (%) 0.63-1.49
Expected life of options (year) IS EFEEA S HA () 5.00-7.30
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) JI#EFHMR(E (FBETT) 1.2228-1.27
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32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
48,826,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 48,826,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$49,000 and
share premium of HK$59,770,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 48,826,000 share options outstanding under
the Schemes, which represented approximately 6.6% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of
recognising the contributions by certain eligible participants
and providing them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the Group and
to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company's directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group, and employed experts of the
Group. The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 30 June 2016, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

32.

33.

RS E (@)

B 1% 4 10 78 B 4F BB R — e SR R T A
EHFTEIET - TEDRIE R BB E
B AT B ok S B 3 (7T A ok Bt R IR B IS
GER) o

BMERARBEFEMACDELBRE
Y EL A A5 R o

RBEBR A2 RETIE
48,826,000 17 14 7 17 {50 g A 4 R 4R K
~RBATE AR BEITEMARTE
A 1% W % 3B BB 17 7N /A /) 48,826,000 %
FAHNE R A% I B8 SR AN 49,0007 7T M A%
1334 859,770,000/ JT (0B 21T X
A) ©

RERPBHRRESLERH  ARFR
EET 817 48,826,000 17 M AR AT AN AE -
BERRRRNZ A D ETRNA6.6%

B% 17 5€ B 51 &)

R2016%F 6 A30H » AR R ER AR 17 22
BEtE (R EREETE))  EEBSTESR
FEEawSBEEMERRM R T8
B UBREBESEATEEIFELE I
B WRS|IAEAEBHERERE
BR -

R EZEFTEIMN G ERSHEERERAA
REE oA TEBRAEEHEMES
ARAEBRZEER - BRIESITEUH
EE] - BRI EENET 8 8 2016F 6
FA30B#I1I0FRNEH -

REBZABTEBREMA TETOR
=BR BB R BARBEEAEEAS
BAITRRAREY 2% © RIFAX D L2 B =1 &) 7 e
BYFRaER2EENRROHBAR
HRARREFADHEITRAN 1% -
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33.

34.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the
number of shares to be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is determined by the board of directors. The shares
to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be
purchased by a trustee (the "Trustee”) from the open market
out of cash contributed by the Group and be held on trust for
the Selected Participant until such shares are vested with the
Selected Participant in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected
Participant.

During the year, the Company did not award any shares to
any eligible participant under the Share Award Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 90 of
the financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of the
shares of the then ultimate holding company that were used
to satisfy the consideration of the Group's acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; (ii) the waiver of amounts due
to the then ultimate holding company and a major beneficial
shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of a
subsidiary.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the aggregate of the nominal
value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation.
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34. RESERVES (Continued)

35.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represented (i) the
difference between the fair value of the shares granted to
employees of the Group in 2013 and 2014 and the costs paid
by these employees; and (ii) the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.5 to
the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

Upon the issue of shares to the employees on 30 September
2014, the relevant share-based payment was transferred from
share-based payment reserve to retained profits.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents the transfer of the profit
generated from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from
retained profits to the legal reserve in accordance with article
377 of the Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve
balance reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries.
The legal reserve is not distributable.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of 238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited (“238
Specialist”), a 60% owned subsidiary of the Group that have
material non-controlling interests, are set out below:

34. f#fE @)

35.

RGO BEROZNRHE

VAR AR 7% 250 69 S A R 4 48 () 12 2013 4F
K2014AFR T AKBEREBNRNDH AR
BEAZEZREMNERZHENESR
RHERLERRITENBEREZ AR
BE - RMBRERMFE25F AN BE
RNBRBZEHBRTBE—FE
e ZEBANEHEBEREETERE
BERMDBERINE BEREBHN
BOLWR BB R

R2014F9 A30BMZESREREZITRG
1% - BB ARG, BEBR A A FIER N
f&f BERRN S (N EFHESREERTFE -

EERE

VA TE R R A AR P RE AR AR AL AV BT B 2
BB F AR BRCR PI RDE B ) 5 377 {6
BENBEREAERHE BER2AERHB
RARERSHBRARRAN —FRIE -
RERENAI DK °

HEERFERERNERE
B 8 A 7]

238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited
(1238 Specialist]) & 7~ & B #5 8 60% I
BOMBAR  XRERAKEMSE
BEMIEERER o F 7238 Specialist
MEIEESIAT

2016 2015
2016 20154

Percentage of equity interest held by IR R R3S A B R L 1)
non-controlling interests 40% 40%
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35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 5. FEEEFERERNEERE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Bt B8 A 7] (4)
INTERESTS (Continued)
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Profit for the year allocated to DR T IEERERNFRRE
non-controlling interests 142 666
Dividend paid to non-controlling T IR R AR R
interests = 1,548
Accumulated balance of non-controlling # ¥4 B Hi |- FE3EARAE RS 0 251
interests at the reporting dates EeR 739 597
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial T & # 51 238 Specialist 8 81 7% & ¥} 1
information of 238 Specialist. The amounts disclosed are ZoEENSENALBEIMAFM
before any inter-company eliminations: HER
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THBT
Revenue O 17,048 16,302
Profit and total comprehensive income S RAFHE &2 EUW A 4258
for the year 355 1,664
Current assets MENVE B 4,124 5,084
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,348 583
Current liabilities mEAE (4,624) (4,174)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating #&& EBFTE (BT ) #Y
activities MEMEFE (900) 5,633
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & /EBFTARIR S R E/F 5 (2,270) (376)
Net cash flows used in financing activities Bt & /EZ B FTA KR © R 2 F58 - (3,870)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Be& RIBEESEWEMCR)
cash equivalents R (3,170) 1,387
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to increase the range of healthcare services offered
and to continually provide comprehensive and integrated
healthcare services for the benefit of the patients, the Group
entered into the following transactions during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2015:

(@ On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Shanghai Eaton Consulting from GZ Ruian for
a cash consideration of RMB5.1 million (equivalent to
HK$6.2 million). Shanghai Eaton Consulting, together
with its 70%-owned subsidiaries, Shanghai Eaton Clinic
and Beijing Eaton Clinic, is principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare and medical services in the PRC.

(b)  On 31 May 2016, the Group acquired the business of an
ophthalmology clinic (the “Ophthalmology Clinic
Business”) from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$5.1 million.

(0 On 1 November 2014, True Point Holdings Limited
("True Point”), the then ultimate holding company of
the Company, acquired a 60% equity interest in United
Medical Services (China) Limited (“UMSC") from Dr. Sun
Yiu Kwong, an executive director and a major beneficial
shareholder of the Company, satisfied by 3,887 shares in
True Point, representing 7.74% of its enlarged capital.
The fair value of 3,887 shares in True Point is HK$780,
which was the nominal value of True Point as at 1
November 2014. Upon completion of the transaction,
UMSC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of True Point.
On 30 June 2015, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interest of UMSC for a cash consideration of US$100
(approximately of HK$780) from True Point. Since the
Group and UMSC are under common control of True
Point both before and after the transaction, this
common control business combination was accounted
for as if the acquisition had been completed when
UMSC first came under the common control on 1
November 2014. UMSC, together with its subsidiary, is
principally engaged in the provision of healthcare
management.

6. %50t

AREANEERERGEHE BEAEE
RESZE TENEIHAEERER
% REBREZ2016F K 2015F6 A
B EFETLMTRS

(@) F2015F10H30H @ NEE AR
SREARES1HETGEERG.2
AEEIL) RMEMNBLZIEE LER
RIREEH100% K HE - LIBRR
RiEFRERE70%HME AR LE
TBRFAZE LI RRRFIZHEE
HERPERRREREERT

(b) M2016%F5A31H  A&EEWKE
— BB EZ AR ATNER
([REIZFEB]) - REREAS
BEBIT -

© MR2014FNMNATE RRARER
R PE A B True Point Holdings
Limited ([ True Point]) MIZNA &3,
TEERTEEERERBIESE
W B United Medical Services
(China) Limited ([UMSC]) 60% &Y
A4 - A3,887% True Pointhifn (15
HEERAGARE7.74%) 2454 » True
Point#)3,887 IRl I AR EE A
7807 7t 1E & True Point 722014
FNA1TEMNEE - XRHTKIE
UMSCEX £ True Point % & M1 B A
Ao N20165F6 4308 - AREELL
100E L (#A7808 L) MR £ R
& M True Point42 B8 UMSC 100%
B AR #E - AR EEHUMSCRARZ 5
Al 1219 & True Point 2L RI4ZE &l - 3%
HREAZES THOEBEHEAR - B
MUMSCE20145 11 A1 8 # i1
AERZEHE - WEEHRE AT
BX ° UMSC N BBt 8 A 7] = 2424
BEREER -
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2016
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Shanghai Eaton Consulting and the Ophthalmology Clinic
Business as at the dates of acquisition were as follows:

36. ¥E6tm
HZE2016 56 H30BLEE
SR EREEARERD R
BEHABREEREEOALGEE
B

Shanghai Fair value
Eaton Ophthalmology  recognised on
Consulting  Clinic Business acquisition
LBRR KRN
REHH RBID AR AREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TET THERT THERT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LRE 12 3,793 114 3,907
Other intangible asset HhmpEE 14 - 333 333
Inventories FE 176 - 176
Trade receivables EC 6 865 - 865
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ TB[FUE « RES KA
receivables [ A 12,161 - 12,161
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEED 6,712 - 6,712
Trade payables ZHENFR (945) - (945)
Other payables, accruals and HipEA30E  BIRERAR
deferred income EIEA (8,748) = (8,748)
Tax payable FERTIE (412) = (412)
Deferred tax liabilities ELRERE 29 - (55) (55)
Total identifiable net assets at BROAEBEFEZ
fair value A EFEERE 13,602 392 13,994
Non-controlling interests R (3,895) - (3,895)
Goodwill on acquisition Wi g 13 - 4,669 4,669
Gain on bargain purchase NEEBRRRBAREM
recognised in other income and WA R E B
gains in the consolidated statement Iz
of profit or loss 5 (3,499) - (3,499)
Satisfied by cash NEEERN 6,208 5,061 11,269

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$865,000 and
HK$10,571,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were HK$865,000
and HK$10,571,000, respectively.

No transaction cost was incurred for these acquisitions.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RUEE B ER - B 5 W GRTE & H Uk
FRIEH) R 7B E 5 Bl & 865,000 7T &
10,571,000/8 7T - B 2 fE UGB & E
FEW FRIB YA #)48EE 5 Bl A 865,000 74 7T
10,571,000 7t °

AEWBALRELELZHRA



Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36. (&6t

Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

The gain on bargain purchase of HK$3,499,000 arising from
the acquisition of Shanghai Eaton Consulting was primarily
attributable to the improved operating performance of
Shanghai Eaton Consulting and its subsidiaries during the
period from conclusion of the equity transfer agreement to
the date of the acquisition.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Ophthalmology Clinic
Business because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of
expected synergies from combining operations of the
Ophthalmology Clinic Business and the Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
Shanghai Eaton Consulting and the Ophthalmology Clinic
Business is as follows:

BZ2016F6A30HLLFE (&)
KAWE LSRRREAANZERE
Y25 3,499,000/ T = B8 AR LERER
RIBFEARENE QRN LS E
=R B RN S ERIRWE -

WERMPMEBELBENREAER
WEXNHOREBRER THEXES
HRMZAEHEAEE XA
[F) 2 & 2 2 et AR B A SRR o U S R as T
SHEEPENRER  TAREFRET
AR BHELEENERTE - &
B BRI A -

WiE B RRREH B RRRD M ER
BRSO :

HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration RERE (11,269)
Cash and bank balances acquired BER S RIRTTEH 6,712
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AKREESRENENR S
included in cash flows used in investing KBS EEYR L FE
activities (4,557)
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36. ¥¥ &0 @
Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued) BIZ2016F6 A30HLLFE (&)
Since the acquisitions, the contributions to the Group's BWE % HEAEEERHZE2016F6 A
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June B IEFEZWARGEFEERANT

2016 are as follows:

Revenue Profit
['ON 8
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT
Shanghai Eaton Consulting EBRRREET 20,266 1,573
Ophthalmology Clinic Business AR RIS P 3£ 75 194 4
20,460 1,577
Had the combinations of Shanghai Eaton Consulting and the Eet D BRRREZARRRDE
Ophthalmology Clinic Business taken place at the beginning HEERBE216F6A30HIEFEZ
of the year ended 30 June 2016, the revenue of the Group F4 - RIEZE2016F6 A30H EFE -
and the profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 AEBRARKEBEANFNBEES B A
would have been HK$471,649,000 and HK$10,726,000, 471,649,0007% 7T & 10,726,000 7T °
respectively.
Year ended 30 June 2015 BZ201556A30HLEFE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of UMSCRUEBERBIZ ARl EE R AR
UMSC as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BARBEET
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RIEERR
KA REE
Notes HK$'000
k3 THBT
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R&iE 12 670
Trade receivables H 5 WA 6
Prepayments, deposits and other TANKRIE - RE® R EA BT
receivables 4,688
Cash and cash equivalents ReNBREEED 3,609
Other payables, accruals and deferred ~ EMERFRIA - TRIRE A RELEWA
income (12,648)
Tax payable JERT A IE (1
Total identifiable net liabilities at BRARBEAEZ
fair value AEAaETEeRE (3,686)
Goodwill on acquisition g 13 3,687
Satisfied by 3,887 shares in True Point LA True Point ) 3,887 B A% 1D (E 1+ 1
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36.

37.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2015 (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$6,000 and
HK$4,568,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were HK$6,000 and
HK$4,568,000, respectively.

No transaction cost was incurred for this acquisition.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
UMSC is as follows:

36.

(B0t @
BZ2015F56A30BLLFE (&)
RUHE B ER - E 5 8 W SR TE I H Uk
KB R REESD R B6000E T &
4,568,000/ 7T & 5 MU KT8 I H At &
WRIB B & X2 %5 Bl & 6,000 T &
4,568,000 7T ©

UL BB A A R PR

BECDEARERHAENT A

YiE UMSC VR & imafran T

HK$'000
TET
Cash and bank balances acquired and EWER & MRITER NG ARE RS
inflow of cash and cash equivalents included  BE&REMNHR S MRS FEWRAFE
in cash flows used in investing activities 3,609

Since the acquisition, UMSC contributed HK$1,097,000 to the
Group's revenue and loss of HK$180,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 30 June 2015, the revenue of the Group and the profit
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 would have
been HK$401,257,000 and HK$40,939,000, respectively.

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS
IN SUBSIDIARIES

In addition to the 70% equity interests in Shanghai Eaton
Clinic and Beijing Eaton Clinic acquired through the
acquisition of Shanghai Eaton Consulting as detailed in note
36 to the financial statements, on 1 January 2016, the Group
acquired the remaining 30% equity interests in Shanghai
Eaton Clinic and Beijing Eaton Clinic from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of RMB3.2 million
(equivalent to HK$3.8 million). The consideration was
determined with reference to the net asset values of Shanghai
Eaton Clinic and Beijing Eaton Clinic as at 1 January 2016.

37.

B Uk B 2 % - UMSC i R & B3 = 2015
F6ANHIEFEZEAFIBEERBA
& E B 9 51,097,000 7T F 180,000 7
ﬁ: o

EAHBEAENREZE2015F6 A30H [HF
EZF¥ BIEZE2015F6H30H [FF
E AEBKRARASEBFRFBEED
R £401,257,0007% 7T % 40,939,000/ 7T °

W A B R A R RR SME AR

BRTEBWE SRERERARE L
BRI &I TR E I 30 70% A%
TE (INBF RS SRR M AT 36 At ) - 20164
118 REER—RZBEYE=HWE
EEBRREMDI R FTREMZEHT
RI30%HE HEREAARKBIZES
TL(FRENISEEBL) - RENKSE
EEBRERMZHE LI TBEMZ IR
2016F 1 A1HWEEFEMEE °
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical centres
and office premises under operating leases. Pursuant to
the terms of respective tenancy agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group is required to restore the
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the
tenancy agreements. Accordingly, a provision for
reinstatement costs in respect of the leased properties
of the Group amounting to HK$346,000 (2015:
HK$289,000) was recognised and these costs were
included as part of the cost of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and reflected as additions to
leasehold improvements of the Group during the year.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, interim dividends
of HK$2,009,000 and HK$70,893,000 payable to non-
controlling interests and the former holding company of
subsidiaries now comprising the Group, respectively,
remained unsettled and was included in the respective
line items of other payables, accruals and deferred
income, and amounts due to related companies on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group's
acquisition of UMSC was satisfied by the shares of True
Point and the fair value of the consideration was
recorded in capital contribution reserve as a capital
contribution from the then ultimate holding company.
Further details of which are disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements.
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FEXRERS

(a)

RER » REBEFELLHEER T
ETEBROMMAEYEIILE
#) o IR AN S B FTR] M & AV A 16
R AEBERHEMRIREEELY
FTARE HORAE © ELL - SAASEHEE
MEERBRHENCHEIARER
346,000/ 7T(20154F : 289,000/87T) -
MZEE R R/EAEENE - W5
BB — B0 - WRIRBNF
WAKERNTEEMRRESEM -

HE2015F6A830B IEFE > &
B FET FEE AR A 2 N AR SR 3R I
THI B A BRI A & A9 ERAR S
2,009,0007% 7t & 70,893,000 7% 7T i
KEEE - D RIETIRR 20156 6 A
30 BE4RE B TS AR S0 55 B & H Ath FE 1~
RIE - TEREARETERA K E
NEBARRENEEEET -

HE2015F6A30B IEFEE - &
£ [F Y B UMSC 2 18 48 First Point
RO RENAREERRE
LERE  SEERNRKERAR
M H & - 1B B Rk KT 536
B -
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39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties, medical
centres and office equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 6 years.

At 30 June 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due

39. REMERE
RO BRI R T R AL
DWE - BHFLRBORE - WER
EFMERER1E6F -

R2016F6 A30H » REBIRER T
BEZ BN TR HERNAER

as follows: REEEEEFBBEAT
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year —F R 34,748 15,105
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEhF(REEREMF) 62,890 37,267
97,638 52,372

40. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 39 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

40. FEiE
BT b SOBH 3 39 7 B 0 A TR B AR
SN MBS K - AN EE HR A AR
m

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT#E R B

Leasehold improvements HEYEEE 2,065 348
Medical equipment BERE 5,782 29

Capital contribution payable to ERTEEREIHTEE
joint ventures 30,060 -
37,907 377

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ own
capital commitments, which are not included in the above, is

AN AEEEIEAERARIBFMEN
APE(QEARIIALR) T

as follows:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&x FET
Contracted, but not provided for BRI B KRB 20,884 -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEBHAIRS
(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and (a) BEBEHRREMU FATFIAR
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial 5 REPFREERIN  RFER - A&E
statements, the Group had the following material B ERRREE T EITHERRZ ST

transactions with related parties during the year:

2016 2015
20165 20156
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FTERT FHAT
Associates: BT
Administrative support fee T FHEBRA
income (i) 511 700
Professional services expense HERKER (i) 6,146 9,325
Healthcare services income B R R 2 RFE WA (iii) 324 230
Joint ventures: SBAT
Administrative support fee THEHERRA
income (i) 2,968 -
Professional services expense HERKER (i) 1,466 -
Related companies*: B AT :
Property rental and related MEHERIEHEER
expenses (iv) 5,141 4,353
Contract healthcare solution AREBEREFRTR
services income ARG U v) 11,038 10,060
Management fee income EEERKA (vi) 993 570
Professional services expense EERBER (vii) 487 761
* Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the Company * ARRETEER  RERRRITA
are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of these related ZEEBARINES R R ERSRE -
companies.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed with the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by the relevant parties to the Group and was
charged at terms mutually agreed with the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical services
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The property rental and related expenses was related to leasing
of certain medical centres or premises for the Group's operation
and were charged at terms stipulated in respective tenancy
agreements.

Contract healthcare solution services was related to provision of
healthcare services to their employees and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative
and human resources services rendered by the Group and was
charged at a monthly fixed fee of starting from 1 November
2014. The related company became a subsidiary of the Group on
30 October 2015.

The professional service expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by a related party and was charged at a
monthly fixed fee of RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$126,000)
under a services agreement starting from 1 January 2015. The
related company became a subsidiary of the Group on 30
October 2015.

41. BEBAERS @)

(@ (&)
5T -

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BABKEEARLDR /2016 FFK

TR B MM A BAEE R E
A AR 755 5 5 2 S 45 AR 55 AR A 30 DA 240
BB RE RIS E -

EXRBEMIABALAAEER
HEOREZRY - LEBALTEAGE
Z AR o

BREERGWAERNEERHFNE
7B AR 7% A5 B8 3 LA A B8 05 AR B A9 SE RO 16
R E -

MEMRERAREREEEE TED
FOSAEBERLESHER W
AR AIPTRT R A IR & -

BRIBERRIZRRTT RRIE AR
1HEET: B B IRt M B R (R {2 AR 75 407
WARIEARRE T R B #IE B R

EEBABABRREERENEER
AN ERRBAERI B 2014411 A1
AEZE2015F10A831HZAEEE
FAUER - 3% B HE A 71 7R 20154 10 A
0HMAAEENEAR -

BERBEAE—ZHB A IRMNE
FRE R ARE - WiK A 201561 A
1THENREHEEEHAETER
A B ¥ 100,000 7T ( 18 & 74 126,000 7%
7 ) WER o 5% BB A ®1 5 20154 10 A
0B AXEEMEBAR -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)  41. BEBERF R 5 (@)

HiEABAE X5

AR R EEHERRE RGN T
ARB—BITER RATHRER
AR EBEIMERREEHIIW

(b) Other transactions with related parties (b)
Professional services fees paid to an executive director
of the Company and the key personnel of the former
ultimate holding company in relation to the rendering

of healthcare services to the Group are as follows: N
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
F85 FiE7
An executive director (note (i) —BHITES (WF3) 3,196 2,929
Key management personnel of the  BIEIZR AR EBZEIRAE
former ultimate holding (B 5 Gi))
company (note (ii) - 1,825
3,196 4,754

Notes: fiEE -

(i) The professional services fee related to healthcare services (i) ZESERMGBEANARNITESRE
rendered by Dr. Michael Sun, an executive director of the BT B A R A B R RIE RIS AER -
Company.

(ii) The professional services fees included in the above were related (ii) FRAHEERBEER2014F12
to healthcare services rendered by certain shareholders and A30BTEKEMAZATAEBIBRET
directors of the former ultimate holding company of subsidiaries PR R REAZIER A TIRE TR
now comprising the Group prior to the completion of the REBRRENBRREREHED -
Reorganisation on 30 December 2014.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel () AEEXEEEABZHM :

of the Group:

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Short term employee benefits EHEERT 8,838 16,758

Post-employment benefits BERR1E B A 289 398

Equity-settled share option expense  LARS#E 7 15 BB AR AEE A <2 6,603 -
Total compensation paid to key ENEEERAE 2 mMERE

management personnel 15,730 17,156

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

42. T E9¥E
NBEHEKR SELBRTANETE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as Rl N
follows:
2016 2016 F
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity Loans and financial
for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
EAREER
STABEMN
SREE— BFEE ERR AfREE
HEEE HEKRE WA SREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FER  FER  TER  TER
Held-to-maturity investments #7582 5|HR & = 56,728 = = 56,728
Available-for-sale investments At HHEHRE - - - 9,007 9,007
Trade receivables g SR EIE - - 47,450 - 47,450
Financial assetsincluded i~ STABNZUE - REL R
prepayments, deposits Hip KA S AR
and other receivables - - 13,679 - 13,679
Financial assets at fairvalue 2 BEABR
through profit o loss NeREE 2,026 - - - 2,026
Due from associates it NG E ] - - 593 - 593
Pledged deposits BAER - - 783 - 783
Cash and cash equivalents BeRhBeEED - - 261,299 - 261,299
2,026 56,728 323,804 9,007 391,565
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. €T ESE (&

(Continued)

2016 (Continued) 2016 FE (&)
Financial liabilities SEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R 8 R
FTENEREE
HK$'000
FHExT
Trade payables E 5 EMFIE 47,291
Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AHEMERFRIE - TR B MELEW A
accruals and deferred income Sl =K 22,076
Due to associates FETESE & N B FIE 266
69,633
2015 20154
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
BAREE
FTAEZEA
EREE — =594 AHHE
RKIEEE FEW I SHEE et
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$:000
FET FHET FHET FHBT
Available-for-sale investments AJ it i &R E - - 3,510 3,510
Trade receivables 2 5 EWRIA - 45,057 - 45,057
Financial assets included in 5T AFEN A - (RFE
prepayments, depositsand & K& E A FEUFUIA
other receivables M REE - 10,987 - 10,987
Financial assets at fair value ~ RARBETA
through profit or loss BENe rﬂé@ 2,722 - - 2,722
Due from associates FEULHE &N B FUR - 3,562 - 3,562
Due from related companies  FEY BAEE A A58 - 31,925 - 31,925
Pledged deposits EHFR - 1,019 - 1,019
Cash and cash equivalents B¢ MIREEEY - 83,477 - 83,477
2,722 176,027 3,510 182,259
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

42. $MITES8 @)

43.

2015 (Continued) 2015 F (&)
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SH A AR
FTERY
SRBE
HK$'000
FATT
Trade payables B 5N HIE 41,058
Financial liabilities included in other SFAHAMENFRIE « TEIRE A SR A
payables, accruals and deferred income NeAasE 17,803
Due to associates FERTHSE & R A BUR 149
Due to related companies FEATBERS N B BUR 79173
Due to a director JEN—(IE B8 6,769
144,952

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. £RiTEZ ABEEAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, accruals and deferred income, balances with a joint
venture, associates, related companies and a director
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities/no fixed terms of repayments of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are
based on quoted market prices.

BEEH

CEREIE BeRALZEY &
WER BRENKE  BHEMR
W HAFENRIE - RES RE MR
FOEMSRAE - 5 AR H0E -
BREALECUADSBARE 8E
EAF - MEAT BHARLE—&E
ENEBOARL BEREEEMEE
BEZETAY HMBERE,/ZET
AmETEESRAANEYEL TS
j(o

TREENBENAABEKBERRS

77 (MERERBREE)NENR ST
QL TENTEAR -

EBREREHBRENAREBEERA
M S REETE °
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. €T A2 ARBERAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEEHK @

Fair value hierarchy RARABEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERINNAEEEBR T AN QA EER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: BER:

Assets measured at fair value: RAARBEFENEE

As at 30 June 2016 201656 A30H

Fair value measurement using

DABEETEERANEE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEB ™5 BX BX
HBE THEERIEE TUBEEHE
(B—#%) (B=&) (B=&%) #mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FET
Available-for-sale AHHERE -
investments:
Debt investments BEBKE - 5,497 - 5,497
Equity investments at BRARBEFAER
fair value through KRR E
profit or loss 2,026 - - 2,026
2,026 5,497 - 7,523
As at 30 June 2015 "2015F 6 A30H
Fair value measurement using
AR BEGFTERANEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
V& B T 45 EX BA
WE AIERSE TAERUE
(B—4) (=) (B=#4) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT FAT FAT
Equity investments at BRAREBEFAER
fair value through KRR B
profit or loss 2,722 - - 2,722
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. €I A2 ARBERAAE

44,

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Save as the disposal of the unlisted investment at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group of HK$618,000 during the
year ended 30 June 2015, there were no material movements
in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2015: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds only through various creditworthy
financial institutions.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, unlisted available-for-sale investments,
and amounts due from associates and related companies,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

44,

BEER @

AREESER(E)

BAREBEAERZE 201556 A30LFE S
ERAREBAESABINIELMEE
618,000 LN - FRNEIEMAAEE
AEMEEASY -

RER 2REEF1BHEFE2EANE
EiftEzMUEER  FE3B ML ES
AkEEH (20154 : &) -

R2016F6830H - REBEBEAAR
BEFENTERSREE(2015F « £) -

cRIEMEEEERBE

AEENTIECRITAREREIAS
EEVAREREFR - ZFERTEN
TZENRAAKENEERHTES
AEEBZBEERALEELNEMD
TRMEENAG WEFHREFENE
SIENFOR -

AEEeRIAEEENTIERRAEE
R R REIERER - EFSEMILRE
EERHEZFRARMOBRLBALIT -

EERE
AEEERERREEAENE=
ETR G HWRAREOEE - FIA#R
BREBGIETRSNEP LABBE
ERERRFR® FTAEE - W KK
BemBnmRRERNER  ERE
HEEARARILTERX -

BETMBREREHRREMS - AKETS
BRZEEEAENSREERE L
5o

AEEEMEREE(BRRELEEE
By ERFER BZRWFHA A
BNAE - RES REMBEFKENES
REE HANEBEFABSNGRE
EFEMAHLERE  BEBEQ
AIMEB AR NEERRER S
HFHEOMELE  RoRARESFINZ
EFTANKEE - EERRETREIIR
BEFE/HFRER -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. SHERERE B ERBER (@)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 19% (2015: 17%) and 48%
(2015: 32%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from
the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors

the Group's working capital requirements regularly.

FEERR (&)
MRIREHR  REBEESETEEED
Bk AXREENEZEKGHEF @ o
B H19% (20154 : 17%) K 48% (2015
F 2% EMAEESFANEBEARR
RNEBALBE -

AEBELXAE S ERFBNEERR
WO g — 2L EERERM SRR
B5E 20 ©

FEIME AR
FEBERRARERERAEANS
SRHLSEY NEAXEENEE
BHASTERBERERDOPE .
ERETHENRERRENNRBE
STk

RBERR - AEREIRASQORRAK
BEENERAESIHERSIMT

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2016
2016 F
No fixed
terms of
repayment/ Less than
on demand 3 months Total
& [E EEER
SREREER LPR3@EA &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#ExT FHExT
Trade payables Z S ENFIE 1,023 46,268 47,291
Financial liabilities included in 5T A H b fE{~t 3018 -
other payables, accruals and 8128 A RIELEW =
deferred income MNemAaE - 22,076 22,076
Due to associates R /NI E S| 266 - 266
1,289 68,344 69,633
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

44. eREREEBERBE @)
FRENME R (E)

2015
20154
No fixed
terms of
repayment/ Less than
on demand 3 months Total
fEEEEEIR
SIREREER DPR3EA BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Trade payables B S EN IR 615 40,443 41,058
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A & fih FEF 5k
other payables, accruals and  FE1R B MiE Uﬁzm
deferred income et AaE 1,693 16,110 17,803
Due to associates FEEEE N Tz’XIE\ 149 - 149
Due to related companies AR L T NGIE ] 79,173 - 79,173
Due to a director ERtESFHIE 6,769 - 6,769
88,399 56,553 144,952
Capital management EXER

AEFEAEENEEBRRRELE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going ERECENE N ERBRNERL
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to DY RHEEBRERRREBERA
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. 1t -

The Group manages its capital structure and makes $'§.$§ﬁ§?§/§iﬁ REREEEERN

adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2016 and
30 June 2015.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

BREHREERAEELERNEE - B
%%ﬂ%&éﬁt& LR AEEERABIRA
FTREMRE  REED FRERET
D o REB IR AR INDME IR
EREFMAR - RELE2016F 6 H30H
K2015F 6 A30H IEFE - ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ
1Z - BURS IR PPl AR B A 2

AEBOERNSARREE NEIGE

s
fm °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R MY aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  45. &2 BB AR R &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the HEBREEAR RSN RFEB N
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries M B A RIMIRE = -
Held-to-maturity investments RBEEIERE 26,721 -
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE 5,497 -
Total non-current assets JEMBIVEEE MR 32,218 -
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA [ E At FE MR IR 630 -
Held-to-maturity investments RBEEIEHRE 30,007 -
Due from subsidiaries YNGR O] 147,789 -
Due from a joint venture e —Ea &R RIRIE 93 -
Cash and cash equivalents B& 170,415 -
Total current assets mEBEELR 348,934 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBBE
Accruals TEIRER 824 15
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B A R F0R 3,426 903
Due to a related company JE T —FRIBA R & 1 5kIE = 48
Total current liabilities NN 4,250 966
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) EBEE, &EF58 344,684 (966)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (8B FE 376,902 (966)
EQUITY -
Issued capital &% 7 736 -
Reserves (note) e (M) 376,166 (966)
Total equity B 376,902 (966)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # ¥R R M aE
30 June 2016
2016F 6 A30H

45.

46.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

45.

AR BB RET @)

Note: fsT -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: AARIFEERZOT -
Share- Retained
Share based profit/
premium payment (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
BEFES
R EER IR (REHER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FAET
At 5 November 2014 M201456 11 A5H
(date of incorporation) (GEAZ B ER) - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive FAFBEREEEBERE
loss for the year - - (966) (966)
At 30 June 2015 and at 1 July 2015 201546 A30H &
20157318 - - (966) (966)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFERE2EBRALTE
for the year - - 46,357 46,357
Final 2015 dividend 2015 F AR AR R - - (30,000) (30,000)
Capitalisation issue of shares upon listing EmERMDEREET (544) - - (544)
Issue of shares upon listing R EETT 378,856 - - 378,856
Share issue expenses R BT (25,083) - - (25,083)
Equity-settled share option arrangements VARR 19 2 1< i AR i 2 - 7,546 - 7,546
At 30 June 2016 M20165F 6 A30H 353,229 7,546 15,391 376,166
Share-based payment reserve URHAHER 2 S RREE

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 September 2016.

46.

AR BER Z M REE/RERHER
EENBEREAREE RUBHRER
ME25 P AR AERZNRZSHZE
AARRTAE—FSHL  ZEEARE
BT EREREROEERK
RERBREAHNIFIRKERER
TFRIHE

it B B AR R

MM EN2016FIH26 AREET 1
R AETIE -
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Financial Summary

R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-  AREBEMBENETREENEERLEE B
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as & R IFERER M E (0 0 A M EZ
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set K ) EH I T ©

out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mE¥EE
Year ended 30 June
BZ6H30HILFEE
2016 2015 2014 2013
2016 F 20154 2014 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 456,020 401,037 353,025 316,291
Profit before tax M RTA)E 14,254 47,780 49,199 40,905
Income tax expense FrEHEx (7,372) (6,920) (6,653) (5,894)
Profit for the year F AR 6,882 40,860 42,546 35,011
Attributable to: A&7 G
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIE Z- N 6,676 41,392 41,537 33,601
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M A 206 (532) 1,009 1,410

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
As at 30 June
R6HA30H

2016 2015 2014 2013
2016 F 20154 20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T BT THET
Total assets BERE 509,638 249,645 231,591 192,853
Total liabilities BlE4EEE 99,040 183,454 82,038 77,313
410,598 66,191 149,553 115,540

Equity attributable to: A& ELRERZ :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Y =N 412,103 67,711 148,536 112,514
Non-controlling interests JEIE RS RERS (1,505) (1,520) 1,017 3,026
410,598 66,191 149,553 115,540
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"2016 AGM” AGM to be held on 10 November 2016

[2016 RRBFKRE ] BF2016F 11 A 10 HRTHRRBEF RS

" Affiliated Clinic(s)” clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or

will enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical
Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members.

(BB 2 P WIHAAEEKEEC B EREAEBITARAENDZ A - Bt @GE
G B REBERY - TRIIRS & # B AR

" Affiliated Doctor”, doctor(s)/dentist(s)/auxiliary services provider(s) who has/have entered or
" Affiliated Dentist”, will enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services
" Affiliated Auxiliary to Plan Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such
Service(s) Providers” agreement, has/have received or will receive an amount from the Group
based on the volume of Plan Members treated
[BEEE A ERCEIGEAEBRIT U RERERE THESENELE T8 §
[BtEres] BRBRMEE - BEBEZSHRGT  BEE S REZHEIg88E
[ 55t B 9 B AR TS PR i 3 | EEN-SEIET /S
"AGM" the annual general meeting of the Company
[ERRBFRE ] KRR ERBAFRE
"Articles” or "Articles of Association” the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to
time)
[ER24BA ) sk [ EF2AA ] RAFIBEBERAR (GETEER])
“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Board
[EZZEg EEEERELESY
“Auxiliary Services” includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional
Chinese medicine, vision care and optometry and child health
assessment
[ #6581 AR 7% BIEBREZERCBRE WIReE 78 BRREERBRAUARRE
R AT

"

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the
Group as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in UMP Medical
Centres in accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with
the Group, and the Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers

" Auxiliary Services Provider(s)

[ %8B IR TS PR | ELABEEIASREZESBEROHDRBGRERE  REEAKER
1 O BETE] 9 5% Y IR GRE B B B A D IR R BYARAS - A REE B W BY AR
BieE
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“BBS” Bronze Bauhinia Star
[HAEFEE ] MEFEE

"Board” or "Board of Directors”

30
“"CG Code”
[eEE AT

“Chairman”

[E/F]

"Chief Executive Officer”
[FTEARE

“Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees”

[BEETEFRHHITATA
"Company”

[ARE]

"Company Secretary”
[RAJRE]

“Contract Customers”

[AHEF]

"CTFE"”

[EARERE]

the board of Directors

552

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ETRRIM SR 14 BB EE AT

the chairman of the Board

EEENERE

the chief executive officer of the Company

EN/NSIERTE €t

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted
by the Company
RRAFRANZ EEETERFR ST R

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014

%é%%ilﬁ@ C —RR20144F 11 ASBRIER S B AE M
M BERA

the Company Secretary of the Company
ZAN/NC T ANIE e

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered
or will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits
for Plan Members

MEtElg BB RERERND I FERNERIT L XTSI NRR AR R
E Lokt

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability which owns the entire share
capital of Healthcare Ventures
FARBEEERAR REEBEVTMRINBR LG #H
Healthcare Ventures & .:BHX$
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“"Dental”, "Dental Services”

[ZFRH TR

“"Dentists”

[T 8

"Directors”

[EF]

"Doctors”

(B4 ]

“EM Team Limited”

[EM Team Limited]

"FY2015”"

[2015BA BLF X |

"FY2016"
[2016 I FE |

"General Practitioner”,

“"General Practice”

ESTEIR
ESiETd

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and
secondary dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics,
implants and whitening
BRERTERG (A0 Rt ) LA R 8 @ 7T Bk (W0 T B R 7T
AEEER  EEkITEER)

dentists who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant
to provide Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance
with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the
Affiliated Dentists

BRI EEIAERZESBEMNTE - RIBERNEBERETNEMT
EERRER S B O NRERS - AR E T

directors of the Company

ZAUNCTE 5

doctors who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant
to provide Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance
with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group and the
Affiliated Doctors

ERFFEEIAEEZERERMNEL  REBEERNEERITOREM
EERRIERE S BRSO NIRRT - LA N R

EM Team Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the BVI
with limited liability on 17 April 2015, which is one of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company and controlled by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

EM Team Limited * 7201544 A17 B IR IR & B IR X 8 & A R MR L
WARADR » NAFHERRR 2 — » BFRRTEEES

the financial year ended 30 June 2015
BZE2015F6 A30 AL BFE

the financial year ended 30 June 2016
BE2016F6 A30RALEFREFE

doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of
contract for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to
the appropriate specialists or services required

EXRERHIRNELE  REARBERHERZE  CEARRI2EN
BEDEA ISR AE
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"Global Offering” or "IPO”

[2IREE | ok [BARFEE]
“Group”, "UMP", "we" or “our”
[R&EE] - [BAEB] - TUMP] - [31F1)

"Healthcare Management Model”

[EERiZEIER
"HK$" or "HKD"
&7t

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

"Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Service”

[ B8 BRI e R B R AR 2 AR5

“Joint Venture Agreement”

[& &)

" jpr

[ AL

“Listing Date”

[ HH#

“Listing Rules”
[ R Al

"Macau”

[HRF ]

“Medical”, "Medical Services”

[ ]~ [ B AR

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and
outside the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on
Regulation S, the details of which are set out in “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the Prospectus
RRABRBBERRREKIESROERBEIRIMIBER R BEENRD - &
EENBRER [2REENRE]

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZA/NCIYYELi)-SpNC]

the Group's business model that is founded on the basis that General
Practitioners are best suited to serve as the first point of contract for
patients given their training in family medicine
AEENEBRARBENEX TREBESIIRNEMNELERBEE /B
FRMHERZEHE AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

%;/%/jﬁ_ﬂ:_ 17Ag/%TE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRTHRR

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients as described
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report
mEEEERMEREBRREZRE - ARRE [ERENREOT] At
the joint venture agreement entered into between UMP Healthcare
China and Pinyu on 13 July 2015 for the purpose of forming UMP Phoenix
JV
6%/:.\%%‘43 BIERmER 20157 A13BET LM E K #ha% - AR LRI R
NG|

Justice of the Peace

PN i

27 November 2015, being the date on which the Shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange

2015 11 A27 8 - BB R Ehz A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X FRE A L AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RITTIER R

include General Practice and specialist practice

BREMNEREIENER
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“Model Code”
[1E2E=FA ]

“Nomination Committee”

[fE2Z B2

“NWS”

(el

“Phoenix”, “Phoenix Healthcare
Group Co., Ltd.”

[BEEER]  [REBREEERATF]

"Phoenix Healthcare Group”

[REEREEHE]

“Pinyu”, “Pinyu Limited”

[anin] ~ TR ARAR ]

“"Plan Members(s)"”

[T3g8 )

"“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[BERRFAEERBERETS]
“PRC"

[ ]

"PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution”

[ Bl RREARRTT 5]

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHRRIME 10 L BEITAESETESFXHNRET]

the nomination committee of the Board

EXQRAL8E

NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 659)

MEIZEERRAR  RAREZMAZLHNERAR - HE BT P
RPEFFER T (RS - 659)

Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd., a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1515) and a substantial Shareholder of the Company
BEEEEEARAR  —HERSES MK ERRZAER LT
AR (RO - 1515) » AARARINEZRE

Phoenix and its subsidiaries

BEERENENE AT

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Phoenix
mARATE  —RAREEBRE LS EVEMKLNBRAR - /A
REAFERRIAEEERNEZEMB LR

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who
typically include group medical insurance policyholders and employees
of corporations and/or their dependants
AEECXBRRERIAZGE  —REEESEBERBRREFEA
REEOEE R, IRERB

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the
Company on 2 November 2015
BEEEN2015F 11 A2 BbERRANE XM B SR BAEE

the People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

PEARAMNE (GIABEMS - TREEE  RFIRGE

development of corporate healthcare solutions and clinical healthcare
services in China as described in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this report

PEBRRERATRIGRBRREBRENTFENER  WARE [E
B E s L AT At
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"PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions
and Clinical Healthcare Business” or
“PRC Developing Business”

[PEPRERREERTRER
WK B8 BRIE R | 3k
[ SR e B %75

"PRC Health Check-up Business”

[P EEmER]

"“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[BRRFEERBRETS]

"Prospectus”

[(HERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHEEE

“RMB"
N

“Review Period”

[ = AR |

“Rich Point”

[Rich Point ]

"Rich Point Group”
[Rich Point &£ [# ]

development of corporate healthcare solutions and clinical healthcare
services in China as described in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this report

PEBRREBRATENGABERRERENTPENER  NARE[E
B E &t L AT Pt

provision of check-up services for (i) PRC residents traveling abroad for
study or for work and (ii) for corporate employees as described in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report
ROEEINEEHTIENPEIER K () EESRHEBRRE - AR
HEBEwm Lo i

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board
on 18 August 2015
EFEN 201548 A18 B it/ RERMAY & X253 & Al B s &)

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015
AATHBHA2015F11 17 BOHBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board
EEeHNEEY

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

HEDEEER AR

the period from the Listing Date to 30 June 2016
B T HEEREZE 20164 6 A 30 B L HM

Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited (formerly as Pan Pacific
Healthcare Limited, Pacific Health Services Limited and UMP Healthcare
Limited), a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong on 29 May 2000 and the holding company of the businesses of
Group before the Reorganisation, as disclosed in the Prospectus. Rich
Point is principally a property investment holding company, in which Dr.
Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive
Director of the Company, holds more than 30% of the equity interest
Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited (B Pan Pacific Healthcare
Limited * Pacific Health Services Limited N UMP Healthcare Limited) * —
MR 200055 A 29 BRIBHE EAGIAMK LN EREE LR - EEAR
REBEEBOZERA R (NBRERFHEEE) © Rich Point 2R —KE
EREEBRAR  ARAEF  (TRERRRTESFHRBRIEGHER
30% Pt

Rich Point and its associates
Rich Point & E}ff &~ )
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“SBS” Silver Bauhinia Star
[REFIEE ] REFEE

“Self-paid Patients”

[BBBE]

“SFO”

(585 MBI MI )
"Share(s)"”

MR f7 |

“Share Award Scheme”
[ R in 2 EhT 81

"Shareholder(s)”
IR ]

"Specialist practice”,
“Specialist services”

[ERIEE]  [ERIRS

“Stock Exchange”
[ gk 52 P |

"True Point”

[ True Point]

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and
plays for services using cash or credit card
AEERLENBEBHEPORDLERRSHERRINRBERD
BE

the Securities and Futures Ordianace (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time

BREDIF ST B M B IRH) - EARHER] R

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share
capital of the Company
ARE AR ZIREE0.001 B TH & Bk

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June
2016
BN 20165 6 B 30 B L RIRB A 2B AT 2

holder(s) of the Share(s)
D FE A

UMP offers a range of specialist practice, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family
Medicine, Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal
Medicine, Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and
Gynaecology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology,
Otorhinolaryngology (ENT), Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology,
Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology and Urology. Please see www.ump.
com.hk for the updated list of specialist practices

BeBBRMt—RIENEE @%/L\Bﬁﬂ CRERE - A BRI &
KEAE - REBEZ - 55 MTHREL - @I AR BHR - &% -
EEHNEL - 1R Fﬂ AREL E‘ﬂ&&'”%ﬂ HSRMERL - R NS
B AR WA BB SRR ENERENEEFLH

www.ump.com.hk

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARIMBR AT

True Point Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability

True Point Holdings Limited - —fER B EEE Z &AM MK IHE
PREERAA]
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“"UMP Healthcare China”

Bt & BT E ]

"UMP Medical Centre(s)”

[ B )

"UMP Network”

[UMP 4845 |

“UMP Phoenix JV"

[REMEAERA]

“UMP Phoenix JV Group”

[REBARESH]

“United Medical Services (China)

Limited” or “UMSC"

[ United Medical Services (China)

Limited] 3k TUMSC]

"Uss”
EA

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the Cayman Islands with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company

UMP Healthcare China Limited, —fARIERASH S ZETMA TN BR
RE KRR EHBME AT

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or
Auxiliary Services which is operated by the Group

RAEBL L RHBERL - TBRE R LBHREHEEH O

consist of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and
(ii) Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but
which has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical
Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members
BREOAEESENBABBHOLBEBZM (WIFHAEELEHND
Ffr 1E| EEAKET Y HEA B S REERRYE - TRRE R
#BIARTS)

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited, a joint venture company formed by the
Group and Phoenix pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited © A5 B 815l Bl B BERBE S B WAL
BWaE&RA

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited and its subsidiaries
BlEBAEEEGR AT RENE QA

a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
—HERBEEBREAHESAFMAIHERLAGT - RARGINEEL2E
L ipEEMNG]

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America

XBEEEHET

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016



®.
05

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
BMEBBEEEARAT



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Milestones
	Chairman Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of Directors
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Glossary
	Back Cover

